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ASSEMBLYMAN HARRY A. McENROE (Chairman): Good 

morning. I would like to welcome everyone here this morning. 

This is a regularly scheduled hearing before the Assembly Waste 

Management, P 1 anning and Recyc 1 ing Corruni ttee on Recyc 1 ing in 

New Jersey: Progress Report. We expect the other members of 

the Committee to arrive shortly. I am the Chairman, Harry 

McEnroe, and I would like to introduce the people who are here 

on the panel. On my left is Algis Matioska, Aide to the 

Committee, and on his left is Leonard Colner, an additional 

Aide to the Committee. We also have Kevi 1 Duhon of our staff 

joining us, and Glen Beebe from the Minority Staff, who has 

been with us for a long period of time. 

The hearing today is being held as a part of our 

. overall review of the State's solid waste management policies, 

statutes, and programs. The first of these hearings was held a 

few weeks ago on issues related to the disposal of residual 

ash. .we will hold other hearings in the weeks ahead, including 

a hearing on the recycling and handling of special wastes such 
. . 

as tires, white goods, and other circumstances of waste, 

disposable diapers included. That meeting is presently 

scheduled for May 23. 

As you know, a review of the State's waste policies is 

being undertaken also in the executive branch. The hearings 

held by this Cammi ttee are intended to parallel that review 

along a somewhat different and, of course, independent path. 

We will be sharing the trans~ript of today's hearing with the 

Department of. Public Planning in the Governor's Office, and 

will be calling upon DEP and other executive agencies for input 
J 

as we try to get through some of the tough issues facing.us in 

this area. 

Before turning to· members for othe·r Committee comments 

or public comment on this portion of the hearing, I just want 

to frame some of the brief thoughts I have on behalf of the 

Committee that we think are important to the overall assessment 
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of recycling in New Jersey. There are several unavoidable 
facts in New Jersey that must be addressed, and we are speaking 
about any solid waste management proposals. 

The first is that we generate a tremendous amount of 
waste in this State. We have to plan for it in dealing with 
collecting, hauling, and managing 11 million tons of municipal 
industrial waste each year. 

Second, our State is highly, if not excessively 
dependent on out-of-state disposal, since we are not able to 
dispose of the solid waste we generate within our own borders. 
Presently we rely on out-of-state disposal for more than 50% of 
our sol id waste disposal needs. During the recent past, the 
long-term availability of these facilities has been called into 
question, as these states have taken steps to curb interstate 
waste flow into their own disposal facilities. To deal with 
these disposal problems, our State's solid waste programs have 

. been driven by a goal of achieving waste management 
self-sufficiency by the end of 1992. 

Third, solid waste management has become an· economic, 
as well as an environmental issue. Tipping fees in the summer 
of 1989 were above $100 per ton at major transfer stations in 

.Union, Hunterdon, Somerset, Morris, Sussex, Bergen, and Essex 
Counties. Increasing costs for solid waste di~posal are 
putting heavy financial burdens on all of our taxpayers, 
especially on senior citizens on fixed incomes, people with 
young families, and, of course, the working poor. 

Finally, the citizens of our State are demanding an 
environmentally responsible solution to our solid waste 
problems_. It is clear that New Jersey. will not bu_ild 20 or 21 
mass burn facilities in various parts of the State. Certainly 
that being the case,· we will have to ·devote additional energies 
to other aspects of the State's solid waste strategy, including 
improvements in recycling programs. This, of course, is a 
dramatization, if you will, of that obligation, a renewed 
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statewide and regionwide commitment to source reduct ion and 
furth8r development of the source separation of waste treatment 
components of our solid waste collection disposal systems. 

As this meeting begins, there is much to be hopeful 
about in the future of recycling. All but one of our counties 
has implemented a mandatory recycling program, and that county 
should be on-line in a few short months. From 1986 to 1988, we 
increased our level of newspaper recycling in the State by 
61%. We increased the recycling of glass by 135%. We 
increased the recycling of aluminum by 96%; cans and mixed 
metals by 236%; plastic, although not the enormous percentage 
that we 'might hope for, has still increased by 1000%, insofar 
as recycling during the past three years. The recycling of 
leaves and composting has .incre.ased by 55%, and the statewide 
goal of 25% is, indeed,. an overall reality that we are reaching. 

These advances should strengthen our hope that more 
can be done. Each additional ton of waste recycled means that 
fewer dollars will have to be devoted to landfill disposal 
costs, resource recovery facility construction, and e~ergy use 
for converting raw virgin materials into consumable goods. Our 
hopes for recycling, however, must be tempered by the 
constraints we have encountered during the implementation of 
the Mandatory Source Separation and Recycling Act.. During the 
past two years, we have found that the markets for certain 
recyclable materials are extremely volatile and, in some cases, 
inadequately developed. 

Public awareness of the need for recycling is much too 
low, and the public is not always prepared to accept recycling 
centers close to their backyards. We know very well about the 
difficulty of siting .any kind of facility .in this area. 

The equipment needed to handle mountains of material 
is no.t always in ready supply. Government at all levels 
appears to be ill-equipped to handle the wide range of 
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enforcement and compliance issues that arise when the costs of 
handling, treating, and disposing of waste go up. 

My hope, as Chairman of this Committee, is ~hat 

today's hearing will give our members an accurate picture of 
where New Jersey stands on recycling and where we can 
realistically expect to go both in an overall sense and with 
respect to our primary recyclables glass, newspapers, 
aluminum, and plastics. 

I would urge the witnesses appearing before us today 
to teach us about the problems and prospects of recyc 1 ing in 
their particular areas. Tell us what is going on in your 
pasticular markets, and tell us what you can't do because the 
technology or capital isn't available. Also, tell us about the 
things that we can do as the Legislature and as a State· 
government comrrii tted to solving this great problem facing the 
most densely populated state in the nation. If there is a 
difficulty with recycling and it must be solved anywhere, it 
must begin today. 

So, I have a long list of people who wish to comment. 
The intent of our hearing, again, is to review the progress, or 
the lack of same, and the support that is needed legislatively 
in the area of recycling of aluminum, glass, plastics, and 
newspapers. 

We have a long list of 22 people who have advised us 
that they would like to comment. We will begin with the 
Director of the Division of Solid Waste Management from the 
Department of Environmental Protection, John Czapor. John, 
would you join us at the table, please? 
J. O H N V. C Z A P O R: Thank you, Mr . Chairman . I am 
John Czapor. I am Director of the Division of Solid Waste at 

NJDEP. With me is Mary Sheil, who also I am sure you know very 

well. Mary is Deputy Director of the Division. Thank you very 
much for the opportunity to brief the Committee on New Jersey's 

progress in achieving recycling goals. 
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In preparing our presentation tcday, we were aware of 

the large number of people from various organizations very much 

invoived in recycling who will be following us. 

today is to provide information to serve as 

Our purpose 

a basis for 

additional discussion today and future discussion; to give you 

a snapshot and a brief overview of the recycling program in New 

Jersey to date; and to sort of focus specifically on various 

parts of the waste stream and give you specific data that 

hopefully you can use in addressing various components of the 

waste stream in discussion yet to come today and at future 

meetings. 

I will give a brief overview of sort of waste material 

in New Jersey, waste generation rates, and will then turn it 

over to Mary, to discuss in greater detail the recycling 

program in New Jersey. 

It is certainly appropriate to say that since 1987, 

recycling has become a way of life for New Jersey residents. 

In i988, almost 2,800,000 tons of material were recycled in New 

Jersey. This is up from 1, 800, 000 tons recycled in 1987. I 

would note that 1989 was the year when ~any of our recycling 

programs really came up to full speed. That information and 

that 1989 data is statutorily required to be reported to us by 

July 1, so we will be very eagerly looking at the data that we 

anticipate getting this summer in terms of how we are achieving 

our mandated goal of 25%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Excuse me, Mr. Czapor. I just 

want to acknowledge Assemblyman Tom Duch, who is part of our 

Committee and has just arrived. I'm sure you know the 

Assemblyman. Please continue. 

MR. CZAPOR: Thank you. We have provided the 

Committee with a package, and we will give an abbreviated 

version of that package in our presentation. I call your 

attention to it. There wi 11 be copies of the overheads 

which I will go through in a minute -- that will discuss 
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recycling by waste category. There is also hard data en 

connty-by-county waste generation rates and recycling numbers 
thr-ough 1988, and there is also a county-by-county review on 
the status of the county-by-county solid waste programs, which 
includes at least some brief information on county recycling 
programs. I hope that will be of assistance to the Committee 
as they proceed further with this analysis. 

With that I would like to just do a brief five-minute 
presentation on some of the waste composition questions that I 
think are most pertinent when discussing existing recycling 
programs and additional recycling programs. 

I think your comments; Mr. Chairman, were very 
appropriate. (Mr. Czapor moves away from recording microphone 
to overhead projector; sections of his comments were 
indiscernible to transcriber) You will note that in the 
package we have included numerically, in tabular form, 
information on recycling rates by various materials -- paper, 
glass, plastics, metals. What we tried to do for the purposes 
of today, was sort of synthesize that in graphical form so it 
would be a little bit easier to discuss. But the hard numbers 
are available, as is the backup. 

I think it is important to realize that recycling 
traditionally has focused on the municipal solid waste stream, 
and what individual citizens and communities can do to reduce 
the amount of waste they generate. That is in general about 
60% of the total waste generated in New Jersey -- the total of 
11 million tons of waste we generate a year. 

It is appropriate, I think, as we move forward from 
where we are now into increasing recycling, to change our focus 
and our philosophy a little bit from recycling as a· means of 

conserving resources and environmentally sound policy, to 

recycling as a sol id waste technique that reduces our 
dependency on disposal facilities, which will result in fewer 
and smaller facilities. In other words, dealing with the whole 
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waste stream, 

commercial, or 

regardless of whether 

industrial; regardless of 

waste or construction and demolition debris. 

it is municipal, 

whether it is yard 

All of these take 

up landfill space if not reused, recycled, or reduced, all of 

which would use up our precious land resources. 

We have provided the Committee with two general 

numbers which we think are roughly good numbers to wo~k with in 

a general discussion. They indicate the type of waste in the 

waste stream by component, paper being approximately 27%; 

plastics being approximately 9%; metal, again approximately 9%; 

yard waste, a very big factor, 16.3%; construction and 

demolition debris, 24%. In designing any recycling program, we 

should look -- and in your future sessions I believe you will 

look -- at what can be done with those individual facets, those 

individual pieces of the pie, to reduce the need for disposable 

facilities. 

To· give you some idea qf a snapshot of where we are, 

we have taken the liberty of taking each one of those pieces of 

the pie and sort of focusing on them in greater detail. 

Hopefully this will be helpful in the discussions to come later 

today. For example, paper. Paper is approximately 27% by 

weight. There is an issue there of weight versus volume, but 

by weight 27% of the waste .stream is paper. Newsprint is 

approximately 16% of that 27%; corrugated approximately 30% to 

32% of that 27%. We have done this for every part of that 

waste wheel, or that pie, and we think it is a very helpful 

tool in looking at where recycling programs will be most 

helpful, most effective, and give you the best bang for your 

buck. In other words, look at what we are likely to get out of 

the waste stream in terms of weight or volume, as we move 

through with your legislative initiatives. 

We have taken the 1988 numbers -- and again, these are 

in the packages we provided to the Committee and Cammi ttee 

staff -- and tried to overlay the current recycling rate.; --
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currently in, again, 1988 in each one of the s1ili-categories 

of paper. So, rather than give you a number for paper, that is 

the total recycling rate for paper, which isn't particularly 

helpful in discussing with the industry and with the private 

sector and the public sector how we might increase paper 

recycling, we add some focus by saying, "Where do we recycle 

what piece of the pie?" So, for instance, in this example, 

corrugated, which makes up 32% of the total amount of paper in 

the waste stream-- We have a current recycling rate of 27.6% 

for corrugated. So, we are recycling 27.6% corrugated; 

corrugated, in turn, being 31. 8% of all the paper, and paper 

being 27% of the total waste stream. 

What that does is allow you to find out in the 

aggregate what the total recycling rates are currently in the 

State of New Jersey. Hopefully, that will give you a tool to 

say, "Where can we improve?" Instead of just asking the 

question, "Can we recycle more paper and what will it take to 

do that?" the question becomes, "Can we do better in 

corrugated? Can we do better in newsprint? Can we do better 

in high-grade office? And, what can we do about recycling in 

the other category, or is th~t category a category that remains 

to be handled in another way, other than recycling?" Again, we 

have provided this for the Committee. 

Similarly, we have done the same for glass. Glass is 

approximately 3.5% of the total waste stream, containers being 

approximately 77% of that 3. 5% .. Our current recycling rate is . . 
approximately 33.5% of all glass containers currently being 

recycled, given 1988 data. On this one, the computer didn't 

quite draw the 33% the way it should have, but the numbers are 

there. 

Again, metals . as a forum for discussion-- Metals 

breaking down into a number of categories aluminum 

aluminum containers specifically -- other aluminum, white goods 

and other ferrous materials, appliances and, once aga:n, not to 
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belabor the point, but I would like to work with these 
carefuily, to get an estimate o= what we are doing statewide in 
terms of all these categories. You can see that the 1988 

recycling rate for aluminum containers was about 40%, a very 
big component being white goods and other ferrous materials 
almost 50%. That includes the scrap metal; that includes white 
goods, again, not necessarily envisioned by mandatory 
recycling; not necessarily envisioned as part of the municipal 
solid waste stream, but something that is in the disposal -­
that is required to be disposed of, and would take our precious 
landfill capacity if not handled appropriately. 

Plastics: 1988 was clearly an early year for 
plastics. The chart doesn't change, so I won't even bother to 
put up the overhead. We basically show very little, 
essentially no recycling of plastics in 1988. That situation 
changed as we moved into 1989, and Mary will have some 
discussion of that. 

A very big component of the waste stream, and the last 
one that I will really focus on is yard was~e. Again, when the 
recycling program was envisioned, we dealt with paper 
primarily, aluminum, and glass; and we focused, to some extent, 
on plastics. But yard waste represents 16%, approximately, by 
weight, of the material disposed of. Aqain, with the action we 
took about a year-and-a-half ago, which essentially banned the 
disposal of weeds in disposal facilities. in landfills, and 
required composting-- We took 76% of the weeds out· of the 
solid waste stream; 76% out of the 28% that leaves represent of 
total yard waste. 

Our purpose in presenting this as a brief overview is 
that hopefully it is an appr9ach that the Committee can use 
today and in future discussions to sort of guide it in terms of 
looking at where increased recycling will get the greatest 

benefits. 
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I think, in conclusion, from my perspective, there are 
two aspects to recycling that need to be focused on: One is 
basically where i~ is jus~ sound environmental policy to 
recycle from the perspective of conservation of resources and 
just good environmental ethic, and where we start to incur 
costs -- costs to the individual, costs to the municipalities, 
costs to the counties, where recycling is being done as a solid 
waste management technique. And there, these types of pie 
charts, whether they are run by weight or by volume, I think 
become very helpful, because the balance will be given a 
particular legislative or regulatory staff to reduce material 
in the waste stream: What do we ·achieve in terms of reduction 
of the material that needs to be handled? 

I thi~k we can take each issue, each component of the 
waste stream, and really put it to the acid test of how much it 
will buy you in terms of targeting increased recycling. 

With that, I would 1 ike Mary to run through some of 
the.specifics of the recycling program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. Before we do that, I 
would like to acknowledge our Vice Chairman, Daniel Jacobson of 
Monmouth County, who has arrived to join us on the panel. He 
is a member of this Committee. Also, Bob Shinn, of Burlington 
County, an Assembly member for ~he past eight years, and an 
advocate of stronger recycling also. 

We appreciate your being here, Mary. Thank you. 
M A R Y T. s H E I L: (speaking off mike ·at projector) 
Thank you. The final goal, as set in the Mandatory Recycling 
Act, was 25% by approximately December of 1990, depending on 
the various counties'-- (sentences impossible to transcribe at 
thi~ point, since Ms. Sh~il is not using microphone) 

There was an interi~ goal of reaching 15% of the 

municipal waste stream by 1989, and that stream was about 60% 
of the 11 million tons we generate in this State. 
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In 1988, which as John pointed out were the last 
numbers we documented, we did a 15% municipal waste stream 
rate, so you can see we hit our 15% interim goal a year ahead 
of time. If you base it on the total waste stream and the 
total recycling, which would include bulky scrap, automobiles, 
C&D waste, and yard waste, in 1988, based on the total waste 
stream, we were at a 24% recycling rate in New Jersey. 

All of our municipalities have designated, and I think 
the counties have designated, at least three mater.ials, plus 
leaves, which were specifically mandated in the law be kept out 
of the landfills as materials to be recycled. Approximately,as 
of today, 530 municipalities out of the 567, leaving 37 -- and 
some of them may be on-1 ine, and we just don't have the data 
yet -- have passed their ordinances to designate paper, glass, 
and aluminum. Two-hund.red-and-seven have included plastics; 
190 have included tin by metal cans, with more coming on-line 
this year in that area; and they have also included, for the 
commercial sector, corrugated and office paper. 

Now, some of the market development activities, as 
mandated ~y law, were the Business Loan Program and the Market 
Development Program. In the Business Loan Program-- Since 
1985, when we gave out the first loan, we have given out $4.5 

million. Those loans range from $50,000 up to $500,000, and 
anyone can apply for them. For certain priority projects, that 
is, manufacturing recycling projects, such as a paper mill, you 
can get up to $3 mi 11 ion in a low interest loan. In the Tax 
Credit Program, we had 253 applicants that had been approved. 
They came in with a total cost of $13.6 million, and they did a 
50% cred.it on that, or we had -$6.3 million in tax credits 
applied against recycling businesses in New Jersey. 

The law also mandated that we have a State Procurement 
Program for paper, and that 45% of all the dollars by 1989 that 
we spend for buying paper in New Jersey must be spent on 
recycled paper. We actually exceeded that rate _n 1988. I'm 
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so!:'ry, that is the 1989 rate. Fifty-nine percent of all the 

paper that our Division of Purchase and Property buys is 

recycled paper. 

In addition, we have a number of recycling centers 

that have been approved for tires and construction and demo 

waste. These are reviewed and approved by our Department. We 

have set guidelines and have drafted regulations that we are 

prepared to implement shortly for the siting of those 

facilities. Six approved are 2500 tons a day capacity, and 

there are 34 under review for those types of materials. That 

would be 18,000 tons per day capacity. 

To give you an idea of what some of the counties are 

doing and this is the total recycling rate which would 

include not just the designated material, but also the bulky 

materials such as appliances-- It also includes C&D waste 

recycling, and it also includes yard waste recycling. So this 

is what each county has done as of 1988. You can see the rate 

of recycling -- the total recycling rate for_ those counties 

ranges from a low of 4. 5% up to a high of 38%. In a county 

that is low 1 ike Warren-- That was before they brought their 

resource recovery facility on-line. They then began to 

concentrate on recycling, and they have added several materials 

to their program. They are actually shooting for a 40% 

recycling rate, because they are looking at a regional program 

with Somerset County, and are also considering Hunterdon as· 

well. So, they have to accelerate recycling even further, in 

order to make their resource recovery facility work as a 

regional facility. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I have just one quick question: 

The recycling rate in some of the more rural counties seems to 

be considerably less than in some of the more populated 

counties. You do include industrial waste. Is that why the 

counties such as Essex and Hudson have a higher--
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MS. SHEIL: Yes. For instance, if you look at a 

county like Burlington-- Burlington concentrated on the 

designated materials. If I were to take, like, Mercer County, 

and just show you the list of materials, they would lose about 

11% or 12% of that rate. They would drop to maybe 26% or 27%. 

Whereas Burlington wouldn't change at all, because they 

concentrated on those materials. They .are now moving -- and 

Bob Schaefer (phonetic spelling) could probably address this 

better than I could -- into those other materials with the 

development of their transfer station and their landfill, where 

they are pulling an awful lot of bulky materials. We expect 

those rates to accelerate. But they concentrated originally 

just on the standard of aluminum cans, glass, and paper. But 

we expect these rates to accelerate greatly in 1989 and 1990. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And these do reflect industrial 

waste? 

MR. CZAPOR:. Exactly. 

MS. SHEIL: Yes, these do reflect industrial waste. 

MR. CZAPOR: And also, one of the factors that may 

influence the· urban counties showing the higher numbers -­

construction and demolition debris through revitalization 

projects. One thing I think is critical, and we can provide 

the Committee with. this, is that for a little while at least we 

are still working with two sets of numbers. We are working 

with the· designated materials type of number that focuses on 

those aspects of the total.waste stream that were env~sioned to 

be the target of recycling in mandatory recycling. Then the 

total waste pie, which is what these numbers are so~t of 

representative of. So we tried to give you sort of a big 

picture snapshot. But if you want those other numbers, we can 

certainly provide them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I wish you would. 

MS. SHEIL: And then this last chart just shows how we 

are implementing that. We always felt when we weJ.1t into this 
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program that we realiy needed to consolidate materials in 

volume, and we had to have processing centers that would bring 

up the quality of those materials. And this is beginning to 

happen statewide, as you can see from this map. 

These are regional types of multi-material processing 

facilities. In addition to this, we have a number of municipal 

recycling centers-- (balance of statement indiscernible) In 

some of our counties like, Monmouth County has two 

multi-material processing facilities, and Ocean County has two 

also planned. So, some of these facilities are on-line; some 

of them are in the planning process, and due to come on-line at 

the beginning of next year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I appreciate your 

coming here. We scheduled the governmental departments first 

prior to hearing from the private recycling firms, in order 

that they could be brought up to the minute on exactly what 

your progress has been and what your plans are. I would hope 

that you would remain, or at least representation f~om your 

Department would remain, so that comments made by the public 

would b~ available to you and I'm sure would be of benefit to 

you. 

The summary comments made about the red tape 

aspects-- I think it would be well if everyone from the 

Department stays so you will be aware of some of the concerns 

people have. 

Do you have a question, Assemblyman Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN' SHINN: I guess generally we are promoting 

a very positive picture of recycling, but I guess my feeling is 

we have a lot of problems with it. They go back to the market 

issue. I know part of the Mandatory Recycling Act had that 

market study compo~ent. I don't know where that all ended up, 

but I know it didn't materialize the way it was envisioned to 

materialize. 
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I think the thing that is going to drive the numbers 

in recycling, if we are real honest about the whole picture, is 

the dollars we are going to get for material. Newsprint is one 

of our major crises right now in recycling. I think all of us 

know that together. We've got to address that issue. I think 

glass is probably holding its own. I think plastics have some 

good signs on the horizon private capital investment. 

Aluminum is not a problem. The bulky waste issue-- There is a 

lot of money being spent there. 

When you get into tires and the lion's share of the 

waste stream-- Really, when I look at our numbers with the 

curbside collection program, we are still seeing more than a 

ton per person per year at the landfill -- at the transfer 

station. That means there is an awful lot to be done. There 

is an awful lot of materials in that waste stream that still 

have to come out. How you get them in a practical sense and 

find markets for them is the real issue. I would just like to 

have your thoughts on where we are going from a market 

standpoint. How do we develop these mhrkets? Do we respond to 

that item in the Mandatory Recycling Act? Are you still 

working on that? 

parts: 

MR. CZAPOR: Why don't we take that, I think, in two 

We certainly can, and would be happy to give you 

specific information, Assemblyman, on what has been done over 

the last two years in terms of trying to do some stimulation of 

markets in New Jersey. Mary has had some direct experience, 

especially with the paper industry. 

In addition, as you know, the Governor's Executive 

Order sets up an Emergency Sol id Waste Assessment Task Force .. 

Very quickly, as you n9ted, the technical questions·relating to 

what can be recycled become, what is feasible to be recycled; 

that's marketable; and. then what stimulations are necessary to 

move that along? I think that is a very definite focus of that 

task force. We will have some recommen.'.ations to further those 
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areas coming out in the next couple of months. But perhaps we 
can review what has been done a little bit over the last years. 

MS. SHEIL: Well, in terms of the paper industry, the 
Canadians have plans to go into deinking. About 59% of all the 
paper we use in the United States comes from Canada. What is 
being looked at is back hauling wastepaper back to Canada when 
they bring all the brand-new paper down for printing. There 
are at least four mills up in Canada that are planning deinking 
processes. Plus we have one major company -- Jefferson Smerfit 

which is looking in the Northeast, and New York, 
Pennsylvania, and New Jersey are leading states for possible 
location of a newsprint recycling mill. 

You saw an announcement recently by The Star-Ledger 
and Bowater for plans for a mill and partnership in Tennessee. 
I think some of the publishing industry, which you will hear 
from today -- and they certainly can tell you better where they 
a·re at this moment -- has made some commitments to using more 
recycled news. We need to expand the other areas as well. 

Marcal Paper, in New Jersey, has just made application 
for a loan from us. They are doing a $24 million expansion for 
increasing their paper, which_ will include collection o junk 
mail.· and magazines, which was something we really couldn't get 
rid of before. 

So, there 
Unfortunately, it is 
things all take time. 
stimulus for making 
recycling is the fact 

is a lot going on in the area. 
not going to happen overnight. These 

It takes time to build a mill. But the 
those things happen and increasing 

that we have this supply. One of the 
things we are constantly told by these companies which are 
planning for these new mills is, "We want that guaranteed 
supply." Here we are sitting with this supply, worrying about 

that guaranteed demand. So it will continue to be a constant 

balancing act between supply and demand. 
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ASSEMBL~...AN SHINN: I just see the lion's share of the 
burden keeps-- We seem to be saying, "Okay, municipalit~es and 
counties, you go do it." There are limited markets out there 
at best, with a high subsidy factor, and I know we have a good 
recycling grant program -- limited, but good -- but we still 
ship the lion's share of this recycling subsidy, if you will, 
to municipalities and counties. We just sort of have them in 
the middle. Without that market loosening up-- You know, 
something has to give. I guess that is my point. 

I like the general tone of what you have put before 
us, but there are a lot of concerns I have about really raising 
these levels. The worst thing we can do is lull ourselves into 
believing we can recycle our way out of the solid waste crisis, 
without other serious alternatives and large percentages to 
deal with the waste stream. That is where I would like to 
really focus on what is practical in a time frame, versus what 
we have to have on-line in that time frame to deal with the 
solid waste crisis. I think· that is one of the issues you have 
to sort of focus on. 

MR. CZAPOR: Well, I think that each one -- if I may 
pick up .on that -- and I agree-- The reason, I think, for 
trying to break down each -- the total sort of waste stream 
into components, is to sort o,t. provide the opportunity for that 
type of debate on each part of the component. And, in fact, we 
have had a history, and we all know there are often appro~ches, 
there are bills, there are ideas, that say, "Let's recycle this 
part of the waste stream. We can take this out." The question 
always has to be, how much do we gain from that? If we find 
there i~ a really seemingly good idea that generates a 
reduction in weight or volume of . 5% of the waste stream, we 
may not have attained anything from a sol id waste management 
perspective, but we may, in fact, have tremendous costs 
associated with attaining that. 
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So, each one of those components, I think, has to be 
addressed via the technical feasibility, the liability of the 
market, and what can be done to stimulate the market and 
provide for ease of implementation. If all of those criteria 
are met, I think then it is very fertile ground to move forward 
on. If not, perhaps it is not the area to focus on, and we 
focus on how to handle the material outside of recycling. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Czapor and Ms. Sheil, the 
nagging question, as I see it, is: The education of the public 
relating to recycling. The figures you cite here are 
impressive. The statistics certainly indicate that there is a 
movement toward recycling in New Jersey. But there are an 
awful lot of people in New Jersey who still remain unconcerned 
with the social obligation, if you wilL that we all have 
toward recycling now. 

What is the Department doing? What can we help you 
with in that area? 

MS. SHEIL: Well, we do h_ave 10% of the Fund ~- the 
Recycling Fund -- which totals about $12 million a year -- the 
total Fund -- and about $1. 2 million of that goes to ·education 
programs. We do a statewide educ at ion promotion of recyc 1 ing 
wh1ch includes a variety of media types of things, as well as 
courses that are run. We continue to run programs with Rutgers 
University, and we give grants to the counties to do countywide 
education programs with their municipalities. We will continue 
to need intensive education of the public on this issue· as to 
what they can recycle. As we recycle more and more materials, 
the education must refine itself to getting people and industry 
to clean up their acts, so that they do produce materials that 
the recycling industry can manufacture back into new materials. 

That is one of the problems, wher:;e sometimes you get 

this glut on the market. It is not really that -- maybe that 
pure, new newspaper recycling mill can't use it, but they can't 
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use the junk they are getting with the newspaper. That always 

becomes a problem. You go to a lower end market every time you 

commingle more and more materials. 

So, as we get them used to recycling, we take a step 

backward and say, "It's time to clean up your act and begin to 

do a better job of sorting, and to begin to do a better job of 

processing this material." 

MR. CZAPOR: I think we have also tried to be somewhat 

innovative. We have a staff within the Division that focuses 

on education at a range of levels, both from sort of the 

general public relations outreach type campaign right through 

to a teacher's guide for the early years, which teachers can 

use to sort of teach solid waste management principles and 

teach recycling principles, the theory always being that you 

can get at the parents and the adults through the children. 

I think it is a very effective program, but I 

absolutely agree that it is one that has to be continued, 

because so much of the program depends upon citizen cooperation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Mr. Chairman, I have one other 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Shinn?· 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: The thing we talked about a lot, 

and I don't think we have affected it at all, is source 

reduction. You know, more and more it seems like we rn~st take 

internatio~al honors in New Jersey for genera_ting waste per 

capita. I think that at some point we have to do more than 

just talk about source reduction. 

I am wondering if there are any areas the Department 

is working on r~lative to source reduction, and if that issue 

is being addressed? I know it is a component part of our 

strategy now. Is there anything behind that that you would 

like to share with us? 
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MS. SHEIL: Well, I sit on the Source Reduction 

Council of CONEG, which is the nine Northeast states that the 

Governors of those nine states have organized to address source 

reduction of packaging. The long-term plan is that that would 

go into other materials as well. But they are looking at 

source reduction packaging, and have set down guidelines for 

the packaging industry as to what source reduct ion means, and 

pref erred packaging guidelines which are: First, no package, 

and then minimal packaging, where you do need it, and then a 

reusable, refillable type of packaging, which would be the 

third step. Then, if you can• t refill it or reuse it or you 

still need a package, it is to be made of recycled materials, 

and it is to be designed for recycling. 

So, that is what they are doing. In New Jersey, we 

have let a contract with Tellus Institute. After we got 

involved with that contractor to look at the whole economic and 

environmental impact of packaging, several other states, under 

the Council qf State Governments, and some of the industries, 

joined in that to look at ~ackaging as well, and to expand upon 

the CONEG project. 

So, packaging is about 34% by volume of the waste 

stream. So it is a large component to take a look at. If you 

are an avid recycler in New Jersey-- For instance, the county 

I live in where we do all materials-- The last one they are 

going to bring on-line is tin and bimetal this year. Most of 

what you throw in your trash can as a resident is a lot of 
. . 

packaging. So when you are an avid recycler, you can really· 

see the impact packaging has on the trash cans; 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: O~ay. Any further questions 

from the members of the panel? (no response) We ·very much 

appreciate your· comments -- your public comments today -- and 

we primarily will hear today from people who are involved in 

the various industries relating to the conunon effort we all 

share of recycling. 

20 



So, again, the availability of this information to the 
Committee is appreciated. We hope to have the transcripts 
prepared from this hearing within a few weeks. We would like 
you to review those carefully, and come back to this Committee 
with any suggestions or any areas where we can be of assistance 
to you. Thank you very much. 

MR. CZAPOR: Thank you. We have staff available, and 
information, if you need follow-up on anything we have given 
you today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. Thank you very much. 
We will move along. We are going to call for the New 

Jersey Press Association. I understand they will be 
represented by Sandra Hardy, Chairperson, Newsprint Resource 
Task Force, and by Mr. Mark Newhouse, Gener al Manager of The 
Star-Ledger, and also a member of that Newsprint Resource Task 
Force. 

Good morning, Mr. Newhouse. May I introduce the 
members of the Cammi ttee? On my left, Assemblyman Tom Duch, 
Passaic County; staff member, Al Matioska; Assemblyman Dan 
Jacobson of Monmouth County; and Assemblyman Robert Shinn of 
Burlington County. 
M A R K N E W H O U S E: Good morning. I am Mark Newhouse, 
General Manager of The Star-Ledger. I would like to thank 
Assemblyman McEnroe for inviting us to speak to the Cammi ttee 
and the public today on the progress that is being made on the 
newspaper recycling front in New Jersey. 

As you probably know, recycling is not new for 
newspapers or readers. Newspapers represent one of the most 
heavily recycled products. About 35% of old newspapers are 
reused in some way. Some are used for wrapping, animal 
bedding, or used in the production of insulation, cardboard, or 
of recycled newsprint. 

There are now nine paper mills 
newsprint in North America, one in C;anada, 
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United States. All nine are now, or were once owned by 

newspaper publishers. The first of these was the Garden State 

Paper Company of Garfield which was established by Richard 

Scudder, then publisher of the Newark News in 1961. Newspapers 

were recycling even before there was a solid waste crisis. 

New Jersey has long been a leader in the environmental 

arena. We were the first State to establish a mandatory 

recycling program which included old newspapers. But when 

neighboring states in the region climbed on the bandwagon, a 

sudden growth in supply created a temporary glut on the 

market. Municipalities which as recently as early 1989 could 

sell old newspapers they collected for $25 or $30 a ton, found 

that the price plummeted to $5 in some places, to zero in 

others. 

Old newspapers are a commodity, 1 ike corn. Grow too 

much and the price will collapse. This short-term decline has 

led some to believe that recycling is failing. To answer that 

concern, some lawmakers have considered regulating the 

newsprint market to create demand for the old newspapers piling 

up at collection stations. 

This Committee needs to know that public interest and 

pressure from our readers and from municipalities and the 

Legislature have accelerated developments to increase recycling 

as a part of newsprint manufacture. New Jersey newspapers are 

among those effectively pressing the papermakers to expand 

their recycling operations, and they are responding positively. 

The parent company of The Star-Ledger, The Trenton 

Times, and The Jersey Journal have recently announced 

participation in joint ventures with two major newsprint 

producers to build new paper mills to recycle old newspapers. 

These two projects alone will use a quantity of old newspapers 

equi~alent to the annual newsprint usage of all New Jersey 

newspapers. Many other manufacturers have announced similar 

plans to recycle, often in partnership with other newspaper 
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publishers. Within two to three years, the paper industry will 
have spent hundreds of millions of dollars to produce recycled 
newsprint. 

The three Assembly bills now in committee requiring 
mandatory use of recycled newsprint -- up to 90% of all paper 
used by 1992 -- present a number of problems. First, the 
supply of recycled newsprint needed to meet this goal isn't now 
available, and probably won• t be even by 1992. Second, the 
bills include an unrealistic definition of recycled newsprint 
which isn't met by some of the papermakers planning new 
projects. For example, the paper which will be made by the 
Bowater mill in Tennessee -- one of our joint ventures -- might 
not qualify under these bills even though it will consume about 
120,000 tons of old newspapers per year. 

Finally, the penalties included in these bills 
represent an unfair burden on· newspaper publishers. There 
perhaps is a feeling that publishers should be the ones to pay 
for the old newspaper problem. In fact, we ar~ already paying, 
both by direct investments in new plants and through increases 
in the cost of paper, part of which wi 11 go to finance the 
manufacturers' projects. 

In fact, the free market is already actively on the 
way to solving the old newspaper glut. The stimulus· of 
regulation is not needed. It might even inhibit growth by 
telling producers how much recycled paper will be required. 

Recently introduced legislation provi<;iing tax 
incentives for newspaper deinking plants represents a positive 
legislative initiative· -- the carrot instead of the stick. By 
providing financial relief to New Jersey's existing recycled 
newsprint mill, Garden State Paper, and offering in6entives to 
new operators, State government will encourage the substantial 
investments needed to build these facilities. 

In his invitation to speak today, Assemblyman McEnroe 

asked some specific questions, which I will try to address: 
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What percentage of used newspapers in the municipal 

solid waste stream is currently being recycled on a statewide 

and county-by-county basis? 

Frankly, we don't know the answer with prec1s1on. I 

must say that the presentation which preceded mine had a lot of 

detail which we do not have, and I think really answered some 

of that question. Paper markets operate on a nationwide or 

regional basis, not a statewide one, and statistics for New 

Jersey are just not available to us. We do know that New 

Jersey newspapers use about 390,000 tons annually. Garden 

State Paper used about 250,000 tons of old newspapers per 

year. The Port Authority estimates that another 140, 000 tons 

is exported overseas through New Jersey ports. Obviously, some 

of that paper is coming from other states. That is why a 

solution to the solid waste problem must be a regional one. A 

newsprint mill located in .New York or Pennsylvania is just as 

helpful in using New Jersey's old newspapers as one located 

here. . 
What are the institutional impediments, if 

increasing the amount of used newspapers that may be 

in the State? 

'There really are none. New Jersey 

any, to 

recycled 

has a 

well-organized private sector of wastepaper brokers. The new . 

newsprint projects underway will provide a big increase in 

demand in the near future. 

Are there any specific administrative or legislative 

measures that may be undertaken to facilitate the growth of 

newspaper recycling? 

We feel that any legislation mandating use will 

restrict a · robust, growing market. The tax ·incentives under 

discussion represent a positive step. Ms. Hardy, the next 

speaker, will discuss possible administrative measures that 

could help. 
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Newspaper recycling is alive and well, and it is 

growing faster than you think. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. Any 

questions? Mr. Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Yes. As the sponsor of several 

bills that I don• t think the publishing industry thought much 

of, I• ve got some real concerns on the market, as I expressed 

earlier. I met with Sandy a couple of times, I think, on 

recycling issues. I think in the last session we postponed a 

bill based on how we were going to proceed, to see if we could 

make some progress with increasing the amount of recycled paper. 

Somewhat frustrating to me is the Los Angeles Times at 

87% recycled paper. I wonder where they are sourcing their 

paper versus what we are doing on the East Coast. But when you 

look at the East Coast numbers, you know, we are significantly 

lower than what is going on on the West Coast. I assume they 

are sourcing out of Canada al so. I don· t know the wood pulp 

versus :the recycled paper processing capital investments, but · 

it struck me as to. whether the Los Angeles Times source of 

recycled paper -- whether it is out of Los Angeles or out of 

the Canadian market. 

I think the bottom iine, when you sort of think 

through that whole process -- and it takes time to convert 

capital facilities, plug all the variables in, transmission and 

problems with utilizing recycled paper, and so on and so 

forth-- It gets down to the point where how we are subsidizing 

recycling the paper-- We are doing it by a tax on recycled 

products and grants back to municipalities. But I think that 

on an overall cost basis, ~hat is a fairly small fraction of 

what the counties and municipalities are spending on their . -
recycling.programs for newsprint. 

If nothing else responds to some attractiveness in 

that market -- and that market is pretty bleak right now from a 

price standpoint-- A lJt oi municipalities and counties are: 
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paying -- now, you can correct me if I am wrong -- to get rid 

of their newsprir..t. I think that is more commonplace than 

someone getting paid. 

What you end up going back to, I'm sure, wouldn't be 

very attractive to the newspaper industry, doing what we 

propose to do. In fact, I was the sponsor of a bill last year 

which with plastics -- to put a container charge on plastics of 

two cents. I don't see newspapers as any different than 

plastics. I think we might be looking, if we don't get more 

attractiveness in this market, at a similar situation where you 

just tax the generator of the problem that the municipalities 

are saddled with in recyc 1 ing. ·Put a couple of cents on a 

newspaper, or a penny on a newspaper to aid in getting that 

product handled and returned to the marketplace somewhere. 

I think you have to look at all the potential, but 

that is what you come back to. If you run into these dead ends 

and you say, "Gee, what are we going to do, how are we going to 

solve this waste problem?" and you start running through the 

different options, then basically you say, "Gee, the people who 

are generating this problem re_ally have a responsibility to 

deal with it." You can't shuffle off to the taxpayers, on any 

long-term basis. There ·are transition areas, and I think we 

all recognize that. 

As far as long-term solutions, I think we really have 

to come to grips with how we are going to resolve this in -a 

time frame, because there is a tax ·revel t going on out there 

now, from the local taxpayers' standpoint. We hav·e seen that 

in our school elections. It is really not against the schools; 

it is r.eal ly against increased taxes, because there are more 
. . 

and more demands on local government, and recycling is a large 

one~ 

So, I think that in the whole spectrum of things, we 

have to include that in our thinking. I don't think there are 

any bills around n~w, or I don't know of any pending, but that 
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is certainly out there. If we can't relieve some of this 
pressure on markets-- I think that is our big issue. 
S A N D R A H A R D Y: I am going to be addressing the 
increases that we foresee at this particular time, and I have a 
reference to that effect that will be passed out that gives a 
chart. So maybe I should go ahead with what I'm saying, and 
then I would be interested in your response after that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I would just like to comment, as 
Chairman of the Committee, that I am not sure I feel 
comfortable with your using this Committee as a means of 
promoting taxation, Bob. (laughter) You' re talking too much 
about taxes. We want to stay on the subject. I know you have 
a long interest in it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: The views set forth do not 
necessarily represent the views of this Committee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Yes, I am sure of that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I appreciate your comments and 

all, but--
ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I think to get the whole issue and 

the perspective of where the funding for r_ecycling is really 
coming from-- It really comes from that local real estate tax 
bill. That's the bottom line. Now, unless you look at it in 
the whole context, it is hard to focus on where we have to 
resolve the problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: But what we really want to do 
today is stay in the generic area of what we are doing, insofar 
as cooperative effort with the private sector, with the public 
sector, in promoting recyc 1 ing as a real institution and part 
of our lives in New Jersey. We are really not addressing 
legislation. What we have, of course, before the Committee-­
There are responsible legislators who introduce bills 
addressing an increase in obligation of the newsprint industry 
to use a certain amount of recycled newsprint, but that is not 

really on th' tabie today. We really want to hear from private 
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i~dustry as to what they are doing, and we want to measure the 
progress and the success of the program as it moves along. 

MS. HARDY: I am Sandra Hardy. I am a member of the 
American Newspaper Publishers Association Newsprint Task Force, 
as well as Chairman of the New Jersey Press Association Task 
Force. I mention that because my focus is more nationwide, as 
opposed to Mark's, which was more centered in New Jersey. We 
are doing that because the solving of the newsprint problem is, 
in fact, a worldwide, as well as a nationwide issue. 

I was very impressed with the report from your ·state. 
We have had good cooperation in the past, and I am very 
grateful for that. I think it is impressive, the record of 
what New Jersey has done. It is a pleasure to be here. I 
appreciate your taking the time to review and discuss the issue 
with us. 

I hope the general public, the government, and 
publishers have the same goal, which is to keep the valuable 
used newsprint resource from entering the solid waste stream. 

As Mark mentioned, New Jersey has been a leader, both 
in having this country's first recycling newsprint plant and 
also in developing early source separation laws. We owe to 
you, our representatives, the awareness and motivation of 
increased publisher participation in the recycling arena. 

It may seem unbelievable that publishers initially 
were unaware of their inv.olvement in the solid waste 
development, but we knew we were recycling our own waste. Many 
of us were using recycled newsprint, and there was no excess 
recycled newsprint on the market. Of the 35% that was 
recycled, only one-third was put into newsprint and two-thirds 
were put into other products. 

Many of us did not understand the difference between a 

landfill and a dump. Knowing that newspapers were safe and 
biodegradable, we were unaware that 68% was accumulating in a 

dry landfil 1
., but felt it was dissolving in the garbage 
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stream. However, 
legislation, and 

gubernatorial requests for voluntary goals, 
proposed legislation from various states 

catapulted us into action. We supported research through our 
own staff, as well as outside consultants. The investigation 
confirmed that recycling of discarded newspapers was safe for 
the environment, was capable of producing a quality comparable 
to virgin newsprint, was cheaper to produce, assuming lower 
energy costs and reasonable shipping costs, and was acceptable 
to subscribers, if they were educated. 

We were concerned about the waive of legislation 
requiring the use of specific quantities of recycled newsprint, 
because, first, newsprint with a mandated quota was simply not 
available; and second, regulation of newsprint use, or the 
market can lead to regulating what we feel is vital to 
maintaining a democratic society -- this nation's free press. 
The high level of .35% recycling of used newsprint occurred 
voluntarily in a free market, because it was economically 
advantageous to do so; to use a co.llected, partially processed 
raw material. However, it took 20 years. 

To rapidly increase the current r·ate requires both a 
marke~ and a dependable supply of clean, well separated, cost 
competitive raw material. In September of 1989, to help create 
a market for old newspapers through increased recycled 
newsprint production, the American Newspaper Publishers 
Association developed a policy urging publishers to use as much 
recycled newsprint as was available, and to request more .from 

their suppliers. 
In November 1989, the New Jersey Press Association 

followed along and did a similar policy. National and Stat~ 

associations supported the policies with intensive publisher 
education programs. Publ~shers not only requested more 
recycled paper, but in many instances they told suppliers that 
future contracts for newsprint would depend upon the supplier's 
ab i 1 i ty to pre ride recycled paper. News pr int compa '.lies have 
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responded, as Mark mentioned. The capacity is increasing at a 

rate even faster that we thought possible. We believe this has 

occurred for two reasons: 

First, the research and infrastructure for recycling 

used newspaper existed; and second, because of the rapid 

response of publishers to create demand. As you can see from 

this graph -- and I hope you have it by now; it is on a yellow 

sheet of paper to make it easier to identify -- entitled, 

"Recycled Newsprint Capacity in North America": "The supply is 

expected to increase by 125% over the 1989 figure. The 

capacity will move from 2.04 million to 4.6 million short tons 

by 1992." The 150% figure you see on your chart refers to an 

increase from 1983, so there is a very clear escalation there 

based on our going back to suppliers and creating a demand. 

In conjunction with Earth Day and our national 

convention, ANPA urged publishers to use the recycled newsprint 

for as much as 28% of their consumption. In other words, we 

encouraged newspapers to continue to use as much recycled . 
newsprint as the North American mills are capable of 

producing I I have a press release attached to your chart for 

your benefit. This graph has been developed using only 

projects that have provided ANPA with the results of completed 

engineering studies and start-up dates. The recent 

announcement by the Jefferson Smurfit group for a new recycling 

mill in the Northeast is not included, because a start-up date 

is yet to be announced. 

However, we expect the project to proceed, and it will 

provide another 275, 000 short tons of recycled paper, and it 

will consume another 330, 000 short tons of used newspapers. 

Twenty-three other North Americran mills are investing in 

feasibility studies, .and again, the list is provided for your 

convenience. However, for these manufacturers to feel 

comfortable enough to continue to increase the supply of 

recycled news~rint, they need reliable data on collection 
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rates. This is the comment that !tiary was referring to. Some 

newsprint suppliers tell us that their current projections 

indicate a possible shortage of used newspaper in five to ten 

years. With no hard data and a lack of history of America's 

ability to maintain high recovery rates, these manufacturers 

are hesitant to invest in deinking and recycled newsprint 

facilities. 

The ANPA is currently funding a Franklin Associates 

Study of National Reporting and Recovery Rates. Knowledge of 

current collection practices is critical to ensure that 

additional recycling capacity adds to the solid waste removal, 

rather than simply diverting ONP from current markets. We will 

report the Study's findings as soon as they are available. 

From ANPA' s information, New Jersey has one of the 

nation's best reporting systems, and yet New Jersey's 

information comes only from cooperating municipalities. 

Private brokers, from what I understand, do not report to the 

State. Perhaps if there is a licensing requirement, 

qualification could be tied to an annual reporting cycle which 

could be used by newsprint companies. 

In addition, we need to be sure that we are collecting 

and preparing a -resource in a manner that best suits its end -­

reuse. Potential purchasers need to be directed to a central 

information system that can fu.rther direct them to recycling. 

agents who are able to comply with manufacturing 

specifications. Perhaps New Jersey could develop or sponsor a 

program to gather buyers and sellers together for an 

opportunity to meet, make contacts, and to share educational 

information to help both in the new commodities market that the 

State recycling centers have created. 

There is another major area of concern and Mary 

touched on this, so maybe it is not as much as it was even a 

week ago. This is a topic, by the way, that seems to change 

almrst by the hour. That is the newspri~t that goes into the 
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third class mail stream. Our competitors are not under 

pressure to use recycled newsprint or to pay for the cost of 

retooling to increase the supply of recycled paper. The 

current and proposed third class rate structure was designed to 

provide a strong incentive for increased volume. This will 

continue to produce newsprint solid waste over which publishers 

have no control. 

Current technology only permits 1 imi ted quantities of 

slick paper to enter the recycling stream. This limit, for the 

most part, is already included in products inserted and 

recycled with the newspaper package. I might add that I had a 

discussion with Mary a week ago,· and she asked me to mention 

that in particular, because it had been a concern. As I said, 

she addressed it today. It may be less so now. 

To help to prevent landfill disposal of used 

newspapers in areas where a depressed price has prevented the 

sale; newspapers are working with local communities and their 

farmers. In two-and-a-half months, one newspaper-sponsored 

program in a medium-sized western Pennsylvania community 

distributed over 57,000 tons of old newspapers to dairy 

farmers. Prisons are already using ONP for animals in New 

Jersey I and, if necessary, New Jersey publishers in farming 

communities will also participate. 

Unfortunately, to date, the only real indicator we 

have to monitor supply has been the pric$ paid for ONP. Two 

recycling trade publications and a Maryland State study report 

report that there ·is no longer an oversupply. Stories in The 

Wall Street Journal and recycling publications indicate that 

the price will now begin to rise. 

We. believe the excess used newspaper problem has been 

solved. We are· simply experiencing the inevitable time lag 

required for increasing production capacity. The newspaper 

publishers' problem is one of misperception. People are 

unaware of our efforts. To inform the public about our concern 
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and/or our activities, we have begun an extensive promotion 

campaign. We participated in Earth Day activities and have 

provided ads for member newspapers, and State associations are 

collecting and sharing ads done by newspapers across the 

country. Again, you have samples. 

Excuse me, I need some water. 

they always have it. 

(coughing) Gee, at C&M 

ASSEMBLYMAN 

budget this year. 

someone for water) 

McENROE: 

(laughter) 

We're working on a 

Sorry, I apologize. 

limited 

(sends 

MS. HARDY: It's a precious commodity; I know that. 

I' 11 show you my tee shirt in the meantime. We are going to 

this extent. (holds up tee shirt) I had hoped to give you all 

some, but they sold out at our national convention. They are 

very popular, and newspapers are getting on the bandwagon. 

We will all continue to work on new ideas, ~nd will 

continue to promote recycling .. Newspaper participation has 

been as active here as it has been in creating demand for 

recycled newsprint. Newspapers want to continue to be good 

citizens in their communities. It is possible that with the 

projects already begun, the ONP supply will be consumed. There 

is a 15% to 20% waste factor with each recycling. In addition, 

scheduled newsprint increases doubled greater than one-third of 

what was already recycled, and other ONP uses are continuing to 

grow. For instance--

MR .. NEWHOUSE: (Mr. Newhouse continues Ms. Hardy's 

statement here due to her being unable to stop coughing) For 

instance, there is a new recycled used newsprint boxboard plant 

scheduled to. be announced soon. Further, we will always have a 

need for virgin fiber. A New York State Task Force reports 

that 50% virgin fiber will be required in the recycling 

stream. Land is one of America's best assets. I feel that 

managed forests provide an excellent use for that land. This 
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long-term agricultural crop offers advantages identical to the 
virgin forest. 

Managed forests provide jobs for researchers and 
caretakers, as well as cutting teams. They provide a home for 
birds and other wildlife, a recreational area for families, and 
a lush green area that filters heavy metals from the air and 
provides oxygen to our atmosphere. And, finally, the hundreds 
of thousands of forested acres owned and planted by newsprint 
companies provide a revenue stream. This revenue protects 
these woodlands by offsetting the temptation.for owners to sell 
land to developers. We should preserve as much virgin forest 
as possible. However, in addition, the long-term agricultural 
crop of trees that become paper ?an be traded for good value to 
countries which are overpopulated and have limited arable land. 

We believe we have stimulated free market projects 
that will balance the demand for used newspaper with the 
supply. As current projects come ·on-line and our monitoring of 
the so 1 id waste st ream is in p 1 ace, we wi 11 adjust for any 
imbalance. Newspaper publishers are corruni tted to cont.inue to 
work with the public and government at all levels to ensure the 
balance that protects our environment and the natural beauty we 
all share. 

Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. Is· there a limit the 

industry has placed on the opportunity, then, for recycling of 
newsprint? I mean, are you indicating that you will still need 
virgin pulp for the preparation of 50% of your material? 

MS. HARDY: I gave that figure because it has been a 
figure.that has been established by research by one of the task 
forces, and there is the possibility that we will require that 

much. That does not concern us, because that deals with 
newsprint. It does not deal with the other uses for recycling 

that occur with paper. But I think it is important that you 
1 nderbtand that it does relate when we are talking about 
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mandatory quotas or mandatory percentage of fiber content, 

because the product itself c~n only have so much recycled 

product, that has been recycled so many times, in order to be 

viable and not see through. 

MR. NEWHOUSE: In other words, you cannot keep 

recycling the same fibers over and over again. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: It loses quality too much, yeah. 

MR. NEWHOUSE: We would just end up with mush. We 

wouldn't be able to make the fiber--

MS. HARDY: They get shorter and weaker with each 

recycling. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. Mr. Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I just have a corrunent on the 

market and the supply/demand issue. I think you could-- Some 

of the studies, I would think, would lead you in a ·different 

direction than the reality,· quite frankly, because_ of a lot of 

the things that are going on in the recycling market. Just 

because there isn't any market for newsprint, people are trying 

all sorts of things to shred it, to inject it into the soil, to 

use it for animal bedding, but they. are all sort of expensive 

processes~ which also need to be subsidized. 

You don't make any money on that process. Even after 

you get it off the curb, you have to put it through a shredding 

process. I don't know of anyone who is really profiting off of 

it. It is a way to dispose of it other than landfilling. But 

I would think, if you could use Ma~y' s off ice as a resource, 

you could line up some people who would be willing to contract, 

on a. long-term basis, very quickly. Counties, I know-- If 

there were a number involved with it, we would certainly be 

anxious to sign a contract. I know there are probably hundreds 

of municipalities in other counties out there that would jump 

at a chance to contract for a long-term waste stream. I think 

that is what you are alluding to. 

MS. HARDY: You would be unique. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Recycling is like the chicken and 

the egg. You need a commitment for sornecne to buy it; you need 

a commitment from the source; and you need for the manufacturer 

to invest capital dollars in producing the product. But I 

think all the pieces are there. I don't think there is any 

question about that. It is just tapping the right resource to 

get to where the generation really is, but there is a 

horrendous amount of generation going begging right now for a 

market. 

MS. HARDY: I know it is, right now, but even in 

Pennsylvania, where Laidlaw (phonetic spelling), who is 

affiliated with Canadian Pacific -- this is one of the mills 

that is going on-stream -- has tried to contract with the 

communities there for a 20-year contract. They were unwilling 

-- the communities were unwilling -- to sign those contracts, 

because they felt that the price would perhaps go greater than 

what Laidlaw was willing to pay, looking at the market today. 

So, to date, they have not been able to work out an 

arrangement. That has been going on for a number of months. 

We were very hopeful when we saw that. We thought that a 

municipality would, in fact, jump at that. Even in areas of 

Pennsylvania that are going to fa·rmers, they are paying at 

least $15 a ton. That is still less to them than the price 

paid for straw in Pennsylvania and, in fact, they are doing all 

the processing. The communities are not doing it. 

We have started some pi lot projects where they are 

putting in facilities to do the processing for the farmers, but 

they have only been pi lot projects. In many instances, the 

farmers have their own equipment and are willing to pay 

certainly more than zero. 

I agree with you that the market is there. We have 

had no experience and no solid success in being able to 

contract with the newsprint companies. Perhaps we can try New 
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Jersey. I certainly wi 11 get back to the people from Canadian 
Pacific and offer that. 

ASSEMBLYMA...N SHINN: One of the concerns that 
municipalities and counties have-- If you go back three years 
in the market, probably at a high point of maybe $37 a ton down 
to paying $19 or $20 a ton, trying to pick a number without 
some reference point for escalation is a high risk business, 
because basically they are subsidizing that collection. So, 
the sensitivity on the long-term market is strictly by, you 
know-- If they sign a 20-year contract at $10 a ton and the 
price goes to $40--

MS. HARDY: Laidlaw was offering $25. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: --they are subsidizing something 

that they don't have to. So you really need an escalator 
reference in that market number. 

MS. HARDY: It is very hard. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: We can't use prime, because it is 

not effective, but some reference number that would adjust the 
rate--· 

MS. HARDY: They did actually change it. They were 
offering initially $20 or $25, and then when they had a problem 
with the municipalities, they came back and offered a cost of 
living increase -- or, I mean, a cost of ~nnual rate increase, 
and the communities· were still unwilling to participate. That 
surprised us all, but I don't know a lot of the ins and outs. 

Jefferson Smerfit tried to do a venture project with 
Waste Management, in order to combine collection and 
production. While they are still talking, they no longer have 
a venture program set up. So, again, apparently there are real 
difficulties in coordinating transportation and pickup with 
getting.it to the right place at the right time, and being able 
to satisfy everybody in terms of price. 

That is one of the reasons I suggested the forum, or 

some way that-- We need to know what those problems are; I 
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think you need to know what they are, so that we can solve that 

issue. Clearly it is a frustration for the communities. In my 

opinion, it is a frustration to the newsprint manufacturers, as 

well, and these are not our studies. These are highly 

expensive studies that these newsprint mills are paying for, 

and finding that there is probably going to be no supply in the 

five- to ten-year period. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. One conunent you made 

regarding the glut coming somewhat to an end very shortly-- Do 

you have any measurement of that? I mean, are we going to 

expect the glut on the market to exist for another two years, 

or three years? 

MR. NEWHOUSE: The handout you got this one 

(holding it up) -- is a trade publication for the used paper 

market. It is dated last week. The lead article quotes some 

experts saying they expect the price to rise by the end of this 

year. 

MS. HARDY: I have one as well, and also in this other 

package, there is a New York Times article which refers to the 

time frame and, in addition, even more practical than that,. I 

had· a meeting yesterday with one of our papers, and we are now 

selling our waste again. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Very good. 

MS. HARDY: For a good amount, so, it 1 s back. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: One other comment before you 

leave: On the chart, where you indicated before that there has 

been such a growth in recycling-- Will we expect that curve to 

move upward? 

MS. HARDY: Continue to go upward? 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Is there a prediction there that 

by the year 2000 there will be--

MS. HARDY: The continuation clearly is within the 

hands of the 23 other mills that are listed on your chart. It 

goes back to being able to assure them that there will be a 
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supply in our minds. There are some which I think wi 11 go 

forward just on the economics, but we have no real commitments 

to that effect. 

MR. NEWHOUSE: Well, each additional project that is 

announced makes the remaining ones have a bigger question about 

whether the supply will be there. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Well, thank you very much. You 

know, I appreciate fully the sensitive area when you find a 

Legislature, a governing body, involving itself in the supply 

of newsprint to a free press. I appreciate your corning before 

us today and commenting. I do believe that in my own 

experience in the meetings I have held with the Task Force that 

there is a sense of responsibility and a genuine effort to 

coordinate your _activities with those of the Legislature. We 

have an obligation -- we are in the law-making business ~- but 

there is no need for restrictive legislation, when we have­

cooperation from a public entity such as the publications area. 

We expect your cooperation. We have had it; it will 

continue. We hope that the communications that currently 

exist-- We hope you will avail yourselves of the expertise the 

Department has, in order that all of us can reach our common 

goal. So, thank you very much. We appreciate it. 

MR. NEWHOUSE: Thank you, too. 

MS. HARDY: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We wi 11 move along. · Next we 

will have, representing the New ·Jersey Glas·s Recycling 

Association, Executive Director, Mr. Mel Hintz, please. 

Good morning, gentlemen. We have three individuals: 

Mr. Charles Miller, Mr. Mel Hintz, and Mr. Rodger Wangerien. 

Is that correct? 

MEL HINTZ: That's correcit. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Welcome. You may proceed. 

MR. HINTZ: Thank you. Chairman McEnroe, 

distinguished members o~ the Cammi ttee: Thank you very much 
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for giving the New Jersey Glass Recycling Association the 

opportunity to appear before this Committee to discuss glass 

recycling in New Jersey. 

Permit me first to give you a brief background on the 

New Jersey Glass Recycling Association and just what we do in 

the State. The New Jersey Glass Recycling Association was 

founded in the fall of 1986, and officially announced itself at 

a press conference here in this building on December 15 of 

1986. The New Jersey Glass Recycling Association does not buy 

or sell glass. Its sole purpose is to promote glass recycling 

in New Jersey, and to assist the State, the counties, and the 

municipalities in promoting glass recycling programs. 

We work with both public and private schools, from 

kinde_rgart_en through the university level, and with a wide 

range of organizations, including senior citizens, Scouts, 

civic and religious organizations, and environmental groups. A 

few of our activities include creating printed materials, 

newsletters, brochures, and other visual aids on glass 

recycling for the general public; conducting a speakers' 

bureau; conducting annual regional seminars for county and 

municipal recycling coordinators; serving as public relations 

contacts and liaisons with the media, and responding to the 

inquiries and requests-that come in from throughout New Jersey; 

in fact, throughout the United States, and even from around the 

world. 

The Association is sponsored by the New Jersey glass 

industry. Members of the glass companies form the Association 

Board of Directors, and the Association is funded by both 

management and union members of the glass plants. The union 

members take a personal interest in the Association and many of 

them are members of the Glass Awareness Cammi ttee. Committee 

members help to promote glass recycling in their areas and 

volunteer their time to help the Association increase glass 

recycling throughcut the State. Each of the nearly 2800 
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employees in the member plants donates 10 cents for every hour 

they work to help to promote glass recycling in New Jersey. 

How is glass recycling faring in New Jersey? 

According to tonnage grounds figures from the New Jersey Off ice 

of Recycling, New Jersey residents recycled the following 

amounts during the last five years of recorded tonnages: 1984, 

20,861.2 tons; 1985, 25,603.5 tons; 1986, 31,235.5 tons; 1987, 

42,941.9 tons; and 1988, 75,618.1 tons. You wi 11 note that 

during 1987, the year when recycling became mandatory, New 

Jersey residents turned in some 43 tons of glass to be 

recycled. But in 1988, the first full year of the program, and 

the latest year from which we have figures, the tonnage leaped 

to more than 75,000 tons. That is an increase of 76.1% in one 

year. Because last year -- 1989 -- these existing programs 

were even further developed, and because additional counties 

and municipalities ended the mandatory recycling program, all. 

indications are that the recycling figures for 1989 will be 

even more impressive. 

But that is not all. The 75,000 tons listed for 1988 

include only the glass that was source separated at curbside or 

at municipal recycling centers. The tonnage grounds for 1988 

do not, by law, include the glass that was recycled in 

commingled programs. State Office of Recycling figures 

indicate that an additional 47,273.4 tons of glass were 

connected through commingled recycling programs in 1988, as 

opposed to only 12,519 tons from '87's commingled program. 

This now brings the glass recycling tonnage for '88 to over 

122,000 tons. 

As a third item, the Office of Recycling also lists a 

category of disallowed tonnage, or underr.eportings; that is, 

recycled materials that are collected but not recorded. That 

would include, for example, commercial businesses that recycle, 

but do not want to be bothered with the paperwork. Disallowed 
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tonnages could include up to an additional 4000 or 5000 tons of 
glass, which would then bring the figures well over 125,000 

tons. 
But even without counting those figures in the f ina 1 

category, the '88 tonnage would still stand at nearly 123,000 

tons. That is more than 67,000 tons more than was recorded in 
'87, and more than 18,000 more tons than were predicted for '88 

in the Irwin P. Sharpe Report. Now, what is the Irwin P. 
Sharpe Report? That is a study that the Glass Packaging 
Institute and the New Jersey Glass Recycling Association 
contracted Irwin P. 
conduct in New Jersey. 

The purpose 

Sharpe and Associates of West Orange to 
That was completed in November of '88. 

of this study was to identify the 
percentage of container glass that is being recycled in New 
Jersey. Due to the availability of information on glass that 
was being recycled at that time, the time frame of the· study 
covered 1987, and by projection based on figures for the first 
four months of 1988. We will submit a copy of that report to 
the Committee. 

Briefly, however, the result of the comprehensive 
study indicates that 350,000 tons of glass containers were sold 
in New Jersey in 1987, and that 14.3% of the glass was 
recycled. Based on the recycling data for the first four 
months of 1988, the report estimated that at least 25% of the 
glass containers would be recycled for the full year of 1988. 

Now, there are no glass container statistics for '88, 

but if we keep the same figure -- 350, 000 tons- of containers 
for New Jersey -- the glass recycling figure for '88 is more 
than 35%, or 10% above the 25% solid waste mandate. Even if we 
increase the figure of glass containers sold in New Jersey in 

'88 by 5%, the glass recycling rate would still be at 33.5%. 

Now, these percentages are not laurels upon which to rest, but 
they do indicate that New Jersey residents are supporting the 

recycling program. 
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Can the New Jersey glass industry absorb all this 
recycled glass? Let's look at the market. As far as the New 
Jersey market for recycled glass is concerned, it is a very 
good market. It is a stable market. The prices have remained 
consistent with those in effect prior to mandatory recycling in 
the State. The glass industry has a ready market for more 
cullet or recycled glass. 

At this point, the New Jersey glass industry averages 
close to 35% cul let in the batch. That is up from some 25% 
last year. How high a percentage can the glass industry use? 
It would be much happier to have percentages ranging up to 60% 
to 70% or higher, but it can only use as much quality cullet as 
the public supplies, and it uses all that it buys 

It is interesting to note that the glass recycling 
program provides the opportunity for materials to be collected 
in New Jersey, processed in New Jersey, recycled into new 
containers in New Jersey, filled with a product in New Jersey, 
and sold again in New Jersey. How many other industries can 
make that claim? 

A·re there any specific administrative or legislative 
measures that may be undertaken or enacted to f ac i 1 i tate the 
growth of glass recycling in New Jersey? Certainly the glass. 
industry would_ look with favor and would support any measures 
that will advance the cause of recycling in the State. 

Although the New Jersey Glass Recycling Association 
does not involve itse~f with the manner in whic~ the counties 
and municipalities collect their recyclables, the figures will 
show that those municipalities with a color-separated, curbside 
collection glass recycling program send a far higher perce~tage 
of cullet to the glass factories for recycling than those 
municipalities- which ·Opt for commingled programs. The higher 
percentage of broken, color-mixed glass that inevitably results 
from commingled programs precludes its use as a raw material in 
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the manufact~re of new glass containers. So there is a problem 
with what to do with color-mixed cullet that cannot be used by 

the glass container industry. 
There are at least two possibilities. The New Jersey 

Legislature may want to consider legislation to use mixed waste 
glass in.these two product areas, rather than have it sent to a 
landfill: 1) mandate the use of glass aggregates for asphalt 
and road surfacing and as a sub-base in road construction; 2) 
include crushed glass in site drainage and change building 
codes to include crushed glass in French drains. 

Do the citizens of New Jersey support the mandatory 
recycling program? Let me close with a simple fact: Last 
year, the New Jersey Glass Recycling Association presented its 
annual glass recycling award to the town of Haddonfield for 
leading New Jersey by recycling 65.2 pounds of glass per capita 
for 1987. This year, we presented an award to the municipality 
of Brielle in Monmouth County for its outstanding 
color-separated, curbside program that recycled 117_.4 pounds of 
glass per capita for 1988. And we presented a second award to 
the. small municipality. of Stone Harbor in Cape May County, 
which collect;ed, with the help of a very large and a very 
thirsty sununer population, 411.3 pounds of glass per capita 
during 1~88. With good reason, the New Jersey Glass Recycling 
Association salutes the people of New Jersey. 

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee, thank you very 
much for giving. our Association the opportunity to present this 
information at this hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much, Mr. Hintz. 
A question I have on the-- Your figures are impressive, but we 
do have 11 miliion tons of waste in New Jersey. The recycling 
tonnage .for 198.8 is 122, 000 tons. That is a long way from 11 

million. Are glass bottles just that small percentage of the 
waste stream? What is the percentage of glass bottles in our 

waste stream? Does anyone have that figure? 
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MR. HINTZ: I think the figure that is usually used is 

8%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Eight percent? 

MR. HINTZ: Yes, and these figures come from the State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Let's see, 8% of 11 million tons 

would be quite a substantial number over a million tons of 

waste that would then be glass. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Eight-hundred-and-80 thousand. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Eight-hundred-and-80 thousand, 

and yet the recycling figure that you present for 1988 -- the 

tonnage-- The total tonnage is 122,891. 

c H A s. M I L L E R: Mr. Chairman, I am Chas. Miller, 

Director of Recycling for the Glass Packaging Institute. The 

Stat_e figures showed 3. 5% of the waste s·tream is glass. What 

we did was a shelf study, which is explained in the packet of 

materials you got, where we went to the retailers and the 

wholesalers and distributors throughout the State, to try . to 

determine how much glass is actually available for sale within 

the State of New Jersey. That study came up with the figure 

350,000 tons. We believe that is a fairly accurate figure for 

the amount of glass containers that are available in New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. Any questions from 

the Committee? - (no r~sponse) Gentlemen, we appreciate. your 

comments. It appears, of course, from our own review of 

recycling, that the glass industry has been cooperative. 

MR. MILLER: Mr. · McEnroe, if ·I might add one or two 

points: Rodger Wangerien, from the Owens-Brockway plant in 

Freehold, would like to make one or two comments about the 

actual manufacturing process. 

R 0 D G E R W A N G E R I' E N: Just briefly, in trying to 

address the needs ·of the Committee and the needs of the 

industry in the recycling of glass, yes, we have had some 

successes, but those successes were not achieved overnight. If 

anything, certainly they could not have been achieved without 
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the effort that went into the original legislation; that is, 

the activity of the Office of Recycling, the activities on the 

part of the county coordinators, and the activities on the part 

of the municipal coordinators. 

Certainly, to look at a mandated situation and what 

vast amounts of materials would suddenly come on-stream, was 

approached with some trepidation. Fortunately, that did not 

happen. The people of New Jersey responded to that 

preparation, to that anticipation, with providing us with a 

very good quality. The growth and development of those 

programs-- When we first started out, we were dealing with 

individuals who wanted to become recyclers from a financial 

standpoint. Glass still remains a viable financial source of 

income for businesses. Charity groups use it as a form of 

fund-raisers, and now municipalities have opted to do their own 

programs, rather than joining into some other collective type 

programs. 

So, there seems 

convenience and compliance 

collected. But if ihere is 

is to acknowledge the roles 

to be a trade-off between the 

and the method in which it is 

anything the Legislature can do, it 

that these recyclers play, whether 

they be county programs, municipal programs, or individuals in 

the collec~ion and separation of the material and getting it to 

our market. 

Some of the things that we have done in Freehold in 

order to anticipate it are: We have installed a new truck 

scale. We ·have made additional storage facilities. We have 

made major improvements on the processor; that is, we have 

attempted to remove some of the metal contaminants caused by 

lids and snap rings. ·We have also reopened a rail line that 

was previously used a number of years ago, to be able to get 

some of the colored materials to the markets where they can be 

melted. 
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During 1989, there was no surplus or backlog of the 

matPrial. The demand for flint c~llet remains very strong, and 

an increasing supply is important to our industry. We 

experienced, during 1989, a severe weather problem -- if you 

can remember out in the West, which caused the glass 

industry some severe shortages of raw materials. At that time, 

it clearly demonstrated the need for a strong, viable supply of 

cullet. At that time, Freehold was very fortunate to be able 

to maintain our operation at full level due to the ability to 

get our hands on clean cullet. 

Perhaps the issue most pressing is the quality of the 

glass that we receive. It is· the critical issue in recycling.~ 

The industry has the potential to recycle 100% of our post 

consumer bottles and jars. The technology-- We can send 

out-- We represent not only what we melt here in Freehold, but 

we are part of a company that uses glass throughout the United 

States. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Wangerien, the question of 

mixed cullet-- What does it have to be separated? Why can't 

it be mixed? 

MR. WANGERIEN: We cannot take. the color out of the 

glass once it is manufactured, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And there is no acceptable way 

of mixing those recycled--

MR. WANGERIEN: Well, there is a 

clear or flint glass for certain packages. 

demand for amber packaging and for· green 

put that chemically into the glass, it 

becomes inert . We could come out with 

consumer demand for 

There is a consumer 

packaging. Once we 

there and remains 

some 

There are certain levels, and we have 

municipalities on those levels, accepting those 

can which allow them to attempt to handle it. 

into difficulty is if--
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ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Because the more convenient we 
make recycling, the more cooperation we will have. 

MR. WANGERIEN: Exactly. 
MR. MILLER: Part of the problem we have, Mr. McEnroe, 

is that unfortunately our customers don't want to buy the color 
of the day. They have very specific standards for clear 
containers and amber containers and green containers, and as an 
industry we have to meet those requirements, or not be able to 
sell the product. 

MR. WANGERIEN: I think the issue there, particularly 
as Mr. Hintz talked to earlier about the need for an 
alternative to the -- I am going to call them "dregs," fOt" want 
of a better word -- that is, the mixed material, the material 
that has contaminants in it, that canriot be recycled because it 
has contaminants in it-- What we had seen before, was that 
suddenly in New Jersey a market opened up for mixed cullet, but 
that was a smal 1 market, and many towns opted to go to that 
market. Therefore, we had a t~emendous glut, and the State had 
all this mixed material we couldn't get rid of. 

A good color-separated product, free of ·contaminants, 
can be made into a new package without any deterioration. We 
can continue to do that with a total closed loop situation in 
the manufacturing progress. So, really, the future of a closed 
loop system depends on maintaining those programs that are 
going to put out a pure product. 

As we recycle-- I didn't want to skip over the issue 
of contamination, I'm sorry,· because it is such a critical 
issue. What we have seen in the contamination is the influx of 
ceramics, pottery, gravel, rocks, tempered glass, light bulbs, 
and windshields coming in from programs. The number of 
programs we dealt with about four or five years ago came to us 

with a great deal of education, and the need to understand the 
market's requirements for quality control. They put out a 
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package and they have never, to my knowledge, had any problem 

marketing their material. 

As we went to a lot of intermediary processors who do 

accept commingled -- and there is some contamination in the 

commingled fortunately, or unfortunately, we know the 

quality control risks in the minds of the people. It is when 

you put it out on the cµrb, if you can keep the lid off it, 

keep the ceramic closures off the containers, keep those 

materials out of it when you put it out on the curb, that will 

go further than any technology that is not there yet to remove 

those types of contaminants. 

And New Jersey citizens historically do that. They 

have responded extremely well. The material that I get from a 

community like a Brielle or a Cape May or some of the other 

communities is as pristine as we would get from the best 

recycler in the business. 

The other issue I think you touched upon earlier, Mr. 

Chairman, was the educationa_l issue. That is the key. We have 

a responsibility, and we work in cooperation with the State; we 

work in cooperation with other industries ·to provide that 

education. We have had seminars for the county coordinators. 

We have had seminars for public works officials, haulers, 

anyone who is going to be involved in it, so that they 

understand the market. We will continue to do that. 

Perhaps one of my most enjoyable activities is going 

to the schools. It's true, there a~e a great many people out 

there who do not recognize recycling. But when I first went to 

the first school I went to, about 10 yeel:rs ago, I don't think • 

there was a child in the room who knew that a glass package was 

recyclable. I just came back from a PTA meeting last year in 

Mr. Hintz.' s county, where those people not only understood that 

a glass package was a recyclable package, but they were also 

very cognizant of the solid waste issues facing the State of 

New Jer~ey. 
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I believe the citizens of New Jersey have embraced the 

issue. I think we've got to walk that next step, which is the 

next 50%, and that is going to be harder than the first 50%, 

because the first 50% were very community minded. With the 

next 50%, we are going to have to do a lot of work, but we are 

here to help. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. 

MR. MILLER: Mr . McEnroe, if I may add one or two 

points--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Yes, but we would 1 ike to move 

along. Go ahead. 

MR. MILLER: Thank you. ·From 1976 to 1981, I handled 

recycling for the USCPA. In 1978, we did what I think was our 

first recycling seminar, and it was held here in New Jersey. 

Back then what you had was maybe 24 programs across the country 

which did multi-material recycling. Here in New Jersey.you had 

Montclair and one or two other communities. We attracted about 

250 people to that seminar. It .was v~ry successful. I think 

we have seen tremendous changes in the State in the years 

following that. 

Recently I saw some statistics in "Biocycle" magazine 

that showed recycling rates reported by all _ 50 states in the 

country to that magazine. The two highest states happened to 

be Pacific rim states that have absolutely extraordinary export 

markets -- Washington State at a 29% recycling rate, Oregon 

Sta~e at a 22% recycling rate. New Jersey is the third highest 

state at an 18% rate. The next state in this area was Rhode 

Island, with a 13% rate. I thin~ that speaks volumes ~bout 

what a comprehensive recycling law can do in a state, 

especially given the disadvantage New Jersey has for markets 

compared to the Pacific rim states. 

We think very highly of the New Jersey law. We think 

we are going to see much higher numbers in 1989 for recycling 

rc_tes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN McE~~OE: Thank you very much. Any 

comments or questions from the members of the Cornmi ttee? Mr. 

Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Since the bottle bill scenario, I 

think the glass industry has stepped up to the plate, and I 

think that is a tribute to you. I usually chide people about 

recycling and whatnot, but I think-- Obviously, there is more 

for all of us to do, but I think the glass industry has really 

responded well during the past several years, has offered a 

stable market for its product, and has helped in the processing 

from recyclers. I think you have done well. There is a lot 

more to do, as you pointed out, but I think you have 

participated well in the process. 

MR. HINTZ: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. We appreciate your 

time before our Committee. 

We next have on our list Mr. Charles Connelly --

"Chip" Connelly 

Corporation of New 

attendance--

CHARLES E. 

Executive Director, Plastic Recycling 

Jersey. Mr. Connelly, if you are in 

· "C H I P" c 0 N NELLY: I'm here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Do you wish to have anyone with 

you, or will you take us on just as you are? 

MR. CONNELLY: I'll take you on all by myself. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I want to welcome 

Mr. Connelly. I had an opportunity to meet with him earlier. 

The plastics industry is certainly not under fire', but there 

are certainly many questions · relating to its involvement in 

recycling. I know the past years have shown a dramatic 

increase in the interest level within the industry in the 

recycling· opportunities in New Jersey, and we appreciate your 

coming·before us. 

I know if there is one category, or any category that 

we review today with a special concern, it is plastics. There 
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is considerable commitment by the industry toward the 

enhancement of plastic recycling in New Jersey, and we in the 

Legislature are on the threshold, if you ~ill, of consideration 

of a major effort -- major assistance in the area of plastics 

recycling. We know it is a very visible part of our waste 

stream. It is a matter of major aesthetic concern. In the 

area of economics and the environmental aspects of improved 

recycling in New Jersey, plastics are in the forefront. 

So, we welcome you, and hope you have an aggressive 

report for us. 

MR. CONNELLY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I am the 

Executive Director of the Plastic Recycling Corporation of New 

Jersey. That is a nonprofit corporation which is funded by 

local soft drink bottlers and the National Association for 

Plastic Container Recovery, which is an organization composed 

of ·the people who manufacture p-lastic soft drink bottles. We 

began operating in the beginning of 1988. Our activiiies 

include providing assistance to counties and municipalities, as 

well as private sector recyclers in the form of capital 

equipment, public education assistance, marketing assistance, 

and technical assistance. 

When we began operating, our program was over three 

municipalities in New Jersey recycling plastic~ Today, as of 

May 1, there are 233. This covers about three million people. 

Of the curbside collection programs in the State, 35% of them 

now include plastic. 

In those municipalities where there are programs, in 

total the collection rate for plastic soft drink bottles 

which is the kind of material we track -- is 54. 5%. The 

annualized statewide recycling rate, assuming that collection 

continues at the level where it is today for a. year, will be 

13%. So we feel we have made some significant progress in the 

area. 
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In looking at the recycling situation in New Jersey, 

the original Recycling Act required that municipalities recycle 

leaves and three other materials. The three logical materials 

at that time were newspaper, glass, and aluminum. 

Consequently, our efforts were directed toward getting 

municipalities which had established recycling programs to add 

yet another material which was not required by law and, in 

fact, was a light material so it did not impact, in a 

significant way, on their Tonnage Grant Program. We looked at 

the cost of adding plastic bottles to a program. We contracted 

with a company called Temple, Barker & Sloan, which is an 

economic consulting firm in Washington that does a rot of work 

for the Federal Environmental Protection Agency. 

They studied five towns and found that the incremental 

cost to add plastic beverage containers to well-designed 

existing programs was, in fact, enough benefit when the 

avoidance of landfill costs were included. That benefit, on an 

annual basis, in those f.ive communities which were studied, 

ranged from $2600 in Upper Township, Cape May County, to 

$21,000 in Paramus. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Excuse me. So you are 

submitting that there is an economic and environmental profit 

-- benefit to the municipalities? 

MR. CONNELLY: Well, there is clearly an environmental 

benefit. The economic benefit, in a well-designed program,· 

when landfill costs avoidance is included in the equation, is 

there. Now, it is not a large benefit, but it is not a cost. 

In some cases -- it wasn't in the towns that we studied -- it 

may be a cost, but you would logically conclude that it was not 

going to be a large cost, if you look at--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And it is wholly beneficial. 

MR. CONNELLY: --the range we are ~alking about 

economically. I have the study. I have copies of it which I 

will leave with you. 
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We also looked at the attitudes of the public toward 

recycling plastic, because a lot of recycling coordinators will 

say, ., I can't get the residents in my town to add another 

material. It is too much trouble." That is not necessarily 

directed at plastic; that is just a general comment about 

adding a fourth material. 

What we asked them, along with a series of other 

questions about how they felt things were going in the State, 

what the major issues were, and things like that, was a 

question that said there was a bill that would require that 

plastic beverage containers be separated out and be recycled 

just like glass and aluminum beverage containers. The results 

of that opinion survey were that 89% of the people surveyed 

said, "Yes, that is a good· idea." That survey was conducted by 

a company called Market Opinion Research in Washington, , D.C. 

They are nationally known for that type of work, and I have 

copies of that for you also. 

The impediments we have seen -- ·although we belie~e we 

have made significant progress -- are that the law requires 

three materials. A lot of towns are ·doing three materials in 

addition to leaves, and they really don't want to do a four th 

material. Our contention is that you have to go beyond those 

three materials if you are going to meet the objectives of the 

Mandatory Recycling Act, and certainly have to go beyond those 

materials 

levels· of 

if you are 

recycling 

going to 

that are 

within the State government. 

reach .the 

currently 

higher percentage 

being talked about 

The other impediment is that the Tonnage Grant 

Program, of course, is based on weight. Plastic bottles-- The 

primary ·advantage of them is that they are light, and 

consequently they are penalized in comparison with other 

materials by the Tonnage Grant Program. 

There is a bill in the Legislature 

recycling of plastic beverage containers. We 

54 

to require 

su:)port that 



bill. We intend to continue working with counties and 

municipalities, as well as private processors to further the 

recycling of plastic in the State, and we look forward to 

continued progress in meeting these objectives. 

I would be glad to answer any questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Connelly, the impact of the . 
beverage container, the plastic bottle, which is the PET 

container, and the other container that you usually find -- the 

gallon of milk container--

MR. CONNELLY: Yes? 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Are those two, vo 1 ume-wi se 

let's say percentage-wise-- Does that represent 80% or 90% of 

the plastic container -- of plastics in the market? Let's put 

it that way. 

MR. CONNELLY: No. Let' s see-- What we are dealing 

with in the waste stream -- as a couple of people have said 

already-- Plastic is about 7% by weight. Plastic packaging is 

abo~t 4% by weight. In terms of--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: So, in other words, are we up to 

11%, or is it--

MR. CONNELLY: No, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: It's just 4% of the 7%? 

MR. CONNELLY: Four percent of the municipal waste 

stream is plastic packaging. Seven percent is total plastic. 

Now, plastic packaging includes rigid and nonrigid containers-­

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Oh, I see. 

MR. CONNELLY: --so it is beverage containers for milk 

and soft drinks and water and whatever, and soap containers. 

It is nonbeverage plasti~ packaging. So, all plastic packaging 

by weight is about 4%. That is a figure from a study done by 

Franklin Associates for the USEPA in 1986. 

In 1989, they looked at volume on the same basis, the 

same company, and they said that volume plastic was 18%, all 
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packaging 34%, and plastic packaging 9% by volume. Soft drink 

and milk-- Well, plastic beverage containers are probably 

about two-thirds of toi:al rigid plastic packaging, and then 

beyond rigid packaging you have all the shrink wrap and blister 

pack and those other kinds. 

Now, I can't really get it down to exactly what 

percentage--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: 

a mandatory recycling bill 

But, if the Legislature enacted 

limiting it to the beverage 

containers, it would have a substantial impact, then, on the 

volume of waste being disposed of in New Jersey -- if we remove 

that from the waste stream? 

MR. CONNELLY: Yes, I would say so. Yes. It is 

probably a little more than half of the plastic packaging. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Would be in those particular 

containers? 

MR. CONNELLY: Would be in beverage containers, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. Thank you. Questions, 

Mr. Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I guess the question I always have 

is: It is fine to do that mandate and require that, but how do 

we raise the money.to.pay for it? How do we get those programs 

implemented, aside from the cost avoidance issue, which I know 

is--

MR. CONNELLY: Well, I don't think you can do it ·aside 

from the cost avoidance issue. I don't think it is right to 

say, "We' 11 pay the costs, and you get to keep the revenue." 

There are programs where people will accept aluminum, glass, 

and plastic and p~y $12 a ton for it, and then those processors 

sort the material out, process it· in whatever fashion is 

·required, and-resell it into the market. 

We have looked at the collection costs, and the 

indication is that the benefit, or cost, is probably not very 

large one way or the other. I don't thiuk, based on the 
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information we have, that the increme~tal cost of adding 

plastic is a particularly significant cost. There are 233 

towns doing it now. They don't have to do it, but they 

continue to do it. We haven't had any, that I am aware of, 

which have stopped doing it. So I have to believe that if the 

costs were significant to the municipalities, given the climate 

surrounding municipal financing these days, that they would 

stop, or not do it at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: A few have leaned out of some of 

their recycling programs. It seems to me -- it has been my 

experience -- that every year we are just under more and more 

pressure to come up with the dollars, as these markets are 

fading and becoming, "here today, gone tomorrow" -- and more in 

the "gone tomorrow" category, quite frankly; that we struggle 

to get more dollars together to keep programs together. Then 

when you talk about adding a product, which I am 100% in favor 

of , how do we , as a 

the municipalities 

whatsoever, and say: 

program, or to add to 

got to fund it. 

Legislature, mandate it, pass it down to 

and counties, without any subsidies 

"Go do it"? It takes money to start a 

a program. The minute you do it, you've 

MR. CONNELLY: Well, I think there are two issues: 

One is the market issue. I will just comment that the market 

for both of the materials used in beverage containers 

polyethylene teraphalate, PET, which is a soft drink high 

density polyethylene, which is the dairy container-- Water 

containers, basically, are one or the other. The markets for 

those materials are.very strong. I won't go into--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Yeah., that is a part of today's 

hearing, too. We do have people representing the market who 

will come up and I hope offer testimony to substantiate your 

position. 

MR. CONNELLY: There are people who buy this material 

and they are here, so I wi 11 leave the detai ~ s of that to 
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them. But the market for the material 

market has been growing considerably. 

basically a shortage of the material now. 

is strong, and the 

In fact, there is 

In terms of the cost issue, I think the State has a 

responsibility to develop a comprehensive program to deal with 

the solid waste issue, particularly as it relates to 

landfills. And I think decoupling the economics of recycling 

from the savings generated by not having to go into landfills, 

is an inappropriate way to deal with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I'm not saying decoupling. I 'm 

talking about the difference. You can subtract that and you 

end up with the difference, and you just can't ignore the 

difference, because it is a cost. 

MR. CONNELLY: But see, the indications we have in the 

study we have conducted is that there is, in fact, not a 

difference. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I am convinced from the studies 

that I have observed that there is a consuming interest on the 

part of the population of our State with recycling, and that 

they want to be informed about it. They are willing to. 

cooperate. They think the trade-off of municipal costs of 

supporting the recycling efforts are worthwhile. I think there 

is something to be said for the ae~thetics of involving one's 

self in recycling, and I do think there is a ground swel 1 of 

support among most of the people who reach out and try to 

become informed about the importance of recycling to support 

the inclusion of plastic, particularly those two containers, in 

the recycling effort. 

I submit that municipal officials recognize that, and 

the proof, I believe, is in the fact that 233 municipalities of 

the 567 are including plastics as an appropriate part of their 

recycling plans. Again, the large question of markets-- We 

hope to have some comments on that very shortly. 
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Mr. Connelly, we appreciate your comments. I know you 

have worked very carefully in this area developing an interest 

in plastics recycling. That is one specific matter of 

legislation that I think the Committee will have on its agenda 

very shortly the consideration of including plastics, 

particularly those items -- those beverage containers -- as 

part of our recycling -- our mandatory recycling law. 

'Any further questions, Mr. Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: You're doing better, but you have 

a lot more to do. So have we. But, you are coming along. 

MR. CONNELLY: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much for 

appearing here. 

I am just going to ask Peter Yull, Chairman, Mercer 

County Improvemerit Authority-- Would you like to comment, Mr. 

Yull? Come forward, please. Mr. Yull, this is Mr. Shinn of 

Burlington County, myself, and our Committee. Good afternoon. 

PE T E R M. YUL L: Gooq afternoon. I am Peter M. Yull, 

Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of the Mercer County 

Improvement Authority. We are the solid waste management 

agency for Mercer County. We began an extensive countywide 

curbside recycling program last year, and it is nice to note, 

from DEP's presentation this morning, that Mercer the 

Capital County -- is the number one county in recycling, at 

38%, although we are not content with that figure. 

I wish first of all to thank Chairman McEnroe and the 

members of the Cammi ttee for the opportunity to address the 

recycling issue and what I believe is its future in New 

Jersey. Mercer County currently has a long-term agreement for 

trash disposal with an out-of-state landfill. The disposal 

capacity of our cont~act takes into account the eventual 

~eduction of solid waste through the op0ration of Mercer's 

proposed resource recovery facility, to begin operations in 
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1993. 

All of 

We have plans to develop a backup landfill in-county. 

these projects rely heavily on the success of our 

recycling program. 

The Mercer County Improvement Authority, through its 

collection contract with National Waste Recycling of Trenton, 

currently provides curbside collection of recyclables from al 1 

91,000 single-family residences in Mercer County. Collections 

are performed once every two weeks. Shortly, some 5000 

multi-family dwelling units will also begin to recycle, and all 

11,000 commercial establishments should be on-line through 

their own programs or through municipal collections, in the 

near future. 

Our curbside recycling program began last September, 

and already we have a 60% participation rate from residents, 

with the rate exceeding 80% in some of the smaller communities 

in the county. 

yellow plastic 

Commingled materials are placed in 20-gallon 

containers provided by the Mercer County 

Improvement Authority to every single family household. 

Newspapers are tied or bagged in paper bags and are set out 

with the containers. 

We currently recycle all glass, metal and aluminum 

food and beverage containers, PET plastic soda bottles, and ~DP 

milk and water containers. Re~yclables · are sold to 

Distributors Recycling, Inc. in Newark, which processes and 

markets the materials. We receive $12 per ton, less 

transportation costs, for the recyclables. .Newspapers are 

recycled locally through the Homasote Corporation. We 

currently pay $19 per ton to get rid of the paper, but I 

understand that this places us in much better stead than some 

counties, which are paying up t.o $30 a ton. 

As you .know, the State's Mandatory Recycling Act 

requires counties to institute recycling programs ·and achieve 

15% recycling of municipal solid waste by the end of one year, 

and 25% at the end of year two rnd e~ch succeeding year. After 
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just six months, Mercer County has already recycied over 15,000 
tons of material, saving Mercer residents over $1.5 million in 
tipping fees. 

The 
however, that 

Mercer County 
in spite of 

Improvement 
the success 

Authority feels, 
of our countywide 

program, much more could be done. The one thing that seems to 
be holding us and private recyclers back, is the lack of 
markets for the recyclable materials which we have been hitting 
at all morning. It is this dilemma that underscores my primary 
reason for appearing before you today. 

Mercer County, in addition to the previously mentioned 
commingled municipal recyclables, also recycles white goods, 
leaves, and tires. In the past year, in fact, we have recycled 
over 100, 000 tires, representing approximately 1000 tons. In 
spite of this considerable amount of material that we are now 
providing to existing recycling markets, I am frequently asked 
why we do not, or cannot recycle detergent bottles or bleach 
bottles or other types of plastics, or even household batteries? 

The conunon answer is: There is neither no market for 
those materials, or the markets are so limited that they could 
not use the volume of materials we could provide. An 

additional factor is the cost of collecting plastics. Before 
adding additional markets for plastics in particular, the cost 
of collection and transportation, as well as market prices, 
have to be analyzed to see if the additional costs ~arrant the 
addition of new plastics to the recycling stream. I am, to a 
certain extent, just echoing sentiments expressed previously. 

But recycling, after all, is driven by economics. We 
all recogniz~ recycling as an integral part of any effective 
solid waste management plan, but it is only as effective as the 
available technology for the reuse of the recyclable 
materials.· I would suggest to this Committee that we can do 
better, and I would further suggest that the Legislature could 
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help by examining and supporting existing industry and private 

sector initiatives to develop the materials market. The 

Legislature may even further those efforts by providing 

enhancements of its own, perhaps in the form of incentives to 

private industry to not only provide for the reuse of its own 

products and packaging materials, but to establish an open 

market to private and public recyclers who could provide large 

amounts of materials from within New Jersey. 

Let's not kid ourselves: Suggestions of 100%, 90%, 

even 75% recycling of our solid waste are not rational or 

reasonable at this time. Even in Japan, possibly the most 

technologically advanced nation o·n earth -- or so they would 

have us believe -- only 50% of the waste stream is recycled. 

But we can, and must do better than we have been doing. 

Recycling has much more of an effect than just the reuse of 

material. It conserves landfill space. It conserves energy, 

since much less is required to manufacture products from 

recyclable materials than from raw materials. It preserves the 

beauty and safety of our environment, and it is something we 

can all do to help. 

In closing, I cannot stress 

importance of market development. The 

market alone has already added $19 per 

too strongly the 

impact of the paper 

ton to the cost of 

Mercer's recycling program, and that is to a facility located 

within our county. But the Mercer County Improvement Authority 

will not make any specific proposals regarding market 

development, because any proposals ·should address a statewide 

solution, and I have heard from others that it should be a 

region~l solution. There are others with mc:>re expert is~ who 

have done extensive research into market development. Private 

sector input must be solicited in order to develop and bind 

public/private cooperation, and I appreciate the fact that you· 

are soliciting that today. 
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The Legislature should look for assistance from 

recognized recycling organizations, such as the New Jersey 

Recycling Forum. Recycling is working in Mercer County and 

elsewhere in our State, but its success will continue to be 

limited without a private/public joint venture in market 

development. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you, Mr. Yul 1. We 

appreciate your comments and your very comprehensive report, in 

fact. Do you have any comment, Mr. Shinn? (no response) 

We will move now to Mr. James Rouse, Regional Director 

of Public Affairs, Union Carbide Corporation. (no response) 

Do we have Mr. Peter Riemschneid~r, representing the James 

River Corporation; also New Jersey Coordinator for the 

Polystyrene Packaging Council? (affirmative response from 

audience) 

P E T E R R I E M S C H N E I D E R: My name is Peter 

Riemschneider. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Riemschneider, how are you? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: I am an emp 1 oye~ of the James 

River Corporation, which is primarily a paper company, but in 

the d1vision of the Dixie Products Group the Handicup 

Division -- which is the maker of foam food service ware, the 

coffee cups, the food containers. But I am also the New Jersey 

Coordinator for the ·Polystyrene Packaging Council, which is, 

much like some of the other speakers, a trade association that 

has gotten together to promote the public perception and 

understanding of the product, including, among other things, 

the recyclability of the product. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: You manufacture floatables, as 

we call them in the waste stream. Is that correct? Does your 

product float on water? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Yes, certainly, I can address that 

real quick. In some of the programs we have been working on, 
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this actually aids in recapture when there is an existing 

recycling program, because you can actually get it back. It 

does not sink down to the bottom. 

I am going to limit my comments because I had 

anticipated speaking after some of the other speakers from the 

plastics industry. Polystyrene, and especially polystyrene 

foam fruit packs -- food servicing packaging -- is a minute 

component of the solid waste stream. It is one-quarter of 1%, 

so a lot of the difficulty in promoting the recycling of it is 

the same, for example, as some of the 'comments you got from 

Chuck Connelly. Even though it is recyclable, the complaint 

is, "Why is it worth it?" You know, with plastics, for 

example, the volume is greater than the weight. The volume 

ratio to weight starts you having to factor in the 

transportation costs of bringing . it to processing, and with 

polystyrene, especially the polystyrene foam food service, that 

is an even further consideration. 

But, despite that, there has been the commitment made 

on the part of the foam food service industry to recycle 25% of 

all the foam food service used in this country by 1995~ We in 

New Jersey are lucky enough to be in a unique geographic 

situation where two of the major processing plants that are 

either existing or planned will be close enough to us for them 

to become a good market. One of them is ~olystyrene Recycling, 

Inc. in Brooklyn, a subdivision of Amico Food Products. They 

are already currently recycling, I believe, close to a million 

pounds of post-consumer foam food service. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Riemschneider, when you 

mention recycling of your polystyrene products, what do they 

become? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Okay. In general, the industry 

efforts towards recycling the foam food service products is to 

collect them, process them, which ultimately includes 
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densifying, and then selling them as pellets. Very much as the 
glass industry is sel 1 ing cul let, we would be sel 1 ing 
recaptured, reclaimed resin. 

Now, that market is strong. A major buyer of that 
resin is Rubbermaid, down in Winchester, Virginia, and any 
industry publication you read, somewhere along the line, 
usually quotes the fact that they are basically begging for 
anybody that can get post-consumer polystyrene resin, they will 
buy it. They are already including that in a lot of the 
products they make. For example, the four million blue 
recycling containers that the City of New York has ordered from 
Rubbermaid, have a post-consumer recycled plastic content in 
them. I believe currently the polystyrene component of that is 
anywhere from 5% to 10%. They could go, I believe, all the way 
to 25%, without harming the integrity of that product. 

That is also true, for example, for the plastics 
lumber, which is kind of a generic term for plastic commingled 
profile products. I think you probably have some people 
perhaps from the Center for Plastic Recycling Research and 
other people from that industry and area speaking today. But 
some very interesting information has come out of that research 
in the last year or so, which shows that the inclusion of 
polystyrene at higher rates actually improves the integrity of 
that product. Now, polystyrene -- I don't know the numbers off 
the top of my head -- I would guess, is less than 10% of the 
whole plastics resin stream. And yet when you look at the 
plastic profiles -- commingled plastic profiles -- that are 
being made by these processes, you find that including 
polystyrene up to a 50% composition enhances the product, and 
optimal strength for stress and strain when you are using these 
products fo~ construction seems to be 35%. That, to me, 
indicates that as those products become marketed and developed 
and included in the marketplace as something that people 

regularly buy, that demand for the type of resin that actually 
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enhances the quality of the product is going to drive the 
prices of recaptured resins higher. 

There are other markets for polystyrene even before it 
turns into resin, and those are in various developmental 
stages. One example would be the inclusion of recaptured foam 
without densifying in, for example, vermiculite potting soil. 
That has been done for as many years as the industry has 
existed. There is also research being done on artificial 
lightweight soils that include up to 70% to 90% expanded 
polystyrene. These are all programs that have been developed 
by a lot of different people. The Polystyrene Packaging 
Council, the National Polystyrene· Recycling Corporation-- All 
of these groups are relatively new. We are sort of the "new 
kid on the block," when it comes to getting into recycling, and 
a lot of what we are doing is just finding out all the things 
that are out there and pulling them together. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: But you are submitting that 
there is a considerable market for your polystyrene recyclables? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Sure. I think probably the most 
important message that the National Polystyrene Recycling 
Corporation, which was founded by the eight major resin 
manufacturers -- and I brought along a list because I don't 
often remember it-- Tpey include: Amico Chemical, ·Arco 
Chemical, Chevron Chemical, Dow Chemical, Phena Oil and 
Chemical, Huntsman Chemical, Mobil Chemical, and Polysar 
(phonetic spellings). Last July, they announced their plans 
for setting up five additional regional processing facilities, 

with a capacity each of 13 million pounds per year of 

processing polystyrene. They also az:mounced the proposed 

siting areas. They include: Los Angeles, San Francisco, 

Chicago, Portland, and the one that is of most interest to us,. 

the Greater Philadelphia Area. 
Now, I can't announce who or where that is at this 

point, even though I do >it on the sourcing committee for that 
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plant. The principals involved in owni!1g and operating and 

siting that plant naturally deserve the chance to mak~ their 

announcements at the times when they are prepared to do that. 

But we are working aggressively to convince people to include 

polystyrene in collection programs, in order to guarantee the 

13 million pounds per year that is going to be needed to keep 

that plant running. 

The progress that has been made in this specific 

product in the 18 months or less that efforts have been 

directed towards it, I think are very credible. Up in the New 

England area, where a processing plant exists -- it is about a 

year or more older -- they have over 135 schools since last 

month -- 135 schools, 20 corporations, and, as of yesterday, 

when I spoke to a McDonald's representative, 300 or more 

McDonald stores, source separating their polystyrene foam and 

sending it to that plant to be processed. 

McDonald• s has made a commitment to source separate 

their polystyrene and send it on to processing, and they have 

followed through very admirably. In· addition to those 300 

stores in the New England area, I know there are, I believe, 13 

stores in the Long Is 1 and area. They are committed to having 

all 51 stores in the Long Island area source separating. 

I speak regularly with the· representative of that 

corporation who is instituting recycling programs for New 

Jersey, Dorothy Brown. They are committed to including their 

stores from the New Jersey area as quickly as possible, 

obviously in anticipation of having a processing plant near 

enough to be able to bring the materials. 

I work with representatives. from Amico Foam Company, 

which is the owner of Polystyrene Recycling, Inc. in Brooklyn. 

In the past year, they·-- and in some cases I have joined them 

as well -- have made over 35 presentations to either school 

boards or even school districts, you know, with a large number 

of superintendents. to promote the collec.tion of foam food 
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service trays when they are used in the schools. Anyone who 

saw the Time/Warner Earth Day Special, in one of the 1 i tt le 

segments they had they clearly showed school children source 

separating their foam food service trays. There were at least 

six or seven specific mentions to recycling polystyrene. When 

we interviewed the Santa Monica Director of the Recycling 

Center in Santa Monica, directly behind him was the large bin 

that they used in that program for collecting and separating 

polystyrene plastics, in addition to the other ones. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And you are submitting that that 

is a recyclable commodity? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Yes, very much so. As I said, in 

a way, some of the concerns--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Do you have any percentages at 

the present time as to how much of the produced polystyrene is 

finding itself back into recycling? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: That would be kind of tough to 

do. I regularly track how much styrene is sold. A lot of 

polystyrene ends up sold as styrene scrap. That is hard to 

separate into the various forms. The goal is to recapture the 

25% of the foam food service by 1995. What the current 

percentage of everything that is being recaptured is for the 

_ number of programs that exist-- .That would be hard to say. It 

is probably, nationally, above 1% and growing by leaps and 

bounds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: 

product last in the open air? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: 

How long does a polystyrene 

That would depend on who 

manufactured it. There are studies that show that some of the 

foam containers are photodegradable. It would actually 

ultimately depend· on the type of process it was made by. Not 

all polystyrene is made the same way. There is sheet 

extrusion; there is expanded bead-shaped molding. For example, 

with the proc·1ct w-e make, the beads are coated with a powder 
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called zinc stearate, which is the same -- which is related to 
the same stuff used for fillers and vitamins. That pawner is 
going to come apart, so, you know, each different process would 
be different. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: So you're saying-- Would it be 
from 30 days to 30 years? I mean, is there that wide a swing? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: I wouldn't guess that any plastic 
would degrade in the environment in 30 days, appreciably, 
including the ones with the copolymer added. All you are doing 
is making pieces. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: So there is no real degradable 
plastic manufactured at this time? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Well, I wouldn't be the expert to 
speak on that, but I think, in general, the attention to 
degradable plastics was kind of a direction of efforts that if 
you look at the idea of biodegradability. being -- you know, how 
vital is it to reducing the filling up of landfill volume, just 
the fact of the way landfills are constructed increases the. 
chances of even things like food particles and newspapers -­
and I am sure you have heard a lot of testimony on that--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Much of the manufacture of the 
early plastics emphasized that they were indestructible, and 
now we are trying to V?Ork into the equation an opportunity to 
make plastics self destruct. 

·MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Well, the good news is this, and 
this is not just true of polystyrene. Polystyrene gets a lot 
of attention. It is visible. It is an incredibly small 
component of the waste stream, but it is visible. But a lot of 
what is true of other plasti~s, is also true of polystyrene. 
When it is reclaimed and reprocessed, it can be reprocessed 
many times over. For example -- and I think some of the other 
speakers who will follow me will probably show you -- you can 
collect the foam food containers and cups and the various other 
forms -- the clear salad shells and all the cutlery and all the 
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things that are used in food service-- You can collect them, 

have them reprccessed, and make a durable good, whether it is 

desk furniture-- I have some desk furniture in my office that 

is made of 80% recycled post-consumer polystyrene. You can 

make trays out it, coat hangers, and various things like that. 

But the other thing is, once those products are made, 

when they are disposed of, they can also be ground up and 

reprocessed again. And ultimately, just as newspaper-- People 

testified that you can reuse it a certain number of times. 

Ultimately, depending upon the process, the less degraded the 

plastic is when it is reprocessed, the more times it can be 

reclaimed, recycled, and turned into another product. 

Then the final end product that I think everybody is 

looking to for-....: You know, once you have made the recycled 

certain set of resins ·10 times, the entire construction profile 

plastic lumber industry could very well become like an end home 

for all th~ plastics that have been recycled, and no longer 

retain the properties that make them valuable in their 

individual resin types. 

But the key idea is that polys·tyrene really is no 

different from all the other.plastics that are reclaimable and 

reprocessable, and the industry has committed to making the 

reprocessing available. Here in New Jersey it is available 

relatively close. There is the plant in Brooklyn and a future 

plant in the Philadelphia area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Are you contemplating any new 

industry in New Jersey? 

MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: There are a lot of independents 

out there. I have spoken to a number of companies that, in 

part, are waiting to see what happens with the major efforts 

before they jump in. Prior to the commitment of the NPRC to 

build and operate processing plants for reclaimed polystyrene, 

there have been people doing it in the past already. A lot are 

generally geared to·.1ard industrial scrap. It is int:eresting, 
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just in my own plant, we have not landfilled any scrap in over 
four years, and originally we had one or two vendors we could 
sel 1 it to. Just in this past week I was approached by two 
other major companies that are interested in buying our scrap 
-- clean industrial polystyrene scrap. There is no reason for 
any of it to ever be landfilled, because the market is there. 
In a way, people are actually starting to fight for it. It is 
beginning to have that much of a value. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. Do you 
have any questions, Mr. Shinn? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: No, thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We appreciate, Mr. 

Riemschneider, your coming before our Committee. 
MR. RIEMSCHNEIDER: Okay. I hope that some of the 

follow-up testimony by the plastics industry in general-- Just 
keep in mind that this specific resin fits in with all of those 
plans. If there were a comprehensive plastic recycling -­
reclamation program, including curbside, I would hope that 
polystyrene would have room in that. I am working with some 
communities that are seriously looking at adding that to their 
existing plastics programs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. We 
appreciate your coming before our Committee. 

We will now hear from Mr. James Rouse, of Union 
Carbide. Mr. Rouse, will you join us at the table, please? 
J A M E S B. R 0 U S E: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I 
apologize for being out of the room. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Well, we had you in position to 
speak before the prior speaker, but go ahead. 

MR. ROUSE: I apologize. I thought I was going to be 
the last of the plastics speakers. 

I am James Rouse, Regional Director of Public Affairs 
for Union Carbide. I come from Danbury, Connecticut. I am 
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speaking on behalf of our recently inaugurated Recycling Center 

in Piscataway. I am also here to endorse increased plastics 

recycling in New Jersey. 

Union Carbide supports the four-tier solid waste 

strategy adopted by the New Jersey DEP pursuant to legislative 

direction: source reduction, recycling, incineration, and 

landfill. One very important aspect of this overall strategy 

which we are talking about here today, is recycling. 

Traditionally, this has been a public/private partnership 

requiring the cooperation and participation of residential, 

commercial, and industrial entities, but frankly, we really 

need your help to make it work. 

Our 40-million-pound-per-year, multiplastics recycling 

plant to be located in Piscataway will begin operation in 

1991. We chose this location, frankly, because of its 

excellent transportation and its close proximity· to our 

state-of-the-art Polymers Research and Development Center. 

Besides processing rigid containers such as milk jugs 

and soda bottles, this facility will process soap, detergent, 

and cleaning agent containers, as wel 1 as ·flexible wrap, or 

what we call "film." Most of the film is from commercial 

packaging material. We will process the polyethylene and 

upgrade it, using compounding technology that has made Union 

Carbide a leader in the field. We will produce resins that can 

be fabricated back into the same kinds of containers such as 

liquid bleach, detergent, and other useful plastic materials 

such as pipe and conduit. Now, to be truly successful, 

plastics recycling with all deference to some of the 

speakers you are going to hear -- must go beyond the park 

benches and the sign posts and the flower pots. We foresee 

applications that mirror those for virgin materials, except for 

food containers, for which FDA standards necessitate the use of 

virgin materials. 
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In effect, Union Carbide has begun and closed . the 

recycling loop. We manufacture the virgin materials, of 

course, which are used for various products, and those products 

we hope will be returned, and then we will join, at the end of 

the loop, in reprocessing those products into recycled resins 

to be started again in other products. 

Initially, we plan to draw, for the Recycling Center, 

primarily on municipalities, counties, brokers, and businesses 

in four states: New York, New Jersey, of course -- I should 

say it first -- Pennsylvania, and Connecticut. However, we are 

looking longer term to drawing on areas within a 250-mile 

radius of Piscataway, and eventually a 500-mile radius, the 

latter being an area that encompasses nearly 40% of the U.S. 

population. 

Mr. Chairman, the barriers facing our recycling 

project are really human, not technical. We know that 

plastics, of course, can be recycled. We have the technology, 

the skills, and, more critically, the end-use markets for 

recycled products. · The big problem is the lack of recyclable 

material. Until recently, too few communities ·have been 

including plastics in their curbside collection programs, but 

New Jersey is leading the way in the Northeast with nine 6f 21 

counties -- and Mary Sheil, I think, said 207 towns; we· count 

around 230 individual municipalities. -- that are including PET 

HDPE in their curbsid~ programs. 

State and local governments have been reluctant to 

commit to plastics collect ion and recyc 1 ing. Unt i 1 recently, 

there has been really very little reason to take the risk. 

Many municip~lities are concerned that collection methods are 

cumbersome and require--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Excuse me, Mr .. Rouse. 

MR. ROUSE: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I am going to have the Vice 

Chair, Mr. Jacobson, conduct the hearing for the next few 

moments. 
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MR. ROUSE: Thank you. As I was saying, some State 

and local governments have been reluctant to cocrunit to plastics 

collection and recycling. There has been really very little 

reason to take the risk. Many are concerned that collection 

methods are cumbersome and require reconfigured bins and 

garbage trucks. Others think there are no end-use markets for 

recycled products. Well, I can assure you, Mr. Vice Chairman 

and other members of the Committee, that there are end-use 

markets. 

For example, companies like Proctor & Gamble are 

specifying a certain percentage of recycled content in their 

liquid soap and bleach containers. Other customers of ours are 

starting to inquire about recycled resins: Do we have them? 

When are we going to get them? How soon can we provide 

recycled resins of the grade and quality that will be used by 

molders in their containers? 

Now, we are anxious to supply them, but we need the 

interest and cooperation of all levels of government, as well 

as individuals to increase source separation and curbside 

recycling. At the State level, we are hopeful that New Jersey 

will match our commitment by including plastics recy~ling in 

the remaining 12 counties, and eventually in most, ·if not all 

of the State's 567 municipalities. For economies 'of scale, we 

would prefer to see countywide or regional programs as being 

the most efficient. As programs are implemented, further 

economies can be achieved by siting materials recovery 

facilities near rail sidings to permit optimal shipment to 

recycling centers such as the one we are planning · in 

Piscataway, where w~ have a Conrail siding right in the plant. 

Union Carbide wants to make plastics recycling work. 

We have the experience, we have the technology, and now we have 

the markets, but we need a steady supply of recyclable 

materials. 
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To conclude, this really has been a promotion, Mr. 

Vice Chairman and members of the Committee. First, obviously, 

is our own planned facility in Piscataway. I think all of you 

received a copy of the press kit that we distributed in 

January. Second, we are here to promote the subject of 

recycling -- plastics recycling in New Jersey, in general. 

Third, and finally, is the need for local officials to 

voluntarily institute plastics recycling to ensure that there 

is more than lip service to plastics recycling. Union Carbide 

will be part of the growing national partnership of private 

sector and public interest in working toward solid waste 

solutions. In effect, that commitment has started here in New 

Jersey. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: Thank you, Mr. Rouse. Any 
questions from the Committee members? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: This is 

little dichotomy in some of the 

the question, just a 

philosophy you are 

recommending: You are saying include it as a mandated 

recycling item, and tell the counties and the towns to recycle 

plastics. I think the general thrust of the legislation was, 

let the market drive what is most cost-effective to take o.ut of 

the waste stream. I_ guess therein lies the point of co~tention. 

Once we direct it to a private corporation, we take 

out the cost-building process of what you are going to pay for 

recycled materials because it is mandated at your doorstep. 

The problem I have in this whole issue is, if we mandate 

municipalities and counties to do a specific item, then we sort 

of downgrade the marketability of that from the manufacturer's 

standpoint. How do we deal with that issue? 

MR. ROUSE: Well, if I had the optimum solution, it 

would be to go to the other 12 counties and say: "Look at the 

nine previous examples in the last two years, where they have 

iT'lcluded plastics in their recycling programs." The impetus 
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has come from the counties themselves. To say to the other 12 

counties, "We really don't want the State to tell you what to 

include. We really don't want the State to, in effect, pick 

out an additional product which has not been chosen by your 

county, but we really feel very strongly, as State legislators, 

that plastics should be included." What is different now--

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: You are not talking market prices, 

though. See, I am talking market prices. You are talking, 
11 Let ' s go r ecyc 1 e -- rah , rah , rah . " I ' m a 11 for that , but 

let· s talk about what kind of market prices are out there and 

what the range of market prices has been since these 12 

counties have been recycling? Where did we start, and where 

are we now and what does the future hold? 

MR. ROUSE: Well, the market-- I can't get into 

specifics, but I can tell you that the market price right now 

that we are paying is tied to th_e price of virgin 

polyethylene. So the market price for recycled materials, or 

raw materials, if you will -- the plastic bottles -- will vary 

according to the market for the virgin material. Not only 

that, but it will vary according to whether Wellman is out 

there, or whether Day Products and others are out there trying 

to enter into agreements. That will drive the price.up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Yeah, but you are still not 

telling me anything. You know that Mercer is paying $19 a ton 

to get rid of newspapers. You are not--

MR. ROUSE: I can't-give you any market guarantees as 

to what-~ 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Yeah, but you are not giving me 

anything. You are not telling me a range, a history, or--

MR. ROUSE: - We 11 , we have--

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I'm sure the Legislature is going 

to look before they direct a stream to a corporation to see 

that there is some equity balance. Are we suppressing that 
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market and suppressing a revenue that is going to come out of 

that market? Are we encouraging a free market material supply? 

MR. ROUSE: I can't give you any assurances, other 

than looking at what has happened with the aluminum and glass 

market, where, again, that was not mandated, except it is by 

far the most common -- aluminum/glass/newspapers -- among the 

three items that have been mandated; what has been the history 

there as far as the market price for aluminum and glass. That 

is probably the only guide we are going to have, Assemblyman 

Shinn, as far as how the markets are going to react. 

I hope -- I don't want to make any forecasts -- we 

don't get into a situation where the news pr int, a temper ary 

valley, if you will-- The trough in the newsprint price is 

perhaps disillusioning some people. Right now it is the 

opposite for plastic, with the demand for recycled resins by 

· the molders and by ~roctor & Gamble and others obviously 

outstripping our supplies. We don't have any ourselves. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: But that ought to set a good price 

for the recycling. 

MR. ROUSE: Yes, it should; initially, it should. I 

can't tell you exactly what it is. I can tell you that we are 

entering into agreements with brokers and municipalities, and 

probably the price right now is a little higher than it might 

be five or ten years down the road, when recycling is more 

corrunon. But we are going to find more competitors, ourselves. 

We are going to have people 1 ike DuPont, Dow, Day Products, 

Wellman, and others out there competing for that product. We 

are not going to be the only ones. So the market will 

determine the price, not us alone. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: The market will determine the 

price if we-- You've got a price of raw material, and you've 

got a price of recycled material. 

MR. ROUSE: That's right. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Now, depending on what you can use 
the recycled material for-- If it is the same price as raw 
material, the raw material is going to drive the recycled 
material up, unless we give you a free lunch by saying, "We are 
going to direct everybody to send their plastics to you." How 
do we keep that at an honest market fluctuation? 

MR. ROUSE: You will never direct anybody to send it 
to us. You are talking about us as an industry, us as a 
business, not us as Union Carbide. We will, in effect, be out 
there initially because we are getting pressure from our blow 
molders and our customers downstream. We will be out there 
seeking sources which will drive the price up. 

Now, as long as the sources, as long as the Proctor & 
Gambles specify a certain amount of recycled content and we 
have to get that recycled resin, we are going to be going out 
there and looking for plastics. The reason why the mandatory 
issue came up in a bill that is, I guess, still before the 
Legislature, is that it was the chicken and the egg, _going back 
to what you were saying. Who is going to make the first move? 
Well, the plastics industry has· already made the first move, 
and we now have results and responses from nine of the 
counties; So maybe two years ·from now we will have 21 counties 
with some form of mandatory inclusion, and we won't need 
legislation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I think the first move was the 
Mandatory Recycling Act. It sort of drove the plastics 
industry into action. 

MR. ROUSE: Yes. That was the--
ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Then the plastics industry sort of 

responded and is getting geared up to address this market. The 
next move, to me, is pretty critical; There has to be a good 

balance in what we do in the next step. I think that is 

significant--
MR. ROUSE: That's true. 
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ASSEMBL YM.2\N SHINN: --to 
assurance that there is going to 

give 
be 

this Com.rni ttee 
a strong market 

plastics and make everyone feel better in moving forward. 

some 
for: 

MR. ROUSE: I wish I could give you a long-term 
prognosis, but short term--

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: 
MR. ROUSE: Short 

Just short term would be fine. 
term, the demand right now is there 

and the quality, or the product is not there. 
ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Price range is what I--
MR. ROUSE: I can't give you that, because, 

frankly, I am really not sure what the price range is. 
quite 
I can 

give you the name of a person who is a purchasing manager. She 
will be glad to discuss it with you in private. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Rouse. 
Our next witness will be Jon Holt. 

J 0 N A T H A N T. H 0 L T: Thank you, Assemblyman.. My 
name is Jon Holt. I am with Holt, Ross & Yulish. Our firm 
represents McDonald's 
couple of the issues 

Corporation. I 

that you have 
am here to address 
raised today. One 

a 

is 
markets. What kind of markets are out -there for recycled 
materials? The other is polystyrene recycling, as well as some 
discussion on source reduction. 

On April 18, the President of McDonald's USA announced 
that the company would be spending $100 million a year on the 
purchase of recycled products for the construction and 
remod&ling of McDonald's restaurants throughout the country. . . 

Each year, McDonald's constructs approximately 375 new 
restaurants and remodels an additional 500 or so. They spe~d 

approximately $40 million a year on this capital construction. 
Through working with McDonald's and their active involvement in 
recycling issues, we realize that markets are going to be one 
of the key things that are going to drive recycling, not only 
of plastics, but of all materials. They feel, as in the 
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private sector, rather than just waiting for government to 

mandate, or for government to say, "We are going to purchase 

products--" Ed Rensi, the President, said, "We are buying a 

lot of recycled materials. We know they can work. We know we 

have a use for them, and we are going to make the commitment 

and send the message to recyclers, to the business industry, to 

recycling in government that McDonald's is going to set a goal 

of spending at least 25% of their capital construction budget 

each year on these products." 

This is a national program. However, in this State 

and in other states, McDonald's are going through that 

construction and renovation process. We feel it has been an 

important boost. It is a needed boost. The response we have 

gotten from recycling groups and environmental groups has been 

very good, and McDonald's has already put this into practice. 

For instance, the playlands that you may see at McDonald's, the 

soft surface that is used in the playland for the children so 

when they come off the slides there is a soft surface there for 

them, is made out of recycled tires. The trays that are being 

used at ~cDonald's for in-store service now are being made out 

of recycled polystyrene, creating a demand for polystyrene in 

recycled products. 

McDonald's is in the process now of setting up an 

information center at its Oak Brook home office in Illinois. 

It will be ready this fall, where it can serve as a 

.clearinghouse for recyclers, for government and business 

ieaders, to seek information on what is out there in the market 

for purchasing of products. It's going to be a clearinghouse, 
. . 

also, for suppliers and manufacturers of products to come to 

· McDonald's, discuss their materials ·with them, find out what 

_application McDonald's can use it for, or to work with 

McDonald's in setting up some new product or specifications 

that may be unknown at this point. We've set up a 1-800 number 

for manufacturers to cr.11 in. Over 1000 manufacturers and 
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suppliers have already called in and registered with the 
service. The next step will be for McDonald's to send out an 
information packet, gain a little more insight into their 
products, and then start the process of meeting with them, and 
try to find out how these markets can be developed, and how 
these products can be brought into the McDonald's system. 

One of the reasons that McDonald's has made this 
commitment also, as Peter Riemschneider had mentioned, there's 
a pilot recycling program -- in-store recycling program in New 
England going on, on taking the polystyrene out of the store 
waste stream, having the customer source separate, and then 
send that polystyrene to a processing center and have it 
recycled and remade into useful materials. In New Jersey now, 
there's a program going on in Newark, and through that program 
we've gone through the proce-ss of developing information and 
education programs for the customer.s as they come in, so that 
we can improve that recycling process. I've brought some 
examples of the materials that are being used, but now there is 
going to be two separate containers in the McDonald's. One will 
have the plastic recycling and it will show actual utensils: 
the forks, the clear plastic trays that you get salad in are 
also made out of polystyrene, the cups, and the food containers 
-- foam. containers -- go into one bin, and then all the other · 
trash goes into a separate bin -- paper and food. 

And, again, it has been an education process that we 
started in· Newark. And if you think about it, it was the first 
time someone walked into a kind of a public place or a company, 
and was confronted with recycling. I know a lot of our 
children are confronted with it in schools, and in government 
offices, and many corporations have started recycling programs, 
but this is the first time out in the public sector, in a 
restaurant area, that people are seeing recycling. It has been 
an education process but as we have improved the signage, and 

as repeat customers keep coming in and are familiar with 
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recycling, the results have been very heartening and the 

company has made a commitment. The President has made a 

commitment to extend this recycling in New Jersey, as well as 

system-wide to all 8200 stores as soon the facilities come on­

line. 

Polystyrene 

facilities, 

about that. 

one in the 

Peter had mentioned that the National 

Recycling Corporation was going to be setting up 

and I handed out an ad that they put out talking 

At the end of this year there will be 

Philadelphia/Camden area, and as soon as that's on-line, there 

will be a place for New Jersey restaurants to begin taking 

their sorted polystyrene. We are doing it in New Jersey, and 

I'll be honest: The communities where it is being done are 

those communities · that considered bans on polystyrene 

packaging, foam packaging. We've been able to talk with those 

communities, and what we've been able to talk to them about is, 

if you take a foam product such as this that is recyclable and 

replace it with a paper product that's plastic coated -- the 

problem with this is that there's no practical way to recycle 

this, and this has to go to the waste stream where the plastic 

products can be recycled. 

And I think to be consistent with the Governor's 

interest in getting the State up to 50%, that we would like to 

see more and more communities encouraging recycling of all 

plastics and polystyrene rather than banning these products. 

When you get into a ban, then you have to start looking at 

exceptions for your hospitals, exceptions for other people, and 

that's really kind of counter to what we' re trying to do in 

recycling. And so, as far as McDonald's . Corpor.ation is 

concerned, there is a commitment to expand their .in-store 

recycling programs in the State and as soon as this 

Camden/Philadelphia facility is on-line, I will begin 

implementing it. 
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Peter mentioned that Dorothy Brown is working with 

McDonald's. She had implemented the New England program, and 

has recently transferred to New Jersey to the Bloomfield 

office, and will be helping implement the program here in the 

State of New Jersey. 

One of the concerns we are having is that several 

municipalities are considering bans on polystyrene. We've been 

trying to do our best to educate, and when we've gotten in to 

talk to councilmen and mayors, they've agreed that we should 

give recycling a chance. Some states have faced this as well. 

In Connecticut, the state legislature is considering-­

Legislation is going through one house now wnere there's a 

moratorium on bans, in an effort to encourage the recycling of 

plastics including polystyrene. 

This is one avenue that the Chairman had asked that 

maybe we should talk about some things that Legislature could 

do. I would hope that they would look at incentives to 

recycling of plastics. and polystyrene, and take a look at 

what's happening, municipality to municipality. The problem 

with bans is, if you switch over to paper, you have a product 

that can't be recycled. It's also a disincentive to those 

entrepreneurs who are looking at this State to see what 

products are there to pull out of the waste stream, that they 

can reprocess economically. 

So I would hope that this Committee, and the Solid 

Waste Task Force that the Governor has put together, would look 

at putting polystyrene as part of that 50% goal of recycling, 

and doing something to encourage the recycling of that, and to 

discourage a kind of this ad hoc ban situation· that's taking-­

It's been well-intentioned, but it really goes counter to what 

we're trying to do in recycling. I've asked for a copy of that 

Connecticut legislation, and I will be happy to share that with 

the Cammi ttee when I receive it. So, the good news is, in 

addressing the issues of markets, that McDonald's has stepped 
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forward and is creating a $100 million a year market, and also 

is committed to recycling of polystyrene. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you, Mr . Ho 1 t. We 

appreciate your corrunents, and we just are trying to have our 

lunch. We're not depending on McDonald's at all today for what 

we' re having. (laughter) We do appreciate your comments, and 

I appreciate very much a publicly recognized corporation like 

McDonald's becoming involved in an issue that's such a 

sensitive area. The more responsibility shown by organizations 

like McDonald's, I think, it gives us the kind of message that 

we need, and in New Jersey, we're very sensitive -- more and 

more so -- to recycling, and to· corporations and industries 

that respond in a positive manner. So, thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Mr. Chairman, I'd just like to 

make a corrunent along the same line. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Shinn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I think that taking a leadership 

role in an issµe where you have a potential of getting a 

product banned demonstrates that there's recyclability of that 

product. That's really what's go·t to happen in this whole 

plastics issue. And I just follow the Chairman's conunents on 

complimenting you in taking the initiative, and McDonald's for 

putting the dollars forth to do it because theirs are the types 

of products that are going to solve the problem, not just try 

to beat it to death 

MR. HOLT: Well, I just would like to add in closing 

that I a few weeks ago, I met with the president of McDonald's 

out at the Oak Brook home office. He was very open about this 

whole issue. And he said, "Listen, probably the easiest thing 

for us to get the monkey off our back on this polystyrene 

issue, would be to switch to paper." But, he said, that's not 

the right thing to do because you can'~ recycle it, and we' re 

conunitted to recycling. I'm struggling with this but I'm 

committed, and we're going to make it work, and we want to make 
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it work. We'll do what we have to, to educate the public, but 
recycling's the way to go." 

So, there's a corruni tment there f ram the top down to 
make it work, and as soon as that Philadelphia area facility is 
up and running, we want to see all the stores in the State get 
into recycling, in-store as well as just purchasing. 

~SSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Well, thank you very much. 
Further questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: Quick question. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Jacobson. 
ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: Would it be cheaper to switch 

to paper, or to stay with plastic in recycling? 
MR. HOLT: It would actually be more expensive, about 

$20,000 a year per store because paper packaging is more 
expensive. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: So, it's like the packaging 
that Burger King uses, for example. They use the paper package. 

MR. HOLT: Right, but it's coated and that's the 
problem with, you know, when you get into biodegradeability and 
the whole issue of can you recycle it and all that stuff. 
Because of FDA regulations, there has to be some coating on 
that paper between the food and the .packaging. But, the paper 
is more expensive. 

ASSEMBLYMAN JACOBSON: But is that paper-- How 
biodegradeable is that paper? 

MR. HOLT: _Again, we get into the quest ion of 
biodegradeable and how long it takes, but if it's plastic 
coated, I guess eventually it would biodegrade .• I guess the 
big question is litter, and how long is it going to be out 
there, and how long would it biodegrade. I mean, it could be a 
long time if it's plastic coated. We've dealt with the litter 
issue also on the corrununity level, and interestingly enough, in 
some communities we've talked to they're unaware of the money 

available from the litter tax and the litter program -- the 
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Clean Communities Program. Whether you have plastic or paper, 

whatever, on the litter issue, it's still an education process 

there on what we do as people with non-point source pollution 

whether it's that or other things we throw away, anc we've got 

to think twice about that as well. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE : Thank you, Mr . Ho 1 t . We next 

have Mr. Steve Babinchak, representing St. Jude Polymer. Mr. 

Babinchak. 

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE: Mr. Chairman, he 

didn't make it; he's not here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: He's not. Okay. The next 

individual we have is Margo Lane from Garden State Paper, 

Elmwood Park. Good afternoon and welcome Ms. Lane, Assemblymen 

Shinn, and Jacobson). 

M A R G O L A N E: Good afternoon. Once again, I am Margo 

Lane, corrununications manager of Garden State Paper Company, 

Elmwood Park, New Jersey. I'm here today to provide testimony 

on behalf of Clare Mullett, Manager of Procurement Services of 

my company. Garden State Paper is well-known by recyclers here 

in New Jersey. In 1961 the world's first commercial newsprint 

manufactured exclusively from old newspapers was produced at 

the Garden State Paper Mill in Garfield. Since the original 

Earth Day in 1970, the Garfield Mill has consumed 4.5 million 

tons of old newspapers. The Mill consumes 270,000 tons of old 

newspapers annually or about 750 tons every day. Last year 

Garden State Paper procured a record 182,000 tons of old 

newspapers fro~ within New Jersey alone. To put that in 

perspective, it would take a 172 mile long line of packer 

trucks, bumper to bumper to hold that amount of material. 

New Jersey's recycling achievements have been truly 

outstanding. DEP Cornrnissioner Yaskin recently told recyclers 

attending the 1990 New Jersey Recycling Forum Dinner in New 

Brunswick that the State's cornrnuni ties have achieved a 
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recycling rate of 24% of the municipal solid waste. According 

to the New Jersey Office of Recycling, 360,000 tons of old 

newspapers were recovered through recycling programs during 

1988, or over 50% of all newspapers circulated in New Jersey 

were collected and reprocessed back into new products. While 

the final data is not yet available, we believe that the 1989 

recovery rate will be significantly higher. 

Newspaper recycling has undergone major changes in 

recent times. New Jersey and other Northeastern states passed 

laws requiring the mandatory source separation of recyclables. 

Old newspapers because of their volume and ease of collection, 

were one of the most popular materials for municipal recycling 

programs. The supply of old newspapers shot up at an 

unprecedented rate. Al though the domestic and export demand 

for old newspapers in the Northeast United States increased 

over 17% during 1989, the market was soft most of the year. 

This was particularly true of newspapers mixed· with other 

grades of wastepaper. 

The bumper crop of old newspaper recycling without 

commensurate growth in the demand market led to new legislative 

initiatives aimed at stimulating demand. California, 

Connecticut, and most recently Maryland, passed legislation 

requiring the use of newsprint paper containing recycled 

fibers. We also saw the newspaper publishing industry make a 

serious commitment to the use of recycled newsprint. 

Publishing companies, such as Knight-Ridder, Gannett, Times 

Mirror, Scripps Howard, and Dow Jones, as well as many of the 

smaller companies, pledged to use significant amounts of 

recycled newsprint as quickly as· it could be made available. 

Virgin fiber newsprint paper manufacturers received a 

clear message to prepare themselves t_o make newsprint paper 

with recycled fiber content. Virtually every newsprint 

manufacturer in North America investigated how it might 
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incorporate secondary fiber in its newsprint sheet. In 

addition t~ the new world-class recycled newsprint machine 

started last fall at Southeast Paper Manufacturing in Dublin, 

Georgia, Atlantic Packaging is scheduled to bring another new 

machine on line later this year in Whitby, Ontario, which will 

use 100% recycled fiber for its furnish. A number of new 

deinking facilities have been announced and are under various 

stages of permitting and construction. North American 

newsprint producers which have announced such projects include 

Canadian Pacific Forest Products, Abitibi Price, Daishowa 

Paper, Donohue, Norpac, News tech and Bowater. Each of these 

are major projects which will place substantial incremental 

demands on the U.S. ONP -- that• s old newspaper -- supply 

market. These changes are in motion and need a chance to 

develop without additional stimulation which could cause 

apprehension about the supply market•s ability to support 

additional growth. The supply market must demonstrate that it 

can, in fact, reliably feed this substantially larger demand. 

I would also like to comment on the current market for 

old newspapers in New Jersey. Contrary to what you may have 

. heard, there is a market for old newspapers. Garden State 

Paper is willing to enter into long-term purchase agreements 

with New Jersey municipalities ~or loose newspapers which have 

not been commingled with other grades of wastepaper. 

The Garden State Paper Company deinking technology is 

the most advanced technology available for handling the variety 

of newspaper printing processes in use today. Our process 

deinks all of them well, including flexography. We have also 

made major improvements in the system·s ability to remove 

contaminants found in municipally sourced old newspapers. The 

company·s technical staff is ~ontinually working to keep. 

Garfield on the leading edge of the quality issue. In fact, 

Garden State Paper spent $25 million for process improvements 
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during the past few years. We feel that investment is paying 

off in terms of marketplace acceptance of our finished 

product. However, product quality is an ongoing endeavor, and 

we cannot afford to give up the process related gains through 

relaxed raw material standards. Garden State Paper continues 

to encourage the development of clean newspape:s only -- source 

separated programs. 

In the future, it can be anticipated that other 

newsprint manufacturers will also be purchasers of clean New 

Jersey generated old newspaper as their deink pulp lines become 

reality. 

In summary, the North American newsprint producing 

industry is clearly conunitted to increasing the use of 

wastepaper in its· products. Further initiatives at this po~nt 

in time to stimulate demand could be counter productive. There 

is a good market for old newspapers in New Jersey today. 

Garden State Paper is willing to sign long-term agreements for 

clean old newspapers. 

Municipalities that place emphasis on the high quality 

of the old newspapers they collect from residents are the ones 

who will be successful in effectively marketing their product 

to old newspaper consumers such as Garden State Paper. Thank 

you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. I have a 

question for you, and I guess· it relates to Garden State. I 

see you've spent $25 million ·in improving your facility in 

Garfield.· Do you contemplate the construction of any 

additional mills in New Jersey to deal with recycled newspapers? 

MS. LANE: We have an expansion study underway at 

present and ·we are considering an expansion. However, with the 

amounts of newsprint coming into the marketplace by the 

producers who have already announced projects -- not all of 

them being recycled sheets of course -- but there is already an 

oversupply of newsprint paper in the marketplace for sale to 
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publishers. With that kind of an economy, at this point it is 

difficult to substantiate the expense of a $500 million 

newsprint mill with all of this expansion planning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: So there is an oversupply of 

newsprint available to the publishers? 

MS. LANE: Yes, there is, and there are very low 

prices being paid for the fact that there is more newsprint 

available, than there is consumption. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Because we so often hear that 

most of the old newspapers find their way to mills in either 

Canada, or in this case, Georgi a, and it would seem with our 

well located market and such an obvious amount of old 

newspapers in this metropolitan region of New York, New Jersey, 

Connecticut ·and so forth, this would be an ideal marketplace 
. -

for that. But I guess your firm, Garden State, is accepting 

the major portion of the local old newspaper market? 

MS. LANE: We buy 182,000 tons from New Jersey alone. 

That's more than half of our supply lin~, this New Jersey 

sourced paper. And I 'd add that there are other newsprint 

companies who are investigating building here in the 

Northeast. They are going through the same economic equations 

that we are. They have to find an end use for the product they 

make, even though there might be proposals or more purchasing 

of recycled newsprint. Still, in the Northeast 81% of the 

newsprint consumed by publishers in the Northeast is imported 

from Canada, and it is virgin newsprint paper. So that is the 

market that we have to sell our finished product to. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Do you care to comment on the 

report provided earlier in the hearing by the Publishers Task 

Force?· Do you think all the goals that they annunciated are 

reasonable, ~air, and reachable? 

MS. LANE: Most of the goals, I believe, the 

publishers will make every effort to reach on a voluntary basis. 
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ASSEMBL~ .. A.N McENROE: You're not recommending any 

legislation at the present time? 

MS. LANE: No, we do not support a recommendation for 

legislation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Mr. Shinn, do you have any 

questions, or Mr. Jacobson? 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: You made a couple of comments that 

struck me. Are you accepting baled paper or just loose paper? 

MS. LANE: We accept loose paper. We bale it in 

several of our own facilities for our own consumption. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: And, you' re currently willing to 

enter into contracts with suppliers who are-- Do you pay them 

for the newspapers or--

MS. LANE: We pay for the newspaper that we buy 

because our quality standards are very high. We want 

newspapers only. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: Okay. So, you still are willing 

to contract for additional quantities of newsprint with 

p9tential suppliers. 

MS. LANE:. We will contract specific~lly with New 

Jersey municipalities. That is where we are looking to do our 

business,· 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: I assume -- and counties. 

MS. LANE: Certainly. Yes, certainly so. But once 

again, our quality stai:idards are that there be nothing e 1 se 

commingled with that paper. We do not want telephone books, 

and we don't want to have to separate it out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN SHINN: You want pure newspaper; you don't 

want corr.ugated or whatever. 

MS. LANE: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. 

MS. LANE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We appreciate your comments, and 

your testimony is going to be now part of the record. Th<.nk 
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you. We next have Dr. Darrell Marrow representing the center 

for Plastic Recycling Research. We're moving around a bit from 

plastics t:o newspapers and back a:gain, but it's a matter of 

everyone respecting each of them as they have signed in trying 

to stay in some type of order. All right, you are Dr. Marrow? 

DR. DARR E L L R. MARR 0 W: Darrell R. Marrow. Yes. 

DR . MARROW : Mr . Chairman and members of the 

Committee, I appreciate the opportunity to come before you to 

talk under a title that I've developed called "The Recycling of 

Post Consumer Plastics: What Role is There for the Government, 

both State and Local, and What Role is There for the Public? I 

have some materials that I will leave with the Chairman, and 

additional copies can be provided upon request. 

The Rutgers University Center for Plastics Recycling 

Research has been working with the public, government,· and 

industry for the past five years in demonstrating the 

recyclability of post consumer plastics; while helping to 

develop and commercialize recycling technology. For example, 

on several occasions, earlier speakers mentioned a company 

called Day Products. Day Products is a 40 million pound per 

year plastics recycling and reclaiming operation in Southern 

New. Jersey that opened its doors last October. Its 

manufacturing technology is based on technology developed at 

the Center. 

As many of you perhaps already know, the Center is one 

of the New Jersey Commission on Science and Advanced Technology 

Centers, and one of the charges we have in exchange for the 

funds we receive -- taxpayers' funds, really -- through the 

Commission, is to help develop industry in the State. Last 

week, it was announced that a company will be opening at least 

one plant, and perhaps two plants in New Jersey to process 

mixed plastics into products, and the statement earlier made 

about the issue of how many fence posts, benches, and so forth, 
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can be made-- The marine environment is going to be a major 

are~ in which mixed plastics can play a major role as far as 

having a positive economic and environmental impact. 

We' re working very closely with the Port of New York 

and New Jersey Authority in examining ways in which an 

interesting development can be addressed. The Hudson River, of 

course, is in the process of being cleaned up and as a result 

of that, marine life activity has been rising sharply. The 

spin-off effect of that result is that now wooden structures 

that are a major part of t.he infrastructure within the Hudson 

River are deteriorating much more rapidly than they did when 

the river was polluted. Don't take that comment as to suggest 

that we repollute the river to extend the lifetime of those 

products, but rather to look at ways in which we can utilize 

alternative materials. And we're talking about, literally, 

hundreds of millions of pounds of materials can be utilized in 

these particular types of applications.· 

Some of the materials that I will be providing to· the 

Committee include such things as a special issue of a 

publication called "Plastics World" that came out on. the 22nd 

of April and it has the subtitle: "A Comprehensive Look at. 

Plastics and Recycling." I realize that you have many things 

to read, but there are a number of areas within this mag~zine 

that I think you wi 11 find quite worthwhile, interesting, and 

informative with regard to the recyclability · in recycling 

plastics. 

There's also a document called "Vision to Reality" 

which identifies some of the ways in which plastics can be 

recycled and the infrastructure from multimaterials can be 

developed, including plastics. One specific example that I can 

give you is, last May the C_enter released a "How To" manual as 

a technology transfer device identifying ways in which plastics 

can be included in multimaterial curbside recycling programs. 
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The largest single wastehauler in the cour1try, Waste 

Management, has indicated that they feel this is the definitive 

study in this area. And one of the issues and it's 

unfortunate Assemblyman Shinn had to step out -- but the issue 

of, is it cost-effective to include plastics in the recycle 

stream-- Our studies back at that time when we released the 

document said very clearly, they do. The gentlemen from Mercer 

County indicated that they've got a 60% participation rate. 

Our studies have indicated that anything over 60% wi 11 cause a 

cost benefit to be realized by any municipality or locality 

that decides to recycle materials including plastics. So 

that's an important aspect to deal with. 

There's also information on this, the collection model 

that we have in the document. We're currently running a Model 

Cities collection program in Highland Park, New Jersey, where 

it is implemented in detail, this particular curbside 

collection model. And with that, we are developing additional 

information to refine that model. But again, our preliminary 

results indicate that it is an issue of: Can we afford to 

collect plastics or include plastics in the recycle stream? 

It's hard to think we cannot afford not to include them in that 

material. 

In closing ~hat I'd like to -- because ther_e are many 

other things I could cover, but obviously it's going to be a 

long day. It already has been, and I don't want to belabor the 

point. But now that the recyclability and the commercial 

liability of recycling of plastics has been demonstrated, there 

are a number of questions that have been raised regarding how 

more post consumer plastics can be recycled? How can we 

increase the amount of material and the scope of materials? 

For example: 

1) What are the institutional impediments, if any, to 

increasing the amount of plastics and the types of plastics 

that can be recycled in New Jersey? 
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2) Are there any specific administrative or 
legislative measures that should be undertaken or enacted to 
facilitate the growth of plastics recycling in the State of New 
Jersey? 

To backtrack for just a moment to give you a specific 
example of why we need to increase this, if we could, through 
Chip Connelly's organization's effort, collect every soft drink 
bottle in the State of New Jersey, we'd be able to collect 
approximately 25 mi 11 ion pounds of material. Day Products, a 
single company based in New Jersey, needs 40 million pounds per 
year, and would like to expand that eventually to 100 million 
pounds, so obviously, we do need more plastics within New 
Jersey and other parts of the country, and different types of 
plastics. 

I' 11 very briefly then identify what I would like to 
~efer to as impediments and remedies, stressing the remedy side 
of it; letting the interpretation of the impediment that this 
remedy addresse~ speak for itself: 

1) There should be the establishment of methods and 
means to educate the public, legislators, and administrators at 
all levels, particularly at the highest levels of leadership in 
the State, that plastics banning and bashing -- since it often 
is based on misinformation and nearly always is 
counterproductive to the public, and wasteful with respect to 
energy and resource conservation. The public schools and the 
New Jersey Department_ of Environmental.Protection are specific 
agencies that could, and should, play a major role in this area 
of consumer and legislator education. Our State leaders need 
to recognize the critical importance of leading the way to more 
and better plastics recycling . 

. 2) Have the State take a leadership role, financially 
as well as organizationally, in building the statewide. 
infrastructure necessary for the recycling ~f up to 50% to 60% 
of our waste stream that I feel can, and should, : ,e recycled 
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ultimately -- with plastics being included in that mixture. 

The State of Rhode Island model is a gcod one to consider in 

terms of the approach that that State is taking to a statewide 

multimaterial recycling program. 

3) With regards to enhanced plastics recycling, the 

State of New Jersey already has a mechanism in place with a 

proven track record to rapidly advance the technology of 

recycling leading with the Center for Plastics Recycling 

Research. More State funds devoted to the research and 

development efforts of the CPRR will generate an even bigger 

return on investment of taxpayers' dollars than has already 

been realized. 

Two recommendations, and then I'll close my remarks: 

1) Begih treating the issue as one of resource 

conservation and management. By doing so, a much broader and 

more effective program will result, in which solid State 

management has so 1 ved, as a natural result of succeeding in 

using rec~cling as a means to conserve our resources and manage 

our environment. 

2) Give careful consideration to, and back the 

concept as proposed by such progressive companies as Procto~ & 
Gamble and the Coca Cola Company, that the funds for the 

research and development and · for building the recycling 

infrastructure, should be generated through a resource 

utilization surcharge. Such an approach should be taken at the 

Federal level with encouragement and support coming from local 

and State agencies. 

Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank . you very much. Doctor, 

some of your comments relate to the need for more public 

inyolvement in the recycling and development programs for the 

State. Do you think that's a duplication of what industry -­

the private sector can do insofar as research and 

recommendation? 
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DR. MARROW: No, I don't think it's a duplication. I 

think they would be complementary, and I'm address :ng to a 

certain extent the issue of some of the funds that can be 

generated from a cost avoidance and diversion of very wasteful 

and expensive materials handling of our waste by solid waste 

management into recycling. The resource utilization surcharge 

would, again, be tapping the pockets of industry, and -- let's 

be realistic, the pockets of the taxpayer -- to help us build 

this infrastructure that is needed, because once it's in place, 

it will be a cost benefit and will be something we need to do 

in a very rapid manner. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McEnroe: We come in the budget of the 

State around $11 million to $12 million for recycling. Does 

your Institute benefit from that budget? 

DR. MARROW: Yes. Our total budget for the Research 

Center for Plastics Recycling Research is for this year $3. 7 

million, and $600,000 of that came from the State of New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: .Through the recycling tax, 

probably? 

DR. MARROW: It's through the New Jersey Commission On 

Science and Technology. I will put that in perspective, 

however. The State of Rhode Island, with one seventh the 

population, is expending $30 million in recycling. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I don't have that figure, but I 

appreciate it. Thank you. I guess· there weren't any other 

questions, so we do appreciate you coming before us. I hope 
. . 

the reports that you referred to-- If they're not available, I 

hope the staff will make them available to the members of the 

Committee because you have brought--

DR. MARROW: A? I say I could make additional copies, 

but I have one complete set. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: If you could. It would be well 

if you could give them to Mr. Matioska or Mr. Colner of our 

staff so that we do have your comments. Thank you. We also 
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have an individual representing aluminum recycling, Alcoa 

Aluminum. Duane Royal. Is Mr. Royal here? 

Du AN E R 0 y AL: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Would you join us please? Mr. 

Royal, you represent Alcoa? 

MR. ROYAL: Yes, that's right. First of all, I'd like 

to say, good afternoon. On behalf of the Alcoa Recycling 

Company I'd 1 ike to thank you for the opportunity to speak 

before you and your Committee. Again, my name is Duane Royal. 

I am the area Sales and Marketing Manager for Alcoa Recycling 

Company. We are located in Edison, New Jersey. We, of Alcoa, 

believe that the aluminum used beverage 

containers are one shining example of 

containers and food 

keeping recyclable 

material out of the solid waste stream. The aluminum market 

has been, and continues to be, a very stable market. 

Now I'd like to address four questions that were sent 

to us via correspondence on April 12, 1990 from your office: 

1) The first question was, "What percentage of 

aluminum cans in the municipal solid waste stream is currently 

recycled in New Jersey, both statewide and on a county basis?" 

According to the numbers reported to the New Jersey 

State Office of Recycling, the aluminum can recycling rate for 

New Jersey in 1988 was 41. 34%. The 1989 figures are not yet 

available because the tonnagement reports are not due in until 

July of this year. We do not· know the recycling figures for 

counties or municipalities in the State of New Jersey. 

2) The second quest ion was I "What percentage of the 

State's overall aluminum can recycling effort is being 

undertaken by Alcoa Recycling?". 

when compared to the 1988 New Jersey State Off ice of 

Recycling numbers, Alcoa Recycling Company recycled over 50% of 

the aluminum cans recycled. Now, based on the New Jersey 

Office of Recycling's 1988 figures for available used beverage 
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cans, we estimate that approximately 20% of the total 
used beverage containers in New Jersey were recycled. 

3) The third question was, "What 
institutional impediments, if any, to increasing the 
aluminum that may be recycled in this State?" 

available 

are the 
amount of 

Basically, the only impediments that we have, would be 
commingled material. With aluminum cans having been separated 
out before arriving in Edison, the can, if contaminated with 
dirt, plastic, glass, or paper,, inhibit our ability to process 
at a normal pace on any given day. It produces a lesser 
quality material, and risks either rejection of the load at our 
facility, or at the mill, with appropriate charge backs or 
decrease in price to_ the customer to follow. 

4) The fourth and last question was, "Are there any 
specific administrative or legislative measures that may be 
undertaken or enacted to f ac i 1 i tate the growth of aluminum 
recycling in New Jersey?" 

The only measure that we really would like to -see 
would be the enactment of measures which would require 
recyclables to be source separated or segregated at curbside. 
That would provide a better quality product, higher revenue for 
municipalities and counties, and the ability to be serviced by 
more end markets in.New Jersey. There are far fewer recyclers 
in New Jersey who have the ·ability to handle commingled 
material in the sorting process. Although there may be 
additional costs involved in the pick up of separated 
materials, the higher value paid for UBC and facilities such as 
Alcoa Recycling, can offset, and in most cases, still provide a 
prof it back to the customer.. Our marketing staff can work and 
help set up programs on request. 

There's one thing I would just like for you to be 
aware -- that we can work within the parameters of a commingled 
environment. But as stated earlier, there are few sorters of 
commingled material in New Jersey, and at a f aci 1 i ty such as 
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Edison, we see a decrease in quality from corruningled accounts 
which may translate into fewer dollars, depending on how wel 1 
the hauler or sorter of the corruningled material did his job. 
Again, thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. Mr. Royal, I have a 
question for you. In your corrunents, I believe that you 
mentioned that 20% of the aluminum beverage containers in New 
Jersey's waste stream are recycled? 

MR. ROYAL: Twenty per cent of the available -- based 
on the New Jersey State, Office of Recycling 1988 figures, of 
the available UBCs, the total available UBC is 20%. 

Approximately 20% are recycled in New Jersey by Alcoa Recycling 
Company. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: By Alcoa. 
MR. ROYAL: . Yes . 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: 
particular firm: 

So 

MR. ROYAL: By our company. 

that's just by your 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Do YO\l have an estimate of the 
amount .of the percentage of containers that are recycled in New 
Jersey by all organizations? 

MR. ROYAL: That was 41.34%. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: However, there is another large 
amount -- 59% of the containers are still not being recycled. 

MR. ROYAL: That's right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: That's a large amount of 

potential there. What is the industry doing to correct that? 
I'm not leading you into a beverage container deposit 
legislation debate, but do you have recorrunendations that would 
help us aggressively recycle more than we do? 

MR. ROYAL: We worked on more programs as ·far as 

public awareness programs. We're doing a lot of volunteer 

programs such as, "Aluminum Cans for Burned Children," all 
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kinds-- Basically, we' re working as far as hitting the angle 
of public awareness. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Well, I think your organization 
does take a responsible role insofar as providing information 
and education for the public, but in an enlightened State like 
New Jersey it does seem that we are really not impacting on the 
market to the level that we should if we· re only recapturing 
four out of every 10 containers. 

MR. ROYAL: Okay. First of all, these figures were 
1988 figures. I understand that in 1989 the figures are 
looking to be closer to the 50%. So, it's creeping up; things 
take time, even though we are an enlightened State, things do 
take time as far as recycling is concerned. We're at 41.34% in 
1988, but I'm sure we're going to be probably up to 50% or over 
in 1989. So, it is happening, but it is taking time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Sure, thank you, and if.there is 
a message in this hearing it• s that the Legislature and these 
type. Committees are prepared to assist the private market in 
reaching certain goals that we see as necessary goals in New 
Jersey. So we would hope that the kind of effort you• ve made 
and the kind of success you've had would only be the beginning 
and, hopefully, we'll see a much higher level of recycling. 
We' re hearing g.ood things and cooperation from the old 
newspaper compartment in the market. We certainly look to 
aluminum cans, with the glass bottles, as the area of the most 
success, aJ?.d yet when we measure it, it just does not seem to 
be as dramatic as one might think. We appreciate, though, very 
much your coming before us with your testimony. Thank you. 

We have listed the Institute for Resource Recovery. 
Is there ~- representative? Oh, Matthew Root, representing the 
Institute for Resource Recovery. Mr. Root, how are you?· 
M A T T H E W R 0 0 T: Vert well, thanks. Good afternoon, 
and thank you for the chance to deliver a few words on 

recycling. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We're interested really in 
seeing what the Resource Recovery Institute' s comments are on 
the recycling area. This is a very trendy topic in New Jersey 
recently. So the floor is yours. 

MR. ROOT: I 'm here today on behalf of Ogden Mart in 
Systems, and to let you know that Ogden Martin is a member of 
the Institute of Resource Recovery. The IRR is comprised of 
firms that design, build, and operate facilities to recover 
energy and materials from trash while stabilizing it and 
reducing its volume through controlled combustion. The IRR is 
a component of the National Solid Waste Management Association, 
a trade group with over 2500 members of the private waste 
services industry. 

Five companies of the IRR do business in New Jersey at 
twelve facilities that are in various stages of development. 
The combined waste capacity of these twelve facilities, once 
completed, will be over 16, 000 tons per day which represents 
approximately 50% of New Jersey's waste stream. The IRR 
believes an integrated approach is necessary for optimal solid 
waste management. This integrated approach gives priority to 
treating as a valuable resource those materials that would. be 
disposed by less useful means. Integrated solid waste 
management . allows localities to select the· technologies that 
would best handle their waste disposal problems, and that could 
include waste reduction, 
reco~ery, and landfilling. 

recycling, combustion, resource 

The IRR recognizes the importance of recycling as one 
of the highest priorities of integrated waste management. It 
is a valuable means of recovering continuing use and value from 
materials, and of reducing the volume of waste that eventually 
requires disposal. New Jersey's mandatory source separation 

legislation enacted in '87 which set up a stat€wide goal of 25% 

of the waste stream, should help New Jersey recover substantial 
value from waste materials for their hi jhest and best reuse. 
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Although currently the State recycles approximately 20% of its 
waste stream, increased efforts in planning and marketing 
development should enable the State to achieve and perhaps even 
surpass its goals. 

Recycling can benefit the operation of waste-to­
energy facilities in a well-planned integrated waste management 
system. Recycling encourages the removal of certain items from 
the waste stream which improves waste combustion, glass, 
aluminum, metals, batteries, and yard waste, for example; items 
that either do not contribute to efficient combustion in modern 
waste-to-energy facilities or can add to the burden of 
pollutants that must be removed by state-of-the-art pollution 
controls. Removing these items for recycling can increase the 
heat value of fuel by up to 25% while reducing ash content by 
weight, by about 50% in carbon monoxide and hydrocarbon 
emissions significantly. Removal of automotive batteries 
reduces the heavy metals content of lead, cadmium, mercury in 
the air and ash emissions. Yard waste removal could also 
decrease nitrogeri oxide levels in air emissions. 

Conversely, the recovery of energy can complement 
recycling in recovering full value from our waste materials. 
For economic or technical reasons, some waste that either 
cannot be recycled or cannot be recycled indefinitely; do hold 
substantial values in energy source. Other 
soi led news pr int, _ or news pr int i tse 1 f, which 
reused indefinitely, do have significant value 

energy. 

materials like 
also can't be 
as sources of 

IRR firms themselves are actively engaged in many· 
recycling . programs. In fact, . in New Jersey permits for 
resource recovery have not been issued without recycling plans 
playing ·an important role. Such plans· include an agreement 
with material separation facilities, curbside collection 
recycling programs, post combustion materials recovery, and ash 

reuse applications. 
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Curbside programs result in excellent recovery of high 

quality recyclables. These programs teach consumers to both 

reuse and reduce the waste they generate. Their individual 

cooperation is essential. In Gloucester County, the 

waste-to-energy facility will complement the county•s 

aggressive curbside program. 

The materials recovery facility, working in 

conjunction with any county and its resource recovery facility, 

enables the volume of the waste to be significantly reduced, in 

combination with the recovery of several valuable resources. 

This wi 11 be evidenced in Monmouth County where a recently 

awarded project includes a materi"al separation facility to be 

constructed on the site of the waste energy facility. 

The IRR also recovers ferrous metals from their 

residue. Last year, Ogden Martin alone, recovered 54,000 tons 

of scrap ferrous in its various plants around the country. 

This is a fairly simple process as the recovery rate for post 

combustion ferrous metals is approximately 70% to 90%. 

Shredding ·this mat.erial results in a high quality metal which 

sells at the approximate rate of $60 per toti in New Jersey. 

State-of-the-art technology currently empl9yed by IRR 

members renders the ash resulting from the waste energy 

facilities into ·a basically inert substance that closely 

resembles a low strength· concrete when it sets up in a 

landfill. This residual ash has been increasingly investigated 

for use in applications such as roadbed fiil, aggregate for 

asphalt, and cement and artificial reef construction. 

In summary, IRR and Ogden support integrated· solid 

waste management: which al lows local government, to select the 

best waste management opt ions to fit their needs and could 

in·clude waste reduction, recycling, resource recovery, and 

landfilling. The rapidly growing garbage problem in New Jersey 

must be dealt, with and we believes this includes a need to 

emphasize recycling. It l:l.as been our experience that 
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waste-to-energy has been an effective partner with recycling, 
and we seek to strengthen this partnership in all of our 
efforts to solve New Jersey's solid waste problems. Thank you 
very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: 
appreciate 
plastics: 

that. I have a 

What's the reaction 

Thank you, Mr . Root . I 
specific question regarding 

of the Institute of Resource 
Recovery to mandatory recycling of plastics? Do you need a 
substantial amount of plastics in the waste stream to have your 
facilities function as they should? 

MR. ROOT: I feel there's probably enough garbage for 
everyone to go around, and if plastics were pulled out of the 
waste st~eam there should be more than enough garbage left for 
trash for us. I can certainly try to get you some more data on 
plastics as a· constituent of the waste -- you• ve heard a lot 
about it -- but it burns and we can burn it effectively as 
well, because it's a petroleum-based product. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Is it correct that there's -- is 
there a reduction in the BTU quantity of a resource recovery 
facility? 

MR. ROOT: Most of the studies that have been done on 
recycling programs show that because a lot of what you pull out 
-- the metals and glass and other things, are heat absorbers 
and other components which you pull out have high BTU content, 
newspapers, plastics, that type of thing -- net, it's about the 
same BTU content after recycling. We find it tends to help 
burn it -- a cleaner burn. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Some of your other facilities 
around the nat iC?n, are they located in states where recyc 1 ing 
is an aggressive part of people's daily activ~ties? 

MR. ROOT: Yes. In fact, a couple ·of years ago, 
Marion County, Oregon, where we operate a facility, had the 
highest countywide rate in the country. I don't know if they 

st i 11 do; I tend to think they mc..y not, but it is in the 
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Northwest, and there are great economic incem:ives 

there. The facility has been operating superbly. 

to recycle 

In fact, 

that was the first one in the country with a scrubber bag house 

on it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: So you're presenting a view that 

recycling and resource recovery are totally compatible as 

strategies in today's society? 

MR. ROOT: Absolutely. And vital components-- Not 

everyone necessarily needs a waste-to-energy facility, but just 

because you recycle doesn't mean that it precludes one. They 

work very well together. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Is there any difficulty 

presented to a resource recovery f ac i 1 i ty by the burning of 

plastics, or by the plastic with the heavy metal content, the 

dyes and· so forth? 

MR. ROOT: Clearly to the extent that the materials 

coming in could be cleaned up and hazardous elements removed, 

it improves emissions in ash. But, we can still control it 

with-- We don't generate.metals in our facilities, but we can 

capture them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I frankly am impressed by the 

statistic of the amount of metal that your facilities recover. 

from the waste stream and sell at apparently a substantial 

profit. 

MR. ROOT: Yes, we generally will share those revenues 

with the communities where we're involved. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. Any questions Mr. 

Jacobson? (negative response) 

MR. ROOT: Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I appreciate you coming before 

us, Mr. Root. We now have Caroline Rennie·, from Polysource 

Mid-Atlantic Corporation. Would you join us please? 

C A R O L I N E R E N N I E: Thank you very much. My name 

is Caroline Rennie. I represent Poly~er Resource Group. We're 
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a plastics recycling firm based in Baltimore, Maryland. We 

take all mixed bottles-- Our long-termed goal is to take tl::e 

entire plastics packaging post consumer waste stream and 

recycle that. We've been told a great deal that the big 

problem in plastics recycling is markets, and what we need to 

do is to develop markets. It was in response to cries from 

markets that we came and decided to settle on Maryland where 

there was mandatory recycling. 

When we arrived, we had the technology, we had the 

engineers, we had the staff, we had the capital; what we didn't 

have, but thought we could get, was the feedstock. We were 

wrong. It is extremely difficult to get the feedstock from 

curbside collection programs if plastics are not mandated for 

·collection. There's strong resistance. There's a lack of 

public awareness that the plastics can be recycled. And 

there's no legislative incentive for plastics to be recycled. 

Generally the mandate -- and this is certainly true 

for Maryland -- is for recycling by weight and source reduction 

-- recycling reduction by weight. Plastics do not account for 

a sign_ificant enough percentage of ·the weight, by weight, to 

reduce the waste stream in the same propo'rtion that they can 

help, if you decide to take into· account the volume that they 

take up. The conservative estimates of the volume that the 

plastics make up of the waste stream right now is 18%. Other 

people have made it closer to 25%. 

Clearly it would be extremely helpful to take these 

out of the landfills, since the landfills fill up not by weight 

but by volume. But whether that is important now, almost 

doesn't matter. In 1960 there were almost no plastics in the 

waste stream whatsoever.· By 1970 we had 3 million tons, by 

1980 we had 7 million tons. This year we' re throwing away 12 

million tons, and we expect this to double in the next 10 

years, to 20 million tons. Clearly, if we set in place the 

infrastructure now to rEcycle the plastics, we can avoid a 

tremendous problem later. 
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Firms like ours are finding that we're having to 

compete for the materials that we do want, with a lot of the 

other firms who you'll find are testifying here today. There's 

really no likelihood that there's going to be a plastics glut, 

the way that we see a newspaper glut, because the capital 

investment that you have to make in order to recycle plastics 

is on the order of $10 million. The capital investment that 

you have to make to recycle newspapers is something on the 

order of $200 million to $500 million. Clearly, if you create 

a supply of plastics, the demand for that plastic can be 

created very quickly. We can, within six months to a year, set 

up a ful 1-scale plant to recycle plastics, and we can, within 

four months, do what we've now done in Maryland, which is set 

up a prototype recycling plant very small-scale and 

unfortunately unprofitable in order to prove to the 

municipalities locally, that we can take their plastics and we 

can recycle them, and then we can continue to do that as they 

grow. So we have set up a modular technology that will take 

all the post consumer plastics generated by households and 

recycle them. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: How ~ large is your plant in 

Maryland? 

MS. RENNIE: Right now we' re running a line that can 

do about 400 pounds an hour, and we can go as many shifts as we 

need to go. In the long term, we'd be looking anywhere between 

20 and 40 million pounds a year. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Is that a $10 million a year 

investment? 

MS . RENNIE:. Yes . I mean we would size it depend_ing 

upon the curbside programs as they come on-line. 

Unfortunately, we've found that we've been investing an entire 

year now, and the plastics are just starting to come out. And 

so, we really support any legislative incentive that you can 
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create to make plastics recycling work, because unless the 

plastics are aggregated, we don't have the feedstock to use. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: That is one of the concerns that 

this Conunittee has and one of the directions we want to pay 

very much attention to. How many employees do you employ in 

Maryland? 

MS. RENNIE: Well, right now we're looking at six. We 

hope again to be expanding. Within the next year-and-a-half 

we' 11 bring a full scale plant on-line and in the end we hope 

to be employing about 30. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And you are a competitor of 

Union Carbide, Allied Signal, all the major manufacturers. 

MS. RENNIE: Well, that's right. Yes, and essentially 

what's happening in the legislative climate nowadays is that 

plastics recycling is favored for the firms that can absorb 

this tremendous investment -- the investment of working very 

closely with all the municipalities to make recycling work -­

and works against firms like ours which are small, and 
. . 

independent, and local. We try to sell ourselves as economic 

development locally. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. Any 

questions? (no response) Well, I appreciate your testimony; 

it helps us·very much. Thank you. 

MS. RENNIE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We have Terry Williams from Day 

Products. Mr. Williams? Good afternoon. 

T E R R Y WI LL I AMS: Good afternoon. I'm here today 

without a prepared text or speech. I'm here jus·t to really 

give you ~n overview. of what and where Day Products has come 

from, and where we intend to go, and to tell you a little bit 

of our perception with plastics recycling in the State of New 

Jersey. 

I'd like first of all to take you back a few years. 

Day Products was created by an engineering and construction 
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company called Day and Zimmerman located in Philadelphia, 

Pennsyivania. Day and Zimmerman is a national and 

international company that employs about 13 million 

professionals (sic) across the U.S. and world. Three years ago 

we looked at a way to reinvest our engineering expertise into a 

new business, and after an assessment of the businesses 

available to us, we chose plastics recycling as the one that we 

wanted to invest our time and technology into. 

We worked very diligently for about a year-and-a-half 

with really understanding, or trying to understand, the status 

of the recycling industry. Who was in it, why were they in it, 

where was the industry 1 ikely to go, and could we play an 

effective role in the industry? After this year-and-a-half 

study and assessment of the ... ~~dustry, we decided as a company, 

that we could really participate in this industry and might 

even spur some further development of the industry. 

We then sited our facility. Again after some months 

of study, we looked at various states and locations. We 

decided to site our facility in New Jersey because we believed 

that the climate in New Jersey 'is very conducive to recycling, 

and we believe that even though at the_ time that we chose New 

Jersey, that plastics were not included as a recyclable i tern, 

that ·in the very near future plastics could be included as a 

recyclable item. 

New Jersey is really a partner with us. We financed 

our business through industrial revenue bonds issued with the 

State's support and we have, I guess, collected about $6. 1 

million of IRBs to make this business possible for us in South 

Jers~y. You have heard from several other people that we have 

a 40 million pound per year processing capability now, in 

place, in New Jersey. - That was started in October when we 

commercialized our plant. We're now up to full production 

capacity, and we are producing reclaimed plastic material at a 

rate of 5000 pounds ~A hour. 
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We employ locally, in South Jersey, 75 people that all 

come from the Gloucester County area. We have also used the 

State to help us train those people. The State has provided 

money for us to get our employees trained and brought up to 

speed with the operation of our equipment. 

We believe today that what you' re doing here in this 

Committee will very much impact our ability to grow our 

business, and to continue as a business in New Jersey. For our 

raw material feedstock is only one, and that's the plastic 

container that is thrown away by the consumer, and we have a 

vicious appetite -- 40 million pounds of this material. 

What you've heard already is, if you are successful in 

total~y collecting all of the PET beverage containers in the 

State of New Jersey, you might collect 25 million pounds of 

these containers. We've heard n·umbers 25 to 3 5 mi 11 ion 

pounds. So our plant alone, by _its own capacity, could really 

recycle 100% of all of the used PET containers, soft drink 

containers, in the State. We also have the capability of 

recycling high density polyethylene. We do that really as a 

bifunction of our recycling process. 

Most of you are aware that bottles today are two piece· 

containers, with the top part with clear plastic - being 

polyethylene terepthalate, and the bottom part, the black or 

colored material, is usually high density polyethylene. Our 

process that we licensed from Rutgers -- and after we licensed 

that, we spent considerable dollars improving it and bringing 

·it up to commercial scale -- has the capability· to separate 

that material into very useful and high valued end-products. 

And, that's our whole business today. It is taking these_ used 

beverage containers out of the waste stream, bringing them to 

our facility, reclaiming them, recycling them, and selling them. 

as very high valued added resin. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: You don't make a product. 

That's your prod·1ct; the res in. 
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MR. WILLIAMS: That is our product, a resin material. 
And that resin material, right today, we' re taking orders for 
material deliveries for the next couple of years. If you were 
to call as an industry owner saying that you required so many 
pounds of that material, we could not sell it to you today, 
because we cannot produce it fast enough. So it's a very 
exciting industry for us, but it's one that right now has very 
limited growth with just the availability of material. We' re 
having to bring material in from a wide surrounding area, just 
to feed the plant. We'd like to start seeing more of that 
material brought back out of the State of New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. A question: Do you 
accept those detergent type bottles? 

MR. WILLIAMS: We do not at this point. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: You do not; strictly the two 

beverage container type bottles. 
MR. WILLIAMS: That is correct. 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We appreciate very much your 

testimony. We do have the Day Products Company-- What county 
did you say it's in? It's in Gloucester--

Williams. 

MR. WILLIAMS: Logan Township, Gloucester County.· 
ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Well,_ thank you very much Mr. 

We appreciate you coming before the Corruni ttee. We 
next have Mr. Roger Prevot of the Sonoco Graham Company. We're 
probably going to have a presentation by the Sonoco Graham 

Company. In this age of electronics, it's nice to have someone 
very well prepared. 
ROGER PREVOT: We'll try to break things up a little 
bit. I am Roger Prevot, Business Development ~anager for 
Sonoeo Graham Company. Sonoco Graham Company is not. a company 
name that· you' re probably familiar with, though you would be 

familiar with the bottles we make. We're the largest producer 
of HDPE bottles in the United States and in the world. Those 

bottles ar"3 in all of your homes. The bottles our company 
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makes are a big part of the solid waste problem. They are in 

all of your homes, and we are determined to get them out. What 

I'm here to really tell you today--

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: You're a problem solver, 

apparently. Okay. (laughter) 

MR. PREVOT: What I'm here to tell you today is that 

the last year has been a year of dramatic change, just 

incredible revolution in our industry. A year ago when HDPE 

bottles, the type that are used for all the things in your home 

-- bleach, detergent, juice, milk, all of those products -­

when they were collected they did have uses. There was a 

market. However, the market was limited to non-packaging 

applications; things like marine structures, pallets, benches, 

flowerpots, you name it -- many, many things. The problem 

however, is that a higher value application wasn • t available 

and an ~pplication that would be.more insensitive to the price 

of virgin or new feedstocks, and an application that would 

match the amount of bottles being put into the waste stream the 

demand would be matched to what's coming in -- the influx. 

What has happened in the last year is our industry, 

our company, and some others working as wel 1, have developed 

what we now call "bottles-to-bottles recycling." That is the 

ability to take a bottle we make, retrieve it from a community, 

and reuse it in producing another bottle. What that does is, 

it makes the plastic bottle fit into the same recyclable 

category as an aluminum beverage can. That is the la-st year's 

progress. 

Now, I do have a videotape that I'd like to share with 

you because it invites you into our plant, and it apprises you 

of the programs we're pursuing. And it shows you that we have 

the problem that Day Products· indicated, Polysource indicated, 

all these other companies indicated; that thanks to that 

development and the earlier development of markets for soda 

bottles and fiber applications, we now have a demand f0r those 
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types of packages that far exceed the supply. We need your 

help. I don't know what the best way for you to help is, but 

we need your help in getting bottles out of the household, away 

from the landfills, and into one of the facilities. I am 

indifferent, relatively, as to whose facility it goes into. 

Our company will buy a pelletized material from any reprocesser 

of plastic bottles. That is we'll buy it from Union Carbide, 

we' 11 buy it from Wellman -- as we do -- we' 11 buy it from 

Polysource. But the battle we need to win, is the battle to 

get bottles collected. 

Probably the best point made today so far, was by 

Polysource and that is, that we·' ve got to start somewhere. 

And, as with paper -- and people aren't aware of this as much 

as you are -- there are all different types of paper, and 

unfortunately, all different types of plastic, and one by one 

we're going to win the battle of developing a viable recycling 

lo.op for those materials. But, we've won the battle on the 

plastic soda bottle, and that's several years running now, and 

Day Products is ready to eat them up, as is Wellman and 

others. We've also won the battle on the HDPE bottle. 

Now, I recognize that it's frustrating to your 

constituents to· hear, "Well, those many other things aren't 

recyclable yet, but what a great beginning." If you look in 

your trash in your own household, and see what plastics is 

filling up the bin, chances are, it's a mix of soda bottles, 

bleach bottles, and milk bottles. And then the other things 

are a lesser proportion, lesser percentage, and those things 

we'll comment on. So, if I can, I'll get this thing going. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: How long is this ~resentation? 

MR. PREVOT: This tape is 10 ·minutes and there is a 

point that I could cut in at about 7 or 8. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Ten minutes? Okay, 1 O minutes 

is all right, we can deal with that. Thank you. 
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MR. PREVOT: If I can get it running. (presents 
videotape) I'll stop it there because everyone's been here for 
awhile. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. Thank you. I 
thought you might come on screen again. We were hoping 
you'd-- (laughter) 

MR. PREVOT: Is it real, or is it-- (laughter) The 
value or point of that I hope that came across, is that one 
company is before you today, the leader in making these bottles 
that are going into your landfills, and showing you -- that's 
our owner on the screen there, it's his first television 
appearance -- totally conunitted to taking responsibility for 
our bottles. 

The point was made earlier that money needs to go into 
starting new programs. Well, I'll tell you, a lot of money has 
gone in. Money has been put in by us to dev.elop the technology 
to use the plastic. Money has been put in to develop recycling 
plants. By other firms, mo~ey has been put in. Money is going 
in. Now, we' re anxious to cooperate with communities. Our 
company will discuss a long-term contract with a specific 
community and guarantee to take material or, we'll do it with a 
specific recycler and guarantee to_ take material. Part of that 
guarantee can be a floor price or even a fixed price. The kind 
of demand from companies like Proctor & Gamble, Lever Brothers, 
the automotive lubricants companies-- It's real demand, and 
it's permanent. 

Their bottles don't go up and down. That's a real 
business; that's stable~ and if they determin~ to go to 50%, 
they'll stay there, and they've made that commitment too. The 
problem now is that we've got-- A year or two ago we had a 
missing link. And that was in the technology, and the 
infrastructure to reprocess. It's gone now. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: What percentage of your old 

bottles do you reprocess into your new ones? Is it 100% of 

those pellets totally comprised of what was the old bottle that 

you're recycling in your process? 

MR. PREVOT: The way the technology works is a firm 

like Wellman or Day or another firm, would take in 100% post 

consumer bottles and process the material to a pelletized 

form. Those pellets then are shipped into a bottle making 

plant of ours and blended or layered with virgin material. Now 

today there's such a scarcity of that recycled material that 

we're limited to a very small percentage. The programs you saw 

there range from 15% to 25% of the bottle being recycled 

material. I have a bottle in my case that's 100%. We've made 

bottles with 100% plastics. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Well, do you think that in five 

years that the major part of your business will be in 100% 

recycled containers? 

MR. PREVOT: No . 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: No? 

MR. PREVOT: No, and the limiting factor will be 

collection. We buy, to make the bottles we produce today, 300 

million pounds of HDPE a year. Our goal is to convert one­

third of that to recycled material. That's 100 million 

pounds. I don't know where it's going to come from? The 

facilities are in place. I don't know where the collected 

bottles are going to come from? 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I've often heard the concern by 

environmentalists that the HDPE bottle presents a problem for . 
the waste stream insofar as air pollution, resource recovery 

facilities, and also tor disposal in landfills. Do you want to 

comment on that? Is this a danger to our society, your kind of 

container? 

MR. PREVOT: The only comment I can make which I think 

j s we:l substantiated by the Envirorur'.ental Defense Fund and 
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other environmental advocacy groups. High density polyethylene 

is one of the most benign plastics. It is inert, and whet:her 

in a landfill or on a roadside or anywhere, its biggest problem 

is, nothing happens to it. And so, the good news is that it's 

stable and doesn't leave anything in the groundwater or leave 

anything going into the air. The bad news is that it sits 

there. As you pointed out earlier, it's a very durable 

material. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And creates no impact insofar as 

pollution of the air? 

MR. PREVOT: No, even in incineration. In an 

incinerator operating at its normal specifications, it is a 

very pure high BTU fuel. Now, our position as a company is, we 

don't want any of our bottles to go to an incinerator. We want 

to recycle them. If they do go to an incinerator in the 

meantime, the scientific evidence that we've seen is that 

there's no harm done and in fact, if you care to, you can 

extract the energy value. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: How do you- feel about 

voluntarily providing a message on your container that this 

container can be recycled or, should be recycled? Do you like 

that kind of government regulation or persuasion? 

MR. PREVOT: I think that's a great thing to do. A 

year ago we couldn't have done it because it wouldn't have been 

fair to say "recycle this container," and then not be ready to 

take it. - Today we' re ready to take them. So if you were to 

say this container can be recycled, it.could be deliv~red. The 

problem, of course, is that the types of brands we produce are 

national brands, and any State legislation r;equiring special 

labeling is a difficult burden on the marketer of those 

products. Tide laundry detergent isn't made just for New 

Jersey so it would be-- That's more of a nationally practical 

solution. However, hopefully some of these companies will 
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begin to mark on their boxes and on their bottles that it's 

made with 11 X11 % recycled material. So, that's it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Very good. Thank you, Mr. 

Prevot. I don't believe we have any questions. You've done 

quite well this afternoon. We appreciate that. 

MR. PREVOT: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: We'll now hear-- You had 

mentioned the Wellman Company. I know they're located here in 

New Jersey. Mr. Dennis Sabourin. I hope I'm pronouncing that 

close to what it should be. Sabourin. (corrects pronunciation) 

D E N N I S S A B 0 U R I N: That's an excellent 

approximation of my name. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. It's the best I 

could do. 

MR. SABOURIN: Yes, thank you. It's a pleasure to be 

with you this afternoon and be able to tell you something about 

the Wellman organization. My name is Dennis Sabourin, I'm Vice 

President with Wellman. Wellman has its executive offices here 

in Shrewsbury, New Jersey. What I intend to do is, following 

what the Chairman indicated this morning, to give you an idea 

of who we are as a company, what we manufacture, . how we 

recycle, what we recycle. in terms of percentage, and what can 

the State do to help u~ in our quest to recycle. 

Wellman is the largest recycler of post consumer and 

industrial plastics in the United States; as a matter of fact, 

in·the world. We are different than other recyclers in that we 

make and use products, as weli as raw materials, from the 

material that we recycle. The products that we manufacture are 

engineering resins for the injection. molding business and 

polyester and nylon staple products. Those staple products are 

utilized by our customers to make things· like carpeting·, 

geotextile fabrics, blankets, filling for furniture, and the 

like. 
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We are committed to recycle at the curbside as our 

major effort in promoting recycling. We, today, have the 

capability of recycling in our existing facilities, 160 million 

pounds of post consumer plastics. Last year we recycled more 

than 110 million pounds of post consumer plastics in our 

operation. 

Assemblyman Shinn talked about the stable markets in 

plastics recycling. Well, Wellman has been recycling since 

1964, starting first with industrial recycling and we have been 

recycling post consumer plastics since 1979. At that time it 

was only PET bottles. We today, in the United States alone, 

could utilize more than 425 million pounds of post consumer 

plastics for our domestic operations. If you consider our 

European operation, we could utilize more than 625 million 

pounds of post consumer plastics. 

I am echoing what some of the other speakers said 

earlier: We cannot get the plastics we need to operate our 

facilities. In terms of economics, as As~emblyrnan Shinn 

pointed out, we have had a stable market since 1979. Plastics 

continue to be -- and has· been since 1979 -- the second most 

valuable recyclable; second only after aluminum. We continue 

to expand and we will be expanding our facility to take 

plastics other than those which we are currently recycling. 

Today Wellman is recycling PET beverage bottles, and water and 

milk jugs made of high density polyethyle~e. Those two 

products have the highest value; therefore, we can offer to 

communities the highest value for their products, and can 

offset the costs that Representative Shinn mentioned, the high 

cost of collection. 

We favor the collection of other plastics from the 

solid waste stream, but only after sortation systems have been 

developed, and they've not yet been developed on a large 

scale. So, our position is that we will continue to recycle 

and urge you to add as a mand~tory recyclable, beverage 
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containers and water and milk jugs made of high density 

polyethylene at the curbside, and to look to adding the other 

rigid plastics as sortation systems are developed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: What are you reconunending as far 

as sorting systems? I mean you're seeming to--

MR. SABOURIN: Yes, we are developing, sir, a 

sortation system that will take a mixed stream of plastics and 

sort them into their generic types. This is really the answer 

to the conunercialization of recycling. To be able to take a 

generically separated plastic after it has been taken from a 

mixed rigid stream, and then be able to manufacture a product 

from that as Roger Prevot said, the high density polyethylene 

bottles, or making a product made of polyester, PET, or making 

a product made of PVC. 

We feel that will develop in the not too distant 

future, and we should evolve into that as those systems are 

available. In that way, we could offer value for a high 

~ality product, and then give continuity to markets. That is 

really the essence of my presentation today, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN · McENROE: Thank you. When you say, "in 

that not too distant future," can you pin that down a bit? 

MR. SABOURIN: One year, sir. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: One year from now you think if. 

legislation worked its way through the Cammi ttee process and 

was accepted by the .Governor as good law, that you'd be 

prepared and ready for this new process? 

MR. SABOURIN: Well even more than that, sir. We 

could today, accept PET and high density polyethylene water and 

milk jugs. The mixed stre~m, Wellman will have within a year. 

I can speak for Wellman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And ability to deal with it. 

MR. SABOURIN: That's correct, yes sir. We can take 

now the two, PET and HDPE. The mixed stream we could separate 

in a year. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. How much of your 

operation is centered in New Jersey? 

MR. SABOURIN: Very little today. We are buying raw 

material from New Jersey, but we have a recent venture cal led 

New England Crinc, which we've announced the purchase of, which 

is a state-of-the art multimaterial recycling facilities. We 

see that as being an opportunity for further expansion in New 

Jersey. As a matter of fact, the Cr inc technology is being 

used in the Cumberland County MURF that's under construction, 

and we see that as an area for expansion. We have today, two 

bottle cleaning facilities, one in Allentown, Pennsylvania, and 

the largest where we employ 1900 people, is in Johnsonville, 

South Carolina. We utilize the material from New Jersey as a 

source of raw material. We look at the MURF concept as - our 

next dollar capital expansion in the State of New Jersey 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: So has New Jersey been a 

profitable experience for your company? 

MR. SABOURIN: Yes . It has been a s 1 ow-go, I 'd have 

to say, because we are working diligently to have plastics 

picked up, and -it has been an effort that has not been as 

successful as we'd like to have seen it. But, we feel that if 

we continue to work at it, and it will pay dividends. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Sabourin. 

We appreciate your coming before the Committee with your 

testimony. May we hear now from George Glenn, Wheaton 

Plastics? Mr. Glenn? 

G E 0 R G E GLENN: First of all, I'd like to thank you 

for inviting me here to speak bef;>re you. 

Glenn. I'm General Manager of Wheaton 

My name is George 

Plastic Recycling 

Company, a division of Wheaton Industries located in Southern 

New Jersey, in Cumberland County. A little bit about the 

facility itself and our industry as a whole: 

We are a company that is presently privately owned, 

the oldest in the country. We' re aiJproximately 105 years old 
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to this date. The company was started primarily as a glass 

company. From the advent of plastics we got into -- right 

after the post war era -- we got into injection molding and 

injection blow molding procedures. We held patents for 

machinery for injection blow molding. We're the first to 

manufacture machinery for high density, low density, and PET; 

presently what's being used for soda bottle containers. 

We had a problem within our industries. We presently 

own approximately 26 plastic facilities and over 16 glass 

companies, worldwide. We're in China, Brazil, all through 

Europe and Australia with associates. Our major problem was 

disposal of plastic waste. 

Being a pharmaceutical and a cosmetic company, our 

specs are so high that we had a massive problem ·as to the 

amount of plastics being able to be reutilized back into the 

finished product. Our specs were so intolerant at times, that 

the material was not able to be used. It would have to be sold 

to a low end user. Mt. Wheaton forsaw this as a major expense 

to our company and a total disadvantage to us, · as one of the 

major leaders in this industry as it is. So with the advent of 

approximately about a year-and-a-half ago, he put me upon the 

task of building him, a facility in Southern New Jersey, very 

close to the 

! rporate headquarters, for the process of recycling, not only 

our post industrial material from our facilities, but also 

attempting to get into the post consumer market. 

We're approximately a year old to this date. I'm 

presently picking up in 23 different communities within the 

Southern Jersey area. We did everything on a voluntary basis. 

There were no contracts signed with any of these communities; 

basically because we wished to feel the outcome public 

outcry, for what they would request. We provided trailers to 

the communities at no expense, where they would place their 

plastic containers into the trailer. We would pick these 
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trailers up, take them to our facility, have them segregated, 

granulated, washed, repelletized, and remanufactured. 

We're unique in the fact that we don't highly 

publicize our company. Being privately owned, it's more 

advantageous that we prove that we have a very good set 

groundwork before anything is allowed out. What we are also 

unique in is that we are also a remanufacturer, all within the 

same three facilities. 

What our most present problem, as I guess voiced by my 

predecessors before me, ·is the fact that our feed stock is 

extremely small, being dependent upon just the Southern Jersey 

area. We are now presently accepting materials from as far 

away as New York, Florida; wherever I can possibly get ahold of 

the material. The demand for it, whether it be Sonoco Graham, 

Rubbermaid, or any other major manufacturer such as Wellman, 

Day Products, so forth, is so highly -- I guess the best word~­

The appetite is just so aggressive as one stated before,_ that 

there's no way I could possibly keep up with the demand for a 

good, clean, quality product, unless something is done in the 

near future to implement some form of program to make it 

advantageous to industry to utilize the post consumer 

material. Being a pharmaceutical-cosmetic, obviously, we are 

not allowed to use it i~ present bottle manufacturing that we 

do, or in injection molding procedures. So, it's also brought 

us into a newer advent and a new market which we had kind of 

let go many years ago, because we considered ourselves a high· 

quality, high volume area. 

So, really what we've done is put ourselves up on a 

pedestal and now . have turned around and tried to regain a lot 

of the infrastructure that we had lost over the many years of 

placing ourselves up so high. And, what I'm presently 

requesting and asking is that something be done in the near 

future to help us an as industry, as wel 1 as a conununi ty, to 
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guarantee some way of continuing in our business venture as it 

is. Us providing the transportation for mixed, commingled 

material to our facility at no cost to the townships, is 

extremely expensive as you can well agree with. But the idea 

was done to see what the public opinion would be, and to 

perceive what, I guess the community as a whole, would like to 

do. Not given any guidelines by the government, we gave no 

specifications, no limitations. We just said, "Please place 

these containers within our facility; we will take care of them 

from there." 

Now public pressure has been, where we've been forced 

to ask the communities to help participate; either in helping 

us trail these in hauling fees, so forth, just to guarantee 

that this material that something we have started will 

continue with them. I think it would be wrong in every way, 

shape, and form to have started something -- and we w"ill not 

back away from it and just totally leave it -- but. I think it 

would be wrong for the government not to help and aid industry, 

which helps and aids in the income of Southern Jersey, Northern 

Jersey, wherever it would be at that part icu1 ar time, but to 

help us maneuver and help us grow as a company. 

My company wi 11 only grow as wel 1 as the community 

grows. Presently _we employ 40 full-time workers.. We worked 

through a whole facility handling handicapped workers, which we 

found to be very advantageous to doing specific jobs, and we're 

running 24 hours a day, five days a week. Essentially, th~t is 

the whole jist of my business, and, I would just ask for your 

support. The facility is always open for visitation, and we 

would encourage it in any way. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I know the 

reputation the Wheaton Industries has in New Jers·ey and .around 

the world. I appreciate your summation of your experience. In 

other words, you're strongly supportive of any effort to 

require mandatory rec1cling. 
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MR. GLENN: Yes. Myself-- As just from a personal 

point of view, something has to be done sooner or later. We 

have very few avenues to approach. You either incinerate it or 

you recycle it. We have no in-between ground left anymore. We 

have no facility to dump it, we have no cost-effective method 

of handling it. This to me is my only personal opinion as to 

what can be done in a safe, effective manner. And, we are just 

simply asking for your support in any way, shape, and form. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: And do you deal with al 1 the 

plastic materials, the scrap plastics--

MR. GLENN: We're dealing specifically-- We requested 

only specific contairrers. In the beginning it was PET soda 

bottles, whether it be green or clear, milk bottle containers, 

but· the public being the public, you· re. going to get a mixed 

batch of essentially a lot of different materials. So what you 

do is, you learn to cope with that, and your company has to 

learn to deal with that as it grows. I don't forsee right now 

a major advantage to commingling everything in God· s acre 

toys, and so forth because it is extremely difficult. 

Our process right now is such that it· s done on a 

visual means; it's not done on an automatic. To the best of my 

knowledge, there is no real effective method right now in that 

form, so we're depending upon a visual inspection of· the 

material for people to be able to place it into different 

segregated containers. That, I see as something, yes, that 

will come in the· future, but I don't see inundating the world 

with a problem and claiming we have solutions when at times 

there are-- The stage is not set for that particular--

Yes, it will come. It will come very soon, I'm sure. 

But, my suggestion as a person w~o • s from Wheaton Industries 

is, .gradually grow into something. If you inundate the public 

with a lot of rule~, regulations, and so forth, you should be 

expecting problems. But we, as an industry, will help. And we 

will continue to help, as we have. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much. I 

appreciate you corning before the Cammi ttee. We have also Mr. 

Porrazzo. Sal Porrazzo representing Pepsi Cola Company. I 

appreciate everyone being patient this afternoon. This has 

been a long hearing, and I do want to give everyone an 

opportunity, so we'll move right along. Mr. Porrazzo, welcome. 

S A L P O R R A Z Z 0: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and the 

Committee. I welcome the opportunity to speak today. I am the 

Director of Environmental Affairs for the Pepsi Cola Company. 

Pepsi Cola also supports the Plastic Recycling Corporation of 

New Jersey. I am the current President of that organization. 

We also support .. the Center for Plastic Recycling Research at 

Rutgers University, both in executive capacity and board 

membership. And last, we also supp~rt the Coalition of 

Northeast Governors' Solid Waste Council. Pepsi Cola is on the 

board of directors. 

We're working very hard to have our packages recycled, 

especially in New Jersey; e?pecially PET. Since it has not 

been included in the curbside, it's made it very difficult to 

get PET recycled, and we've spent a lot of time in trying to 

accomplish this in most places. PET represents a major portion 

of our business in New Jersey, and also, because of its large 

size, and the fact that we can deliver two litres in one 

container, it makes it a source reduced package as well as an 

economic value to our consumers. 

All of our packages are highly recycled. In fact, 

they're being recycled nationally at a strong rate. Because of 

the current Mandatory Recycling Act specifying three materials 

plus yard waste, PET was left out, and it's very di ff icul t to 

bring it back, after the fact. But now that PET is being 

recycled in some communities in New Jersey, we'd like· to see 

PET treated like all our other packages that we market in this 

State. As a result of this, possibly you would consider adding 
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PET to the recycling network currently existing with the 

Mandatory Recyc 1 ing Act . That ' s a 11 I have to say. Thank 

you. Any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you Mr. Porrazzo. I 

appreciate your comments on behalf of your company. It is one 

of the matters we have under consideration in the Cammi ttee. 

We have Wayne Defeo, Mid-Atlantic Region National Solid Waste 

Management Association. Mr. Defeo, if you would join us please? 

W A Y N E D. D E F E 0: Mr. Chairman, thank you for the 

opportunity to speak today. With me is Darlene Snow. Darlene 

is our manager of the Waste Recyclers Council which is part of 

National Solid Waste Management Association. I take this 

opportunity again to thank you on behalf of NSWMA to speak here 

today. 

We know that recycling is certainly a critical issue 

in the State of New Jersey. We believe that much of the 

testimony given today has, hopefully, been quite useful to 

you. We also have a tremendous amount of information in our 

storage, which I'm not going to burden you with this afternoon. 

Of course, I offer that to you at anytime, if you would like it. 

I• d like to reecho a few things here today; one of 

which, as we have heard on several occasions, is that there is 

a market for many materials. There is the capacity to recycle 

many of these materials. The problem has been the collection 

and getting materials to those facilities. I believe I can 

safely say that it's our members that can best do that. Our 

members are nationally,· of course, over 2500 companies and in 

New Jersey over 170 companies -- nearly 200 now, that deal in 

collection and transport. They've been transporting and 

recycling mat·erials for many, many, many years. Of course, 

they can move the material more efficiently than most others, 

because it's really not much different than the ·solid waste 

they haul. It's just in a clean form, if you will. 
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I'd like also to agree with the fact that John Czapor 

spoke first today, that recycling and counting everything is 

critical. As you know there's been a lot of talk in New Jersey 

regarding 50% targets, 60% targets, whatever, but one has to 

have a percentage of something, and I applaud the DEP for 

taking a stance that we should count the entire waste stream, 

because without counting that, we really don't have a 

percentage of a true figure. 

One of the elements of recycling that has been 

discussed is the fact that residential recycling is critic al. 

Residential recycling is critical for several reasons. We are 

trying to adjust the behavior of over 7. 5 mi 11 ion people, and 

that is no easy task. You've heard the danger of contamination 

of recyclable materials; that you bring in a load of materials, 

it has less value. We know also, that it is difficult for 

municipalities to run recycling programs cost-effectively. 

Of course, when a municipality runs any form of 

collection program, the ·true cost of that program is hidden. 

The taxpayer does not know, per se, what actual costs are, and 

we endorse DEP's comments earlier as well that the true cost of 

solid waste and recycling ·should really be made known to 

people, because this thing gives them· a true cost of the 

product they are buying. For example, if they are buying a 

less durable good they should know it's going to cost a certain 

amount of money to throw that good in the garbage later, when 

it might cost them 11 Y11 to recycle it. In terms of recyc 1 ing 

materials and total amounts, l'm going to turn to Darlene for a 

moment, because Darlene has a national picture, and th~t may 

help us in New Jersey. 

D A R L· E N E S N O W: Mr. Chairman, thank you for the· 

opportunity to speak. What I'm here today to impress upon you 

is that our industry -- and you may not have an idea of exactly 

the scope of our industry; we include not only the refuse 

haulers but ~any of the recyclers in the country and.landfill 
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operators, and obviously waste-to-energy companies whom you've 
already heard from. Our industry has almost one-half billion 
dollars invested in recycling in the United States. We have 
some preliminary estimates of our investment in New Jersey and 
it's certainly in the tune of several million dollars. We 
expect that those numbers are very low because we've only 
gotten a few numbers in from some companies. 

We have recycled several million tons of material in 
New Jersey alone in 1989; a lot of paper, some aluminum cans, 
glass, plastic containers, yard waste, concrete, and asphalt. 
We, as an industry, provide curbside collection to over 2.5 
million households in the United States, and we' re actively 
investigating new areas or new potentials for recycling. If 
you take the waste stream composition, we believe that at least 
two-thirds of the waste stream is potentially recyclable, and 
as Mr. Defeo has pointed out, if we can get seven million 
households to participate in New Jersey, that.we may be able to 
well exceed New Jersey's recycling goal of 25%. 

Basically then -- and to say that from our survey of 
our membership -- the main things that are actually driving 
recycling in localities is effective legislation, which 
surprised us; that they are actually looking toward mandatory 

recycling ~egislation to increase recycling and public 
education. 

The two main elements that are barriers to recycling 
would be the lack of education and market development. So we 
are actively involved, as an industry, in education and market 
development efforts. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. 
MR. DEFEO: Also, on the note of talking briefly about 

the increase in education, again I Id like to take the 

opportunity-- It's not of ten that industry can take an 

opportunity to applaud a State agency, so whenever I can, I 

like to do so. I would like to applaud the DEP for its 

education efforts to date--
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ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: They need all the help they can 
get. They really do. 

MR. DEFEO: --and enc our age more, because we do need 
it. I also would like to take the opportunity to talk briefly 
about commercial recycling -- very briefly. It• s an area that 
was not touched upon in great detail today. 

The commercial sector has many unique problems in 
terms of recycling. It's primarily paper waste; paper and 
corrugated. That problem stems not so much from the ability to 
recycle·, but from the ability to store those materials. What 
occurs in many of our smaller commercial establishments that 
many of our members serve, is that they cannot store the paper, 
because by storing paper for recycling, they are in violation 
of fire codes. And it's not through anyone's fault. It's 
simply those buildings were not designed for storage of paper; 
that's not what they were many years ago. ·And in that regard, 
some of our commercial customers have a problem with true 
source separation, and the State obviously has recognized this, 
as has the Legislature, by granting municipal exemptions to 
individual generators that can prove they go to a licensed 
materials recovery facility. I would poi;Ilt out that many of 
our members have such materials recovery facility permits, and 
we en~ourage many forms of recycling in the State of New 
Jersey. That's the primary message here. 

Source separation: We support it 100% where it is 
practical and where it can be done safely. Where it can not be 
done safely, of course, the State has given 'a very thoughtful 
process to another form of recycling, and that is through a 

. licensed transfer station with a licensed and permitted 
materials recovery facility. And again, we'd like to thank the 

State for thinking that far ahead. 
In closing, all I would like to stress is that NSWMA 

again supports recycling. We are here to help in any way that 
we can, via our members, who are all very interested. We do 
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recognize that there are costs associated with recycling. We 

recognize that those costs should be made known to the 

consumer; to the generator. None of our collectors, as nice as 

they may be as individuals, can afford to run trucks and not be 

paid for their services. We'd just like to say to recognize 

that, and for you to consider that. Thank you for the time 

today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I have a question, 

though. Now you're in the collection business--

MR. DEFEO: Well, I represent the collection business-­

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. Pardon me. I guess both 

of you represent the collection business. 

MR. DEFEO: That's right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I didn't expect that either of 

you were the CEO of the National Solid Waste Management 

Company. (laughter) 

MR. DEFEO: All in good time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: If you're in the collection 

business, do you strongly support residential separation and 

recycling, or wouldn't you rather do it yourself, since you're 

in the collection business? Wouldn't you rather do your o~ 

recycling, and based on the profit·.of the organizations you 

represent, wouldn't that·be a more businesslike ~pproach? 

MR. DEFEO: I may defer to Ms. Snow on this, but I 

would suggest that the comment was made earlier that the prices 

paid for certain materials can offset the cost of collection 

and processing. I would submit that that's not accurate; that 

the prices paid could not possibly offset the costs all by 

themselves. Having run a recycling program, I can say that the 

prices,-. when they were much higher, especially. in the paper 

area, offset about 20% of the total costs of an operation. So, 

you can't make money, per se, just on the recycl.ing. It is on 

the service provided, and by the bill for that service, I 

believe :hat profit can be made. Would you concur? 
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MS. SNOW: If I understand your question, I can answer 
it in two ways: One is, generally speaking, our members prefer 
that residential waste be source separated and that commercial 
waste be kept mixed and they will sort that at a sorting plant 
at a transfer station. If the customer has enough waste, they 
may actually ask them to keep it separate on-site. 

As far as the cost, from the numbers we've seen on 
residential -- the revenues from the materials when the revenue 
was probably a little bit better two years ago -- covered about 
15% to 40% of the collection cost. So, in order for the 
service to be provided, it has to be considered a public 
service, in essence, so that it's ~imilar to refuse collection, 

and in order to have it done, it won't happen with free market 
competition. There is an example, however, of several haulers 
who will offer their residential customers, without a municipal 
contract, recycling for a certain price. And they will say, 
for four dollars a month or two dollars a month, I will pick up 
your recyclables once a week separately. That would be one way 
of the free market system working, if the public wanted it 
badly enough. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: But you are submitting ~- I'm 
sure correctly -- that transportation and collection-- That's 
the majol= part of t·he equation, the cost. 

MS. SNOW: Yes. 
MR. DEFEO: It's very costly. 
MS. SNOW: .And, in fact, processing costs may actually 

escalate for a period while we're trying to meet more stringent 
mail specifications, because the volume of material going to 
markets is much larger'· so they' re getting a larger percentage 
of. contaminants. We have to produce a cle~ner product than we 
had to in the past. 

MR. DEFEO: I ·would also point out that in New Jersey 

it is more difficult for our companies to become more involved 
in recycling because of the current spate of regulation at th{ 
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Beard of Public Utilities. It does hinder, as much as the 

regulations try not to, companies making capital investment. 

On a national scale we see more companies doing recycling than 

we do in New Jersey simply because there's that excessive 

regulation in this State. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Isn · t that for another hearing 

though? (laughter) 

MR. DEFEO: That's for another hearing. I just wanted 

to add that as a closure. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you very much for corning 

before us. I appreciate it. Okay folks, we' re in the home 

stretch here. We have Diane Mensinger representing Union 

Carbide Corporation. (Chairman informed that she is not 

present) We did hear from Union Carbide a bit ear 1 ier, so 

we• 11 assume the testimony she would provide would parallel 

that provided by, Mr. Rouse, I believe it was. 

Michael DiFranco, Occupational Center, Orange, New 

Jersey. I 'rn familiar with the operation of the Center and I 

know how involved they are in recycling and collection 

collection of recyclables, I should say. Good afternoon. 

M I CH A E L Di FRANC 0: Hello. Thank you. My name's 

Michael DiFranco, I'm the Director of Recycling Operations for 

the Occupational Center. The Occupational Center of Essex 

County is the oldest and largest nonprofit vocational training 

center in New Jersey, founded in 1954 to assist disabled adults 

learn skills to make them employable and gain potential for 

self-sufficiency. 

One year prior to mandatory recycling, in, March 1986 

the Occupational Center of Essex County began curbside 

recycling as a means of training our handicapped clients. 

Since 1986 we have grown to service 14 municipalities and over 

125, ooo households in Essex and Bergen Counties. The 

Occupational Center is one of the largest collectors of 
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recycling in New Jersey, and one of the few nonprofits who 

perform curbside collections. 

We started collecting used newspapers, then later 

added glass and aluminum to our collections. When we compare 

tonnage of what we collected in 1988 to 1989, we experienced 

over a 50% increase in weight -- just going from '88 to '89. 

To me, this indicates people in New Jersey have definitely 

become more aware of the necessity of recycling. People are 

looking for more information and want to know what they can do 

in the recycling effort. We constantly get calls: Can we 

recycle this; can we recycle that? The more informed people 

are, and the more convenient the collect ion schedule is, the 

greater the participation in the program. It has been our 

experience, through our newsletters and a more frequent pickup 

schedule, participation rates increased substantially. When we 

started providing news letter service to the towns we collect 

recycling in, within a week after the letter went out-- I found 

out from our drivers that come back and tell me: This 

household put it out, they never put it out before; this one 

did, so the newsletter constantly increases people's awareness 

and increases the ·amount of material that's being collected. 

The Occupational Center believes in recycling. It 

believes in recycling because it is a necessity in our world, 

and also because it provides work opportunities for our 

handicapped and disadvantaged workers. 

Although we believe in the addition of PET and HDPE to 

the list of designated recyclables, there are some inherent 

problems with the collections of plastic. Tw9 of the problems 

facing the municipalities with the collection of plastic are an 

increase in the volume of material being collected, which· 

generates an increase in the manpower hours required to collect 

it, resulting in higher costs, and the other problem is the 

limited number of markets that deal with plastic. There's not 

many choices for municipalities to consider for its markets. I 
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know we've heard from a lot of people who the end market is 
and they're willing to accept ali the plastic they can get 
but as a whole, and as a municipality, the material has to go 
from that municipality all the way to the market, and that's 
where the problem comes in. 

Being in Essex County and having a lot of the plastics 
markets in South Jersey doesn't help at all. There's a need 
for more markets in more strategically located places, because 
as was stated earlier, a lot of the costs that come in with 
recycling is the hauling of it to the market. 

Over the past year, waiting times to unload materials 
have increased substantially at the markets. Another problem 
that the hauler faces with plastic is that the equipment 
available to collect plastic is not efficient, and does not 
make it simple to collect. There's nothing currently available 
that would make it easy for a hauler to collect plastic. 
Depending on how a town is already collecting the material, 
someone had stated earlier it could be added v.ery easily to the 
collection. But some towns collect material colqr separated, 

_ some towns col lee~ it commingled, and depending on how they 
collect it, it makes a difference in how easy it is to add the 
plastic into the mix. 

We would like to make some recorrur. mdations to the 
Legislature. If plastic is to become a designated recyclable: 

1) Provide a funding mechanism, some sort of financial 
rebate for collecting plastic -- a special incentive, something 
in the tonnage grant package that would afford communities 
extra money if they're collecting plastics, in order to 
encourage the~ to start collecting. Also, to provide funding 
for the education of the public thr~ugh newsletters and 
brochures. Provide funding to improve the collection methods, 
and enforce all recycling laws to both residential households 
as well as the commercial and industrial sectors of the 

community. 
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This is probably one of the areas that would most 

rapidly increase the amount of the recycling material because 

we don't see any enforcement on the commercial and industrial 

level for recycling. There's a lot of industry out there that 

winds up saying everything's put in the garbage and it 

eventually gets separated. Well, most of that doesn't really 

get separated. And I think if there was more enforcement along 

those areas, the amount of recycling material would increase 

substantially. That's really all I have to say. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Okay. Thank you very much. 

Most of your comments I certainly agree with regarding 

enforcement and the need for education. I'm very familiar with 

the Occupational Center and what it's meant to its clients, and 

what it's meant to the communities of Essex County, insofar as 

the good job they've done through the years as far as recycling 

efforts in Essex.County. So I do appreciate you coming before 

us. Your comments, of course, are part of our public record 

which we'll review both at staff level and among the members of 

the Cammi ttee. So, my. appreciation for co~ing here _today, Mr. 

DiFranco. 

MR. DiFRANCO: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Next, we have Clare Schulzki 

_representing the New Jersey State Chamber of Commerce. Ms. 

Schulzki. 

C L A R E S C H U L z K I: Good afternoon Assemblyman 

McEnroe, members of the Committee. My name is Clare Schulzki, 

and I'm Associate Director of Government Relations for the 

State Chamber of Commerce. We welcome the opportunity to 

comment today. Many of our members have made substantial 

investments in plastic recycling technology and commitments to . -
using recycled materials. Today you heard from McDonald's, 

James River/Dixie, and Union Carbide; I feel my testimony is 

pretty anticlimatic after all the testimony we heard today, so 

I'll be very brief. 
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The State Chamber has long been a supporter of 

recycling. We put it into practice in our own office. We've 

also encouraged our members to create markets and opportunities 

to recycle materials, and they've done so and will continue to 

do so. 

We believe 

recycling, but has 

New Jersey has come a long way 

further to go yet, specifically 

with 

with 

plastics. In 1986 only a few municipalities recycled PET and 

HDPE plastic bottles. Today we heard from DEP that plastic 

recycling has gone up by 1000%. We be 1 ieve the demand for 

recycled plastics will continue to grow and more processing 

facilities will continue to open. 

Earlier, Mr. Connelly mentioned a study conducted late 

last year on the economic feasibility of adding plastics to 

curbside plastics recycling programs, and the benefits were 

larger than the cost of adding materials to the program. In 

other words, it's cost-effective to recycle plastics. I know 

there's been conflicting testimony today about the actual cost 

benefits of recycling plastics, but I think when you look at 

the money that is saved by avoiding landfill costs, you can see 

the benefits. As our waste disposal costs continue to rise, 

the cost savings of recycling plastics ~ill also continue to 

rise. 

In the past year there have been several proposals to 

ban certain types of plastics, because they don· t degrade or 

disappear. We don't believe this is the most effective way of 

handling our waste. The fact that they've been touted as a 

solution is really misleading and could be counterproductive to 

long-term plastic recycling efforts. 

Unsightly trash on the ro~dside that's improperly 

disposed of is a litter problem, not· just associated with 

plastics. 

addressed 

Program. 

Our members in business> large and small, have 

this ·and contribute to the Clean Communities 

It's people who litter when they're driving to L1e 
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beach, and they throw their coffee cups out the window or leave 

their soda cans behind. We need to continue to change people's 

habits and educate them on the benefits of recycling. 

The Chamber supported the passage of Public Law 268 of 

1989, which makes plastics recycling even easier by adopting a 

uniform plastic container coding system of the Society of the 

Plastics Industry. Containers will be coded with a number 

which will aid in determining the type of plastic and its 

content. 

In our everyday lives we've come to rely on plastic 

for good reason, including its light weight, strength, and low 

cost. We believe that recycling of plastics does and will 

continue to have a substantial cost benefit to both citizens 

and the business community. We heard today that there is a 

market for plastics by industry, and they're fighting to get 

those materials. New Jersey's a -natural leader in recycling, 

and the measures we've outlined can go a long way toward 

developing the necessary infrastructure to make us a leader in 

plastics recycling, as well. 

Thank you for the opportunity to speak today. Do you 

have any questions? 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: I really do not, 

apprec i.ate very much your testimony; right on target. 

but I 

And we 

appreciate the Chamber's strong commitment to recycling in our 

society. 

Association. 

We have Edward Cornell, Waste Management 

Did you want to testify? I wasn't sure whether 

you were testifying or observing. 

E D w A R D c 0 R N E L L: Thank you. I left a slip here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Oh, I'm sorry. 

MR. CORNELL: Thanks very much. Good afternoon, Mr. 

Chairman. I know it's been a long day so I'm not going to be 

long at alL I· m going to be ve.ry short. 

I represent the Waste Management Association of New 

Jersey. It's a trade association representing approxim?tely 80 
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to 85 of the companies owned by private haulers in the State. 

Our companies were in the business of recycling long before it 

became environmentally fashionable. Waste Management members 

continue to have a conunitment to promote the advancement of New 

Jersey's recycling goals and help resolve the solid waste 

problems in the State of New Jersey. 

Some of our companies have moved recycling technology 

into the 21st century, we believe. Their successes are models 

for recycling throughout the industry. One of the reasons I 

stayed to address you today is that we urge the Conuni ttee to 

urge the State departments to include private haulers in the 

actual picking up and delivering of the recyclable materials. 

Although there are some companies that are in it and very big, 

there are other companies that have transfer stations and 

facilities that are not allowed to use it for this type· of 

facility -- for recycling; conuningled or otherwise. That's a 

shame because siting anything in the State of New Jersey having 

to do with the solid waste crisis today is almost impossible. 

It's political suicide for the local mayor to do it, and we 

have shown where one of our past presidents bought a building 

to do it, and they burned it down. 

So, it is a problem that we stand ready to invest in, 

and we st.and on call waiting to make a· contribution into this 

industry. While we're waiting there, we've got regulations on 

sol ~d waste, which I don• t want to get into. However, now 

you• re talking about a regulation of the recycling industry 

which, really we don• t care, because we already have al 1 that 

regulation in the solid waste business. 

you do anything to overregulate 

But we caution that if 

and you should have 

regulations; don't get me wrong, you have to have environmental 

regulations -- if you over regulate, you• re going to increase 

the cost of what we• re talking about today. You' re going to 

decrease the interest in people participating and investing 

private funds into the problems we have today. ~he banks have 
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become shy, even with our industry, because we have such large 

tipping fees in the solid waste area, and we can't get bonds to 

cover the amount to collect waste in local communities. So now 

we can't get loans to improve and build recycling facilities, 

buy trucks, and that type of thing. 

The whole solid waste situation has to tie in with 

recycling. And we feel that if we would get some encouragement 

by the departments in this State having to do with recycling 

and solid waste, our people would then feel as though they 

could actually participate in greater depth and greater 

quantity and vo 1 ume, into the recyc 1 ing aspects . We have two 

-- off the top of my head -- recycling industries in advanced 

waste systems that are now recycling 48% of the waste they take 

into their recycling centers. One is waiting for an approval; 

the other one has an approval. 

You go to these recyc 1 ing forums and you . see towns 

being -- plaques and everything in appreciation for 14%, 18% -­

this type of thing. And that's great, they should be. But the 

industry is never recognized for what they' re doing in the 

recycling aspects of it. And· I know, you probably didn't want 

me to come out-- I've got to tell you some of the problems if 

you' re going to see the progress you've made. And you have 

made progress. The State has made progress, and they should be 

complimented .for it. 

example. 

chipping. 

But there are problems that we have. I have an 

I'm President of a wood chipping firm. We do wood 

We ship to Proctor & Gamble approximately 400 ton a 

week. And there are people in the State departments, and this 

is-- It has to be truthful because I've heard stories like it, 

but I'm personally involved with this one. The State 

Department tells certain people that they can't bring us source 

separated recycling material because ·we' re not State approved. 

Well, the State had told us that while we' re operating and 

waiting for approval, we could take it. So, there's 
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counterproduction measures going on that we feel, on the pickup 

and transportation, and market end of the recycling business 

that maybe the Committee doesn't know, maybe the Department 

doesn't know, and I've decided to stay and just try to make you 

understand those. 

The mandating of plastics is great, and I think it's 

going to produce more plastic recycling and certainly get rid 

of a source of a product that we thought we wouldn't have a 

source for. But as you mandate any product, you' re going to 

reduce' the value in the marketplace. You' re going to, because 

other states are doing what we're doing, you're getting-­

That's a supply and demand situation. I don't have to give you 

that. We charge at our wood recycling plant nine dollars a 

cubic yard to dump at our facility. We don't get anything from 

·Proctor & Gamble to de 1 i ver it over to them. That ' s what ' s 

happening i~ the recycling field, and we think sooner or later 

the paper market may be the same way. We have a Mr. Chips for 

wood, we'll have a Mr. Paper for paper, and a Mr. Aluminum for 

aluminum. I mean,. something' s going to happen when the CEOs of 

these companies start realizing that it's a lot cheaper than 

going to the dump at $134 a ton in Union County, let's say, or 

$137 a ton. You bring yourre wood down to Mr. Chips .. You're 

saving a fortune in what you just picked up from a demolition 

job, or this type of thing. So, these are trends that are 

happening. 

We see the paper-- The paper and corrugated market 

over the years has always been an apex and a decline. We had 

to store it. Now you can't store it. But at one time you had 

to store it till the market went up or you'd be operat~ng at a 

giveaway price. You had to pay to get rid of it at times back 

then. So, the reason I came down was to listen, and I learned 

an awful lot today by the people before me, and I just thought 

I'd add a little bit to your meeting. 

141 



ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I appreciate it very 
much, Mr. Cornell. 

MR. CORNELL: 
to answer them. 

If you have any questions I'd be happy 

ASSEMBLYMAN McENROE: Thank you. I don't really 
believe I have. I appreciate your preparation and your 
comments. The hearing, I believe, is concluded. We have had 
testimony from over 20 individuals, all impacting on what New 
Jersey should do in the area, and what they have done, and what 
their experience has been in recycling. So, on behalf of the 
Committee, I conclude the hearing with much appreciation, and I 
think we're well prepared to review the testimony and prepare 
appropriate legislation or coordination with our DEP and other 
State agencies. Thank you all very much. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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RECYCLING INFORMATION PRESENTED BY: 
NJDEP DIVISION OF SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT 

BEFORE THE: 

ASSEMBLY WASTE MANAGEMENT, PLANNING 
AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE'S PUBLIC HEARING ON: 

"RECYCLING IN NEW JERSEY: PROGRESS REPORT ON THE RECYCLING 
OF ALUMINUM, GLASS, PLAST.IC AND N.EWSPAPERS" 

MAY 10, 1990 



MANDATORY RECYCLING PROGRAM 

O Final Goal: 
- 25°/o of Municipal Waste Stream By Dec. 1990 

o Interim Goal: 
- 15°/o Of Municipal Waste Stream By 1989 

* The municipal waste stream is 60°/o of the total 
waste stream 

O 1988 Statewide Rate: 
- 15 % Municipal Waste Stream 
- 24°1o Total Waste Stream 

O At Least 3 Materials and Leaves 

O Approximately 530 Mu.nicipalities With Ordinances 
- All Recycle Paper,-Glass & Aluminum 
- 207 Recycle Plastics 
- 190 Recycle Tin/Bi-Metal Cans 
- Corrugated & Office Paper Also Recycled 

O Market Development Activities 
- Business Loan Program 
- Tax Credit Program 
- State Procurement: 

Recycled Paper M·ust Be 45°/o of State 
Purchases (Current Rate is 59°/o) 

O Recycling Centers For Tires, Construction & 
Demolition Debris Reviewed & Approved By DEP 

- 6 Approved: 2,500 Tons Per Day Capacity 
- 34 Under Review: 18,000 Tons Per Days 

Capacity 



NEW JERSEY RECYCLING DATA BASE ANALYSIS 

New Jersey State Llbra,Y 
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'l. TOTAL WASTE 
AS OISCAf~OED 

<TUNS f'U~ YLl\I\) 

.3 

1 ~}88 Tf"Y 

OISCAROED 

4 

1 9Ud Tt='Y 
f\lCYCLED 

': .J 

f PY GENERATED 
<DISC + REC> 

6 

'l. RECYCLED 
BY MATERIAL 

========================z=======~=====~===~~=~=~=======~:========~=~=====~~~~~~==~==~~==a~====~========~=~= 

• • f-· A P E R * * 
CORRUGATED 
NEWS 
OFFICE 
OTHER 

ft G L A S S *' 
CONTAINERS 
OTHER 

•• P L A S T I C ** 
CONTAINERS 
PAChAGING 
APPLIANCES/TOYS 

•• M E T A L S ** 
~LUMINUM CONT~INERS 

OJHt::R ALUMINUM 
FERROUS CONTAINERS 
OTHER FERROUS 
NON-FERROUS 

fURNITURE 
RUl:fl:fER/LEATHEB 
TEXTILES 
f(JOfJ WAS n:: 
TIRES 
YAf.;O WASTE 
CONSTRUCTION/DEMO 
tlOTOR (JI L 

8.64 
4.58 
4.73 
9.23 

::.. 73 
(1.82 

2. 3(1 
., ti='") -· .,,_ 
4.45 

I). 18 
1). 59 
1. 18 
6.45 
(1. 23 

1. 1 7 
o. :?::!. 
:? • 34 
5.86 
l. 53 

16. T!. 
::?:.-?. 91 

1 • (11) 

760,929.76 
'107' 61)3. 97 
42(1, 95"!.. 4~ 

021,437.71) 

24:?,960.4~ 

72, 977. 1-:!· 

2(14, 691 . 9'::J 
224' 271. 18 
396' 1)34. "::. 

16,(119.37 
52,507.93 

105,015.UJ 
574,027.4~ 

20,469. 19 

11)4 J 1 25 • C}(I 

2(1, 469. 19 
208,251.81 
ti21,!:il9.49 
13;6, 164. 64 

1, 45~., 312. EH 
2, o:::.n, '-11)9. fJ 1 

88, 996. 51) 

:·'-/::..' 1 26. (II) 
·55L}' B7'-J ... 1(1 
1 ·:..1' 71)4. =~I) 

o. 1_11) 

1 22' ::;:.(11). 6:.:: 
(I. (II) 

1,655.30 
o.uo 
0.00 

l 1 ' :'.tJJ. u 1 
(1. (II) 

16, 181. Tl 
::,(llJ, bl/"'::,. tJ(I 

T!., 9~)3. t-J(1 

(1. 1_11) 

(~.(II) 

b(1. (1(1 

4'-1, :~.q7. fj(1 

~j ' .::;. ffl . :~.(I 
,. (18, ~. 7 1 • 11) 

1~16 ' 9 1 6 • 11) 

1 ::.. , 4 d(l. 2u 

1. (16'2' (15ti. 76 
761, 40:-.L :-:..7 
558,657.65 
821, 437. 7(1 

:::. 6 5 ' 2 6 1 • (17 

72,977.13 

'.:::(16' ~.4 7. 25 
224' 271. 18 
-::..96' (134. 43 

27, 3.(17. 18 
5~' 5•)7. 9:3 

1::: 1, icn. 6'1 
1 , (•tL~ , 7 2 1 . 2 3 

54,42:?.b9 

1 (H, l :?5. 9(1 

'.:.;'.•),46'1.19 
:?•)8' 3 l 1 • l3 1 
~61,EJ67.29 

141 , !::iS l . '14 
1, tl6 l '68::: .. 94 
2' tL:.5, 8::.:5. 92 

11)'.2, 476. 7(1 

27. 6(1 

46. l3L/ 
:?4.65 

(I. (1(1 

3: .. '18 
(1. (11) 

(1. 8(1 

(1. (11) 

(1. (II) 

41. ::.A 
(I. (11) 

1 : .• :_!.:-~ 

'16. ~t-J 
6'2.~-'t 

(1. (11) 

I). (11) 

(1. (1"5, 

7. l fj 
~ .• 81 

:: l. 94 
2t:L JI) 

l :::: .. 1 ~'. 
=~=;======~=======================~==~======~~~==~=====~==~~=~=====~~====~~====~~~==~===~==~=~===~=======~~ 

1 (11). 1)(1/. u' fJ'/9' t.>50. (11) :..'. , 7 4 'I , :3A 'I • '"! (1 1 1 ' 6 4 8 ' 9 9 4 • ,, (1 
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COLUMN 1 

COLUMN 3 
COLUt~ 4 
COLUMN 5 
ltlt 1 IMN f. 

l< 2 FRANILIN llSSOCIAlES NATIONAL COMPOSITION ESllMfffES, l'lllfj; 
NY ANO NJ EXF"Clf\T MARl<ET REPL1RT, 1908; VAf\IUUS CUl"lf"OSI IT'. ~)flJDll::S 

FROM NJ OISTRIClS. 
OEP SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL REPOkfS, 1988. 
DEP TONNAGE REPORTS, 1988. 
OEP "SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL REPORTS, 1988; DEF' rDNAl.lE REPOldS, 19fJU. 
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WASTE COMPOSITION 

Paper --

Plastic 

Metal 

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE%: 
- Paper 27.18 
- Plastic 9 .27 
- Metal 8.63 
- Food 5.86 
- Other 4.45 
- Glass 3.55 

(By Weight) 

Food 
-Other· 

Glass 

Tires 

OTHER%: 
-Yard 

Construction 

- Cons2nJCtio n 
16.33 
23.91 

.82 - Tires 



PAPER COMPOSITION 
(27.18°.4 Of Waste Stream By Weight) 

1- fECTa..l«i MTE 4Jr.: 
- COAR.GA TED rt .60 
-tEWS 46.89 
- OFf CE 24.65 
-cmER 0 

News 

D PAPER COMPOSmON °,4: 
-CORRUGATED 31.79 
-NEWS 16.85 
-OFFCE 17.40 
- OTHER 33.96 

•••••••••••• 

:ll~l!f1~ 
Office 

Other 
(Books/Magazines, 

Tissue/Towels, 
Non-Packaging) 

040190 

...... 

. ~ ·~ ... 



GLASS COMPOSITION 
(3.55°/o Of Waste Stream By Weight) 

D GI ASS COMPOSr"OOtC %: 
- CONTAINERS ~.90 
- OTHER 23.10 

040190 

7X 



PLASTIC COMPOSITION 
(9.27°/o Of Waste Stream By Weight) 

Appliances I 
Toys 

<, 
0 
0 

D PLASTIC COMFOSITION %: 
- CONTAINERS 24.81 
- OTHER PACKAGING 27.19 
- APPLIANCES/TOYS 48.00 

Other 
Packaging 



METAL COMPOSITION 
(8.63°/o Of Waste Stream By Weight) 

I 
1 .. RECYCtJfG RA TE %: 

• ALUM,_.UM CONTAJNERS 
·OTHER ALUMINUM 
• NON-FERROUS 
• OTHEPJFERROUS 
- FERROUS CONTAJNERS 

Aluminum 
Containers 

llET AaL CtnMPOSlr'f'ION % : 
• ALU~INUrv1 CONTAINERS 
·OTHER ALUtftlNUM 
• ..aN-FERROUS 
- WHITE GOODS 
- FERROUS CONTAINERS 

. 

~1.34 

0 
62.39 
'6.98 
13.35 

White Goods/Other Ferrous 

2.08 
6.84 
2.67 

74.73 
13.68 

Other 
Aluminum 

Ferrous Containers/ 
Packaging 

040190 



YARD COMPOSITION 
(16.33°/o Of Waste Stream By Weight) 

• . .. 

1188 RECYCLING RATE %: 
- GRASS 1.36 
- BRUSH 33.78 
- LEAVES 76.07 

Leaves 

Grass 

Brush 

D 
YARD COMPOSmON %: 

- GRASS 54 
- BRUSH 18 
- LEAVES 28 

040190 



FOOD WASTE 
(5.9°/o Of Waste Stream By \\'eight) 

040190 

// x 



TOTAL RECYCLING RATE 

COUNTY RATE 

Atlantic 26°/o 
Bergen 27% 
Burlington 14% 
Camden 25% 
Cape May 16% 
Cumberland 37% 
Essex 26% 
Gloucester 25°/o 
Hudson 21%; 
Hunterdon 13% 
Mercer 38% 
Middlesex 22% 
Monmouth 17% 
Morris 26% 
Ocean 36% 
Passaic 19% 
Salem 11 Ofo 

Somerset 18% 
Sussex l2% 
Union 20°/o 
Warren 4.5% 

1ix 



MULTI-MATERIAL 
RECYCLING 
PROCESSING 
FACILITIES 

Countywide Facilities 
In Operation 

Planned Countywide 
Facilities 

Privately Operated 
Processing Facilities 

050190 

1JX 



MONMOUTH COlJNTY PLANNING BOARD 

JOSEPH RETIAGLIATA 
CHAIRMAN 

Mr. John Czapor, Di rector 

FREEHOLD. NEW JERSEY 

May 15, 1990 

NJDEP Division of Solid Waste Management 
840 Bear Tavern Road 
CN-414 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

ROBERT W. CLARK. P.P. 
DIRECTOR 

RE: RECYCLING INFORMATION PRESENTED TO ASSEMBLY WASTE MANAGEMENT, 
PLANNING AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE ON MAY 10, 1990 

Dear Mr. Czapor: 

I have just had the opportunity to review the recycling informa­
tion presented to the Assembly Waste Management Committee by the DEP 
Division of Sol id Waste Management on May 10, 1990. Considering the 
import of this information to current efforts to improve recycling 
rates in New Jersey, I am distressed at this poorly documented presen-
tation and very worried about how this information could be misused. 

Evidently, a major source of information were the "DEP Sol id Waste 
Disposal Reports 11 prepared from the monthly reports submitted by NJ 
landfill ·facilities. It has been the p~actice to require the submis­
sion of these reports on a "cubic yard" basis - even when the land­
fi·I 1 had more exact tonnage reports available. Conversions to tons 
were then made on the basis of 3.33 yards equals one ton. In Monmouth 
County~s case, the converted weight was 1 isted as 846,694 tons in 1986 
and 948, 750 tons in 1987, but actua I tonnage according to the 1andfi11 
scale records were 711,718 tons and 790,614 tons, respectively. This 
discrepancy alone would seriously skew the data. Furthermore, there 
is a~solutely·no documentation presented for the table titled "Total 
Re· c y c 1. i n g Ra t e 11 b y co u n t y . I s t h i s a t r !J e 11 re c y c I i n g r a t e 11 b a s e d o n 
all recycling compared to quantities landfilled - or the NJ Office of 
Recycling "formula" which only permits consideration of ;•waste type 
#10 11 recyct ing and disposal? Do these percentages come from weight 
records at the county landfills and tr~nsfer stations? After all, it 
has been p~blicalty admitted that much waste was be1ng illegally sent 
directly out-of-state rather than pay high dumping fees at many of 
these fac i Ii ti es. Wou 1 d not a "per capita" recyc 1 i ng rate for each 
county be the only fair method for comparing one county to another? 

If these numbers are, as could be suspected, an estimat~ by the 
counties th~mselves, do they represent recycling recorded by counties 
or the state at facilities within a county - with no effort made to 
separate recyclables delivered to the faci 1 i ty, but generated in ano­
ther county? Can it be shown that each 11 tota 1 recyc 1 i ng rate" was 
truly calculated using similar data bases? Are these numbers real or 
just wishful thinking? In Monmouth County, municipalities are required 
(continued) 

i'fX 
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MONMOUTH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

RE: NJDEP MAY 10, 1990 "RECYCLING INFORMATION" 5/15/90 pg. 2 

to submit quarterly tonnage reports based on actual records. Even then, 
the f i n a 1 an nu a 1 tonnage reports s u bm i t t e d to the NJ 0 ff i c e of Rec y c 1 i n g 
show total recycling 37% higher than our own county recording system. 
Monmouth County can document "per capita" recyc 1 i ng by mun i c i pa Ii ty and 
by material - can other counties do the same? Perhaps our planners 
should discard an accurate accounting system and develop new estimates. 
Rather than 17% based on actual documentation, we should note that the 
quantities delivered to the landfill have declined 34% in the past two 
ye a rs w h i 1 e h i s tor i c records have de mo n s t rated p rev i o us 1 0 % an nu a 1 i n -
creases i n tonnage 1 and f i 1 1 e d - we sh o u 1 d then c 1 a i m a 5 4 % rec y c 1 i n g 
rate! 

do apologize for the tone of this communication - most counties 
are making honest efforts to carefully track recycling efforts with 
1 ittle specific guidance from the Office of Recycling. There are, as 
yet, no de ta i 1 ed ru 1 es for recordkeep i ng. However, the consequences 
of accepting dissimilar data for general planning purposes may be 
very serious. Misleading indicators could discourage efforts by some 
counties, while setting unrealistic goals or misplaced investment in 
others (by public agencies or private companies). I recognize the 
need to present summary information to our legislators and others who 
do not have the time or oppo~tunity to study detailed reports, but I 
must demand a better documented and fair accounting. Some of the 
other states now legislating recycling efforts of 40% or 50% intend· 
to include auto scrap, clean fill materials and eve~ waste reduction 
estimates in their recycling rates - is New Jersey to ·play these same 
"number games"?' 

It would be most appreciated if the NJOEP Division of Waste Manage~ 
ment provided our office with the background documentation for this 
report. I would also like to recommend that all future reports be 
based on a 11 per cap i ta 11 bas i. s - we mus t compare 11 a pp 1 es to a pp 1 es . 11 

At this juncture, where the Governor's special task force is charged 
with assessing the proper role of recycling, resource recovery and 
Jandfi l Js, proper documentation is more important than ever! 

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Respectfully submitted, 

~~~·~ 
0~~~e ce ~aQaCJ 

Sol 1d aste Coordinator 

NJDEP 5/10/90 "Total Recycling Rate" Chart 
Excerpts from 1986/1987 DEP "Waste Disposal Report" 
County Reclamation Center Annual Record 1986/1987 
11 Rec y c 1 i n g Fact Sheet 11 p rep a red by Monmouth Co u n t y 

cc: NJDEP Commissioner Judith Yaskin 
Assembly Waste Management, Planning and Recycling Committee 
Monmouth County Board of Chosen Freeholders 

1s-X 



TOTAL RECYCLING RATE 

COUNTY RATE 

Atlantic 26% 
Bergen 27% 
Burlington 14% 
Camden 25% 
Cape May 16% 
Cumberland 37% 
Essex 26% 
Gloucester 25% 

. . Hudson 21% 
Hunterdon 13% 
Mercer 383 
·Middlesex 22% 
Monmouth 17% 
Morris 26% 
Ocean 36% .... 

Passaic 19% 
Salem 11% 
Somerset 18%. 
Sussex 12% 
Union 20~o 

Warren 4.5% 



.J. SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL VOLUME REPORT December 1986 

MONMOUTH COUNTY 

aci 1 ity 
umber facility Name 

336C Benoit 
.s 1 5 Green Grove 
Tinton fa l ls Sor 

336E Monmouth County 
Reclamation 
Asbury Ave 

Total 
Waste Cubic Yards 
Type Year to Date 

l 3 970 
23 0 

Total 970 

10 1,643,070 
1 3 1,156,768 
23 30 

Tinton Fa 1 ls Soro 25 5,864 
27 13,758 

. Total 2,819,490 

352A Lertch 1 3 3,870 
Wycoff Rd & Total 3,870 
Belmar Blvd 
Wa 1 1 Twp 

3 Monmouth 10 1,643,070 
12 0 
1 3 1 1. 1 61 I 608 

.. :.• -~ ... ' 2:3" 30 
25 5,864 
27 q, 758 

MONMOUTH COUNTY TOTA·~ 2,824,330 

11f 
-21-

Reported Total 
Cubic Yards Tons 
This Month Year to Date 

, 10 291 
0 0 

1 1 0 291 

143,247 493,414 
89,627 347,378 

0 9 
574 1 I 7 61 

1I538 4, 132 
2~4,986 846,694 

1 ; 1 62 
1 I 162 

143,247 493,414 
0 0 

89,737 348,831 
.. " 9 

574 1 , 7 61 
1, 538 4,132 

235,096 848, 147 

) I I 
J 
?Ji 



NEW JERSEY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL REPORT : DISTRICT DISPOSAL REPORTS 
<For Year Ending December 31, 1987> 

COUNTY WEIGHT SUMMARY 
BY WASTE CLASSIFICATION 

i. of W A S T E T Y P E S 
County Total Total 10 12 13 23 25 27 Other 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Atlantic: 4 338,237 214,460 0 116, 860 6,131 604 183 !!1 
Bergen 28 2,538,487 1,494,226 0 1,006,432 399 1,368 36,062 0 
Burlington 4 396,623 272,576 0 86,254 4,091 3,74'21 29,961 Ill 
Camden 4 360,305 260,967 0 83,4S2 1,267 0 14,619 0 
Cape May 2 181,528 120,031 0 57,394 1, 118 675 2,311 0 
Cumberland 2 228,630 209' 141 0 9,727 90 528 9, 144 0 
Essex 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ~ 0 
Gloucester 2 159,761 137,063 0 14,930 3 1,256 6,510 0 
Hudson 10 948,750 418,624 0 513,579 5!1612 26 1~,909 @ 

Hunterdon 0 2,327 " " 0 --0 0 2,327 0 
Mercer 0 2,093 0 " 853 26 ,. 1,214 0 
Middlesex 26 2,358,297 1,523,543 0 507,490 6,114 9,539 311, 611 " Monmouth 10 946,900 495,285 0 443,010 " 1,398 7,2B7 ii 
Morris " 4,214 2,847 " s s 0 1,367 0 
Ocean 6 566,2.m7 381,548 2,274 175,844 0 et 6,S4f21 @ 

Passaic 0 0 0 ii 0 0 0 0 0 
Salem 1 107,2eJ6 34,588 0 11,495 375 0 60,634 113 
Somerset 0 9,231 6,494 " 1,144 s 0 1, 592 0 
Sussex 0 U,586 Ut, 934 if 450 2eJ1 0 0 ~ 

Union 0 19,292 1",761 0 7,828 703 0 0 0 
Warr·en 0 113 0 0 23 0 j 90 !!I 

1i0 9,179,787· S,593,089 2,274 3,036,765 26,131 19,133 S02,282 113 

- Sl -

I 
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MONMOUTH. COUNTY RECLAMATION CENTER - pETAILED BREAKDOWN OF WASTE ACCEPTED BY CATEGORY - 1986 
.., 

(all f igurea in tone) ~· !!!·· MAR. -. Ar!· ~ 
Mixed Municipal Waste 23r·76:6:. 21,~82•\ . 2S:,~174. 2-,., ns ~2., 087 

Commercial Ref use 8,525 8,128 9.1337 8,6.0.6. 9 .• 910. 

Bulky and Cleanup 9., 634. 7,546. 13,485' 13,180 18,6~8 . 
. Luvea and Treea 1.211 1,121 1,807 1,297 1,323 

.. 
Construction & Demo. S,108. 2, 589.. 4,184 . 3, 132 3,332 

.. 
Tires 154 86: . ' 77 . 

85 186. . 
Otller 467 443. . 96.9. 326 .. l,Q43 

' 
Monthl~ TOTAL 49,46.S 4·1;195 .s~.~33 S4._4al 6:6,5"89 • 

Quantity SHREDDED 
. . 

7, 9.60 7,240 8)500 5,000: 7,3SQ 

I of VEHICLES 
.. . . 

9,617 7,737 10,6,86 10,049. 12, 69".6" 

ANNUAL QUANTITIES ACCEPTED BY CATEGORY .,1986) 

Mixed Municipal. Ref uae 
Commercial Refu1e 
Bulky •nd Cleanup 
Leaves and Treea 
Construction & Demo. 
Tire a 
Other + 

344,751·tone 
112,394 tons 
184,078•tone 
15,990 tons 
42,362 tone 
1,632 tons 

10,511 tone 

• TOTALED 711,718 tons 
Amount Shredded 79,525 tons • 

JUN, --=- JU~. !!&· .!.!!.· Qf!. !!QY_. lli· 
2~Q7l 31,6:37 . 33, 282. 31,319 30,205 28,241 30,912 

CJ. 6'8S 10.046: 9.435 9 .• 978 9,69) 8,989 10,002 

18.2Ql 18.954 17. 79/t 16,951 19,361 15,323 15,001 

1,373 1, Q6'2 1,187 1,430 1,990 l ,t.21 768 

4,42Q 3.216 2,843 3,482 4,332 2,760 2,364 

1Z5 138 209. 127 131 131 183 

1, 2.1°4 1,105 i.220 729. 623 715 l, 65 . 

.. 
. 6'4.089. 66., 158 . 6:5 .. 9.7Q 6:4. 016 66,335 57,580 60,881 

7,820 7,740 6.640 4.200 5,850 5, 100 6,125 

12,016. 11 ,833 11, 4 73 11. 656 12,330 9,526 10,609 

No teat (1) substantial proportion of "leaves 
and'treea" consists of stumps and 
dirt removed in land clearing 
generally only waste cloasif ied os 
"municipal" or 11 comme.~cia 111 is f e 1 t 
suitable for shredding 

--~ 

9> 

* number of vehicle trips to landfill 
• 130,228 

Source for monthly tonnage and vehicla.countaa~Monmouth County Da~a Processing 11Daily Uaage Summary Report" 
Source for estimates of quantity ahreddeds Superifttendent Gray, Monmouth County Reclamation Center 

. . 
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MONMOUTH COUNTY 
0

BBCUHAttON ·cmg _:·pn4ILBD BREAKDOWN OP WASTE ~CCBPTED BY ~A.,EppRY - I 9 8 7 

Coll figures in tone) 
.... ·•· 

~· !!!.··· l!t&· . ·.All· ~ 
·.is, ~~D ·.2~.·664 

. 
Mixed Municipal Wa~te 22;445. .2J,445 .. ~3,69~ ... •.. . .. . 
Commercial Ref use .. 8,.865 .. . 8,420. 10;4s6 10._702. ~Q~l98 

Bulky and Cleanup 11,480 10,670 21,4.56 24,855 23,764 . 
Lcf vca and Trees . 741· 4.52 1,40.5 2,373. . 1, 604 

Construction & Demo. 1,926 2,612 . 3,'626 .4,656 3,090 
.. 

Tires 107 92· 1~5 179 149 

Other 783 959 546 9,538 1,851 

HonthlX TOTAL 49~:152 4.5,640 66;3Q8 75,748 74,348 

Quantity SHREDbED . 3,Q40. 4,800 ·6,.520 6,640 •• . . 
I of VEHICLES ' ii, 766 8,·.561 12! 73.5 ll,498 13,563 

ANNUAL QUANTITIES ACCEPTED BY CATEGORY Sl987) 

Mixed Municipal Refuae 
Commercial Befuae 
Bulky and Cleanup 
Leaves and Treea· 
Construction & Demo. 
·Tiree · · 

;348,225 tone 
119,368 tone 
206,030 tone 
.~0,'7.92' tone 
74,612 tone 
1.698 .tpna 

Other + : 191 889· ~one 

TOTALED 790,614 tona 1 

:ll!l!· ~· M!2.· .m,. ~· !iQY. ~· 
. 3s., Q6.1 35,37~ 34,.14!1 33 1 2SS 24,926 22,201 23,759 

11, 117 10,.707 19,351. 10, 12C 10,031 8,815 9,586 

25, 776 22,2~6 16,104 14, 873 13,583 11, 125 10, 118 

1,972 1,356 3,356 2,59~ 2,163 1,281 1,496 

3,759 4,162 9,318 9,281 11, 053 10,166 10,963 

132 136 143 145 .200 136 134 

2,093 972 894 850 1,227 2,052 4. 124 

79,9~0 74,933 ·74,315 71, 121 63,183 55,776 60,180 

•• •• ••• •• ** ~ ... *" 
14,436 13,726 .13, 409 12, 706 12,540 10,879 11, 013 

Notes& (1) substantial proportion of "leaves 

--... and tr.aes 11 consists of stumps and 
dirt removed in land clearing 

(2) generally only waste classified as 
: · -~'m.unicipal 11 or "commercial" is felt 

suitable for ~hredding 
TOTAL VEHECLE TRIPS TO LANDFILL• 145,833 
**·notes Both.existing shredders (installed 1976) 

Source 
Source 

Amount Shredded b, OQO ton•· .... . · taken out of service to retrofit higher 
capacity· models (on-line early/mid 1988) 

fo~ monthly' tonnage and vehicle counts 1 .Monmouth County Data Processing "Daily Usage Sununary Report 11 

for estimates of quantity 1hredded1 Suparint,ndent Gray, Monmouth County Reclamation Cente~· 

,· 



THANK YOU FOR RECYCLING 

IT ALL ADDS UP. • In 1989, the. people of Monmouth 
County recycled 1471500 tons of valuable resources. 
This repr~sents a savings of ••• 

1 , 100,000 trees 
enough _aluminum to mak'.e· 60mj11 ion new beverage cans 
enough glass to make one mi 1 lion new 16 oz. bottles 
enough steel to make 4,000 automobiles 
enough energy to supply every home in Monmouth ·county 

with ~lectr.icity for 1.5 months 
a q u a r t ·e f of · a m i l 1 i on cu b i c ya rd s o f 1 a n d f i 1 l s p a c e 
$10,500,000 in landfill disposal fees 
and thousands of .tons of air and water pol 1 utan ts that 
would have been generated to make products from new 
mater~als. 

These lq],500 tons of materials which you helped· recycle 
represent only those weights reported to the county. It 
is felt that cons•derably more was actually recycled but· 
not reported. The breakdown of tonnage by material is as 
f 011 ows: 

Newspaper 38,000 tons 
Glass 22,000 
Aluminum 1 ,000 
Tin cans 2,000 
Organics 41 ,015 

(leaves, grass and 
wood waste) 

Cardboard 21,000 tons 
Paper 4,500 
Plastics 85 
Metal scrap 2,500 
Other 15,400. 

Thank you for recycling. YOU J2Q. MAKE A DIFFERENCE. 

Prepared by the Recycling Office of the Monmouth County 
Department of Planning, Hal 1 of Records Annex, Box 1255 
Freehold, N.J. 07728 Telephone (201) 431-7460 
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MONMOUTH COUNTY RfCYCLING FACT SHEET 

WHAT MUST BE RECYCLED? 

In Monmouth County EVERYONE must recycle 

Newspapers 
Glass bottles and jars 
Aluminum beverage cans 
Tin food and beverage cans 
Leaves 
Used motor oi 1 

4/90 

In addition, commercial businesses and institutions must recycle 

Corr-ugated cardboard 
White office paper 

Also banned from the landfill 

Concrete 
Asphalt 
Tree stumps, large tree parts 

Other materials being recycled include 

Plastics - about six towns have programs, more plan 
to begin later this year 

Paper - magazines and mixed grades included in many. 
commercial~ school and municipa.1 program~ 

Asphalt shingles 
Ti r e-s 
Grass 
Wood waste 
He ta 1 scrap 
Batteries 
Food waste 

************************************************ 

HAS IT HADE A DIFFERENCE AT THE LANDFILL? 

Solid waste disposed at the landfill had been increasing 
by 10% annually due to increased construction and population. 
After recycJing became mandatory in October, 1987 the figures 
dropped dramatically. 

1987 
1988 
1989 

QUESTIONS? 

7~0,614 tons of material landf(lled 
683,779 tons 
586,708 tons 

NEED INFORMATION? 

Contact your municipal recycling coordinator at your 
town hal 1 for information about your local program 

Contact Monmouth County Department of Planning at 
431-7460 for information specific to the County program 



MONMOUTH COUNTY FACT SHEET 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

Monmouth County has met a11 requirements of the "NJ Sol id Waste 
.Management Act" and the "NJ. Source Separation and Recyc1 ing Act." 

1. MONMOUTH COUNTY RECLAMATION CENTER/LANDFILL (Tinton Falls) 

*Opened October 1976 - initially handled 250 tons daily, only active 
landfill ·in county since November 1983 - now handles 2,000 tons/day 

* Unique Feature - shredding for volume reduction (in conjunction with 
heavy compaction permits 1200 pounds+ to be placed in a cubic yard) 

* Incoming waste fills 10 acres/year to depths of over 90 feet 
*Summer usage of 1andfi·11 ·from 20% to 40% higher (tourist season) 
* Monmouth County handles its own waste - no import or· export 
*Dumping fees cover ail capital and operating. exp~nses - no county 

tax do11ars used. Fees of $68 - $95/ton pays for expansion and all 
required environmental and operational improvements. 

* Existing faci 1 ity covers ~ver 300 acres; more property being acquire 
(50 acres Phase I· landfi 11 closed in February, 1983) 
(100 acres Phase· II landfill should last through December·, 199-1) 
"{other acreage includes scale house, shredding buildings with .its 

enclosed tipping floor, sediment control .ponds, leachate collectior 
and .treatment system, maintenance/construction areas) 

*New shredders to eventually process 70% of incoming waste; remaining 
30%.bulky items sent directly to landfill areas 

* County continues to buy additional acre~g~, of which about 115 acres 
appears suitable for new landfill space 

* Mandatory recyc 1 i ng program. has reduced month.1 y tonnage· hand 1 ed from 
previous so;qoo-75,000 tons to current.15,000-55,000 tons per month 

2~ MONMOUTH COUNTY MANDATORY RECYCLING PROGRAM 

!':: . *·October 198.7 - .Leaves banned from landfill. Residents required to· 
recycle newspapers, glass bottles, aluminum cans. 

* Apri 1 19ss· - T.in .cans added ·to recycling· mandate. ·Requirements are 
·extended. to a11· non-residential establishments, which 
are also required to r~cycle corrugated cardboard and 
white office paper (computer/photocopy/stationery). 

* October 1988 - Concrete, asphalt, tree s~umps and large tree parts 
also banned from landfill. 

* Duri.ng 1989, County's 53 municipal I ties· (w.ith .population o·f 553,000+) 
.reported recycling 12,400 tons/month (45 pounds/person/month). There 
is an estimated 2,000 to 4,000 tons/month unreported. Quantities 
accepted at l~ndfill for disposal down 35%. Over Monmouth County 
recycling rate exceeds 25%.(State mandates 25% recycling rate, not 
counting organic waste and bulky scrap}. 

*Timing and design of recycling program discussed with the local 
haulers and recycling markets to enable smooth startup. Initial ·plar 
was modified to recognize municipal comme~ts and market realities. 

*Municipalities responsible for operating local recycling collection 
programs; the County provides technical assistance, market informa­
tion· and registration, and holds frequent workshops. 

* Many new private companies and jobs have been created to serve the 
growing municipal and commercial demand for recycling services. 

(continued on reverse) 

J.JX 



MONMOUTH COUNTY FACT SHEET - SOLID WASTE page 2 

* Countywide recycling averages (1989 - significant seasonal variation} 

Paper (newsprint/cardboard/office paper) 
Bottles & Cans (food & beverage containers) 
Organics (leaves/tree parts/some grass) 
Other (asphalt/concrete/masonry} 

2 0 po u n.d s Ip e r son I mo n t h 
8 pounds/person/month 

12 pounds/person/month 
5 pounds/person/month 

*Approximately 20 municipal compost sites and 15 farms handle leaves; 
one private site in Freehold Township handles leaves & grass clippings. 

*County operates regional Jeaf compost site in Freehold Township for use 
by towns or local residents (charge of $5/$6 per cubic yard). 

*County enforces recycling rules at landfill and is prepared to serve as 
"emergency market" if existing markets/processors have major problems. 

3. MONMOUTH COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

*November 1986 - County Board of Freeholders selected facility site 
in Tinton Falls adjacent to exis·ting landfill/shredding facility 

* July 1988 - after year-long study of alternatives and numerous 
public hearings, "LOW.TECHNOLOGY MATERIAL RECOVERY FOLLOWED BY 
INCINERATION selected as favored technology (front-end process using 
trommels, screens,. magnets and hand sorting to remove more recyclable 
material and hazardous items prior to incineration &.energy recovery) 

*Four season waste composition/quantity stu~y fina)ized size of the 
fa c i 1 i t y a t 1 7 0 0 ·ton s p e r day - f r om 5 % to 1 0 % o f i n com i'n g w a s t e w i 1 1 
be removed in front-end (PET/HOPE/film plastics, ferrous and non-fer­
rous metals, plus corrugated cardboard.- system wi 11. be flexible). 

*Size chosen to handle all processible waste during_ ~irst ten years of 
0 p e r a t i 0 n - ~a ~ t i C i pat e S 0 me I I b Y pa ~ S I I W a S t e d U r i n 9 Ye a r S . t en·- t We n t Y 0 f 
ope.ration (facility ma·y have useful life of· thirty+ years). 

* Preliminary Environmental Hea·lth and Imp-act Statement .(PEHIS) was .. :: 
completed July 1989; Final EHIS_ and permit appl ica·tion .October 1990. 

* Over year to review formal· proposals by vendors to bui Id an~ operate 
facility -.Wes~inghous~ chosen March 1990 for final negotiati~ns. 

*Construction to begin April 1992; Facility operational December·1994. 
* Integrated system of recycling, resource recovery. and landfill should 

insure· adequate disposal· capacity for ·Monmouth t~unty past year·2020. 

4. MONMOUTH COUNTY HOUSEHOLD HAZARtiOUS WA~TE DISPOSAi PROGRAM 

* County hires special hazardous waste contractor to· pack and properly 
dispose of pesticides, toxl~ household and auto pro~ucts at four 
scheduled~ "Disposal Days" held each year. Handled up to 25 tons per 
event in 1989. · Waste oi·l and household/auto batteries· also accepted 
and recycled by County. Held at-several sites throughout county. 

*Special site at Reclamation Center open· io accept waste oil and any 
batteries second Saturday of each month. Program to~locate ·container 
for used household batteries in stores and public buildings should be 
in place by summer of 1990 - batteries a major source of toxic metals 

* Work underway to make HHW program more convenient for residents. 

· 5. 2THER MONMOUTH COUNTY SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES 

*Special "Solid Waste Enforcement Team" inspects waste sites and all 
recycling faci I ities; enforces dumping/recycling rules at landfi 11. 

*Updated "Waste Sites Hap" to be released this summer will locate all 
former landfills and it legal dumps; another map shows all scrapyards. 

* County offers special educational programs for schools 
tl.t-¥ 4/9·0 1 j z 



prepared by County Dept. 
WASTE GENERATION FOR HONHOUTH--C-OUNTY - HISTORICAL FIGURES 198~ TO 1989 of Planning from earl.ier 

reports 5/8/90 
WASTE.PROCESSIBLE BY 

YEAR TOTAL WASTE (TONS) • LANDFILLED + RECYCLED WASTE COUNTY RR FACILITY NON-PROCESSIBLE WASTE 

1986 ' 780,668 tons ' 711,718 + 68,950.tons (9%) ! . 485, 579 tons ' 226,139 tons I I - I 
I 
I 

1987 890,846 tons 
I 

790, 6 llt + 100,232 tons.(11%) ' 503,577 tons ' 287,037 tons I ! - I I 

1988 ' 842,805 tons ' 683, 779 . + 159,026 tons (19%) 
I 436,402 tons ' 247,377 tons I I :a I I 
I I 
I I 

1989 i 568,708 + 202,019 tons ~26%) 
I 

420,456 tons 
I 

148,252 tons 770, 727 tons I - ! I 

Notes: 1. Total Waste• Landfilled Waste (MCRC Records)+ Recycled Waste (NJOR Records 1986-1988) 
(Recycled Waste includes all types recycled, not just "waste type #1011 )(1989 figure based on 
Monmouth County records ::-County recorded only 73% of final tonnage reported to State in 1988) 

2. "Processible Waste"• Type #10 Waste Disposed at Landfill.+ 12% of Other Categories 
3. Recycling recordkeeplng has been Improving. However, "recycled waste" figures show~ the 

reported recycling - actual figures are higher. 

ESTIMATED WASTF GENERATION FOR MONMOUTH COUNTY - FIRST FULL YEAR RR FACILITY OPERATION 

~ YEAR 

1995 

TOTAL WASTE (TONS) = LANDFILLED WASTE + RECYCLED WASTE + WASTE DIRECTED TO RR FACILITY 

864,000 tons (100%) • 154,000 tons (17.9%) + 250,000 tons (28.9%) + 460,000 tons (53.2%) 

Notes: 1. 11Non-Processible" Waste is that sent to fandfill (17.9%) 
2. "Processible" Waste is that recycled or sent to RR Faci 1 ity (82.1%) 
J. Planned Monmouth County Resource.Recovery Facility includes a front-end processing system for 

recovery of 5-10% of the material from the "Waste Directed to RR Facility" 
4. TOTAL.WASTE tonnage is conservative (underestimated), based upon an overall decline in per capita 

waste generation - therefore, actual 'figures landfilled, recycled and directed to RR Facility 
may be somewhat higher. Monmouth County staff and consultants arc currently working on better 
waste generation figures, using new population estimates and other refinements. 

5. Although overall ·waste quantities and landfilled waste declined in 1988-1989, an increase in the 
·quantity (and proportion) of 11waste type #1011 has been observed. 

1 j z 

•"-':•': THESE ESTIMATES ARE ONLY DRAFT ANO PRELIMINARY NUMBERS - A refined waste generation model is being developed. 

THE MONMOUTH COUNTY RESOURCE RECOVERY FACILITY IS BEING DESIGNED TO HANDLE WEEKLY AND SEASONAL PEAK LOADINGS 
OVER 20% HIGHER THAN DAILY AVERAGE WASTE DEL~VERIES. ANNUAL TONNAGE HANDLED WILL INCREASE WITH POPULATION. 



This information was developed by Theresa Simons under a National 
Science Foundation Grant at Rutger~ University Center for Plastics 
Recycling Research. 

Commgo Plastics Used jn Consumer Packagjog 

1. LOPE - Low Density Polyethylene 
Cbacacterjstjr,s · 

• Flexible 
• Translucent to waxy in appearance 
• Opaque coloring is possible 
• Commonly used for films; also used for bottles. 

Example: Bread wrap, Glue bottle 

2. HOPE- High Density Polyethylene 
Characterjstjcs: 

• Moderately flexible to stiff 
• Translucent 
• Opaque coloring is possible 
• Commonly used for shampoos, detergents & cleaning solutions. 

Example: Milk Bottle, White Rain Shampoo Bottle 

3. PVC - Polyvinyl Chloride 
Characterjstjcs: 

* Stiff 
• Transparent with a slightly blue or grey tint' 

Example: Baby Oil Bottle 

4. PET "". Polyethylene Terepthalate 
Characteristics: 

• Stiff 
• Transparent 
• Botttes cannot be manufactured with handles. 

Example: Soda Bottle 

5. PS - Polystyrene 
Characteristics: 

* Hard and brittle 
• Crystil clear with a brilliant surface finish (glass-like) 
• May be •teamed" 

Example: Clear plastic cups, "Styrofoam• cups 
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PLASTICS RECYCLING CENTER 
PISCATAWAY, NEW JERSEY 

STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

WHAT Wfl,L WE ACCEPT FOR RECYCT,TNG? 

• PET BOTrLES - CLEAR AND GREEN COLORS, SODA AND LIQUOR BOTTLES 

• HDPE BOTrLES - MILK AND JUICE BOTTLES 

• HDPE RIGID BOTTLES - LAUNDRY, DETERGENT AND CLEANING.BOTTLES 

WHEN CANCOf,lcBCTIONPBOGRAMS BEGIN'! 

• IMMEDIATELY. WE ARE ACCEPTING BALES OF THE ABOVE MATERIALS 
NOW. 

CONI'BACTS1 

• YES. WE WILL ALSO BE ACCEPTING POLYETHYLENE WRAP SUCH AS 
TRASH, LAWN, GROCERY AND MERCHANDISE BAGS. 

BUT FIRST, WE ARE GOING TO CONCENTRATE ON THE BOTrLES. THEN 
WE'LL START ADDING OTHER RECYCLABLE PLASTICS. 

WHAT ARE THE QUA '11'ITSTANDARDS'! 

• PLASTIC !lHLY. 
• CAPS, CLOSURES AND LABELS ARE OK. 
• PLEASE WASH ALL CONTAINERS BEFORE RECYCLING THEM. THESE 

CONTAINERS MAY ATTRACT BEES THAT CAN BE DANGEROUS TO SOME 
PEOPLE. . 

• BALES MUST NOT CONTAIN: 

DIRT 
GLASS 
METAL 

ALUMINUM 
STONES OR ROCKS 

STYROFOAM MEAT OR FOOD CONTAINERS 

UNION CARBIDE CHEMICALS AND PLASTICS COMPANY INC • POLYOLEFINS DIVISION 

• J.1)< 
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FILM SPECIFICATIONS 

THE FOLLOWING ARE BRIEF DESCRIPTIONS OF THE POLYETHYLENE FILM 
GRADES THAT UNION CARBIDE PLASTICS RECYCLING CENTER IS 

TAKING. 

0 PALLET WRAPS 
SHRINK - THIN. FILM THAT IS LIKE THE 

OFFICE TRASH CAN LINERS. 
STRETCH - FEELS TACKY TO THE TOUCH 

0 BAGS, RETAIL 
GROCERY - T-SHIRT CARRY-OUT 
PRODUCE - THIN BAGS FROM THE PRODUCE 

DEPARTMENTS 
MERCHANDISE - THICKER HEAVY 

MERCHANDISE BAGS SUCH AS 
DEPARTMENT STORE BAGS 
OR 

THIN CRINKLEY SOUNDING BAGS 
SUCH AS CD STORES USE 

0 BAGS, COMMERCIAL OR HOME USE 
OFFICE BUILDING TRASH CAN LINERS 
BAGS FROM SODA/POP BOTTLES RETIJRNED 

FOR RECYCLING IN BOTILE BILL 
STATES 

0 SINGLE LAYER POLYETHYLENE FILM 
FURNITURE AND RUGS COME WRAPPED IN 

HEAVY SINGLE LAYER FILM 
BOATS ARE OFTEN WRAPPED IN POLYETHYLENE 
AT MARINAS FOR DRY-DOCKING 

UNION CARBIDE CHEMICALS AND PLASTICS COMPANY INC • POLYOLEFINS DIVISION 

• 1 River Road, Piscataway, NJ 08854 Telephone: (201) 563-6080 
..1 i> )t 
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TllE INCREMENTAL COSTS OF 

ADDING PLASTIC BOTTLES TO 

CURBSIDE RECYCLING IN NEW JERSEY: 

FIVE CASE STUDIES 

Prepared for 

The Plastic Recycling Corporation of New Jersey 

November 1, 1989 
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OBJECTIVES FOR THE STUDY 

• This report is intended to provide helpful information to cities and towns in New Jersey and State and county 
officials who are interested in the economic feasibility of adding plastics to existing curbside recycling programs. 

• This study develops emperical, documented information which depicts the actual economic impact in 
representative New Jersey communities as a result of the addition of plastic beverage containers to their 
programs. 

• This document focuses only on the incremental costs and benefits of adding PET and HOPE plastic bottles to 
existing curbside recycling programs in New Jersey. The emphasis is important: 

Only incremental costs and benefits an~ reported: how much more did communities actually have to 
·spen<L over and above their prior spending, in order to add PET and HOPE to their curbside programs? 
And how much more did the communities save in landfill and other costs? 

Adding plastic bottles to existing programs is the focus because the vast majority of New Jersey 
· communities instituted curbside programs without including plastics. 

1 
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SCOPE AND METHODOLOGY OF THE ANALYSIS 

• The methodology used in this report is a set of 5 case studies of communities which have added PET and HOPE 
plastic bottles to established recycling operations. These communities where chosen to represent a range of 
programs, approaches and costs. These ranges cover: 

Size -- from Berlin Township, population 5,576, to Sayreville, population 34,310, and a portion of the 
city of Trenton 

Collection area -- from 1,800 to 10,000 households 

Frequency of collection -- from twice per month to four times per month 

M~thod of collection -- materials commingled or source separated 

Scrap value of plastics returned to the community -- from $0 to $150 per ton 

Landfill tipping fees -- from $50 to $98 per ton, and $14.46 per cubic yard in one case 

• Data on the community programs· was obtained through a series of site visits and interviews with recycling 
coorrunators from the 5 communities. Case study conclusions were subsequently reviewed with recycling 
coorrunators to ensure accuracy. 

• The cost analysis is an incremental cost study, not an allocation of pre-existing costs. It identifies discrete 
expenses incurred from the adrution of plastic bottles, calculates income from amount received from the state 
tonnage graqt based on most current figures, calculates the amount saved in tipping fees from removing plastic 
bottles from the waste stream and reconciles expense and income figures for a net cost or benefit of adding 
plastics to the curbside recycling program. 

2 
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BACKGROUND ON MATERIALS RECYCLING IN NEW JERSEY 

• In 1987 Governor Kean signed the New Jersey Statewide Source Separation And Recycling Act (P.L. 1987, c. 
102) mandating recycling of materials and requiring that: 

By 1989, each municipality must recycle at least 15% and by 1990 at least 25% of the prior year's total 
municipal solid waste stream by weight. 

By 1989, counties must designate recycling coordinators and adopt recycling plans designating leaves 
'and at least 3 other recyclable materials for collection and recycling. 

By October, 1988, DEP would report on the progress of plastics recycling, and submit recommendations 
for improvement if plastic recycling levels are below those of glass and aluminum containers. 

The state would distribute $7.8 million to towns and municipalities to assist in the development of 
recycling programs as a one time lump sum assistance grant. Funds were distributed during 1987. 

• New Jersey has been encouraging recycling of materials through the tonnage grant program since 1982 . 

From 1982 to 1987, mor~ than 80% of municipalities have received tonnage grants. 

For 1987, the most recent year tonnage grant disbursements have been made, municipalities received 
$4.06 per ton for materials recycled, for a total statewide of $4.6 million. 

• As of July 1989, 66% or 377 of the 567 municipalities in New Jersey collect recyclable materials at the curbside. 

3 
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PLASTIC BOTTLE RECYCLING IN NEW JERSEY 

• As of July 1989, 16% or 89 of the 567 of New Jersey municipalities collect plastic bottles at the curbside as part 
of a residential recycling program. 

• Plastic bottle recycling in New Jersey has increased dramatically in the past three years and continues to grow 
rapidly. 

In 1986, only a handful of municipalities recycled a total of 6.6 tons of PET and HOPE plastic bottles. 

In 1987, New Jersey municipalities recycled a total of 193 tons of PET and HOPE plastic bottles, an 
increase of nearly 3000% over 1986 levels. · 

In 1989, New Jersey municipalities will recycle 1,075 tons of PET plastic bottles alone, based on levels 
of recycling during t~e first six months of 1989. 

The five communities in. this case study will recycle a total of 208 tons of PET and 157 tons of HOPE 
plastic bottles in 1989, based on levels of recycling during the first six months of 1989. 

• Markets currently exist to accept virtually all of the plastic bottles which New Jersey municipalities could collect. 

Demand .for recycled PET and HDPE bottles will increase further as major plastics manufacturers open 
more plastic bottle reprocessing facilities, requiring a higher volume of feedstock plastic bottles. 

4 



~ 

~ 

OVERALL CONCLUSIONS OF THE STUDY 

• It appears that many small and mid-sized New Jersey communities with existing curbside recycling programs 
could add PET and HOPE plastic bottles to their programs and have a net cost benefil starting in their first year 

All five of the case study munic~palities show benefits larger than incremental costs 

A key factor was finding ways (especial.ly commingling) to add plastics that did not require 

Hiring additional staff 
Acquiring additional vehicles 
Acquiring additional curbside containers and recycling equipment 

Market factors for recycled plastic were not critical; the primary savings came from avoided landfill 
costs 

• In most of the case study programs, the largest benefit came from landfill cost savings: 

Sayreville 

An exception is Trenton's program which separates, bales and markets its own recyclables 

Total dollar benefits from adding plastic bottles vary because of differences in costs due to the method 
of recycling (commingled vs. separated) and the scrap value of plastic bottles returned to the community 
(in 1989 only Trenton marketed its plastic directly and received payment for the value of the materials). 

Incremental Cost Incremental Benefit Net Benefit 

$3,306 $10,701 $7,395 

Berlin Township 5,616 11,508 5,891 

Upper Township 300 2,919 2,619 

Trenton 7,202 10,452 3,250 

Paramus 0 21,292' 21,292 
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CONCLUSIONS OF THE FIVE TOWN CASE STUDIES 

• No significant outlays for new equipment were necessary by most of the communities themselves to include 
plastics in the community pickup. 

• 

• 

• 

·Excess capacity was available in collection trucks in all cases except Trenton. 

In Paramus, Berlin and Sayreville, which provided collection containers, excess capacity was available 
in existing containers, or more containers were purchased than were needed for the original recycling 
program excluding plastics. · 

In Trenton, one collection vehicle was purchased, with funds donated by Mercer County, allowing the 
retirement of two aging vehicles of similar total capacity. One baler was leased from Mercer County for 
nominal cost, replacing a less efficient machine. 

No additional labor was required in four of the five communities. In all cases, no additional laborers were hired . 

In all communities except Berlin Townsh'p sufficient resources existed in the programs that labor was 
r~allocated from other tasks and better use was made of existing labor time. 

In Berlin Township., time required for completing the collection route increased by 11 hours per week 
and existing laborers were paid for the additional hours. · 

In all five of the communities, excess capacity existed in the recycling programs before plastic bottles were added 
such that no increase in total workforce or expenditures for new equipment was needed to include plastic bottles 
in the residential collection program. 

Money saved from avoided landfill costs provided the greatest incentive and the largest single benefit to the five 
communities, outweighing the additional costs bOm by the communities for adding plastic bottles. 

In each community, costs for landfilling waste are expected to increase 50 to 100 percent within the 
next two years, so the savings from recycling plasti~s will increase even further 

6 
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CONCLUSIONS OF THE FIVE TOWN CASE STUDIES (Contd) 

• Two additional factors contribute to the positive cost benefit ratio observed in the five communities: 

The recycling programs in each of the communities are relatively new, as is the case with most of the 
New Jersey programs. As new programs, inefficiencies and excess capacity, both in available labor and 
in equipment, can be expected as the communities work to find the least complex and most cost 
effective way to operate residential pickup programs. 

Each of the 5 communities have well run recycling programs, operated by recycling coordinators skilled 
at. managing recycling programs and committed to making their program work. 

7 
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Can you spot the recycled tires in this McDonald's Playland? 

These kids are playing on a new soft surface made out of recycled tires. It's called 
SAF DEK from No Fault, Inc. The McRecycle USA program will make McDonald'~ 
restaurants the largest new market in America for recycled products of all kinds. 

Pictured: McDonald's Playland 
Shelby Drive at Germantown Road 
Memphis, Tennessee 
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You can't recycle polystyrene, they 
said. And even if you could, it'd cost too 
much to get it to recycling collection cen­
ters, they s.;; .. i. Besides, it's plastic, they 
said, and you know . what that means. 
Yessir, a lot of people had all the answers. 

Ami whP1.! they were all talking, the 
polystyrene industry was already bcgi11-
11ing to recycle. 

rirst, we developed ways lo recycle 
used polystyrene. into high-quality, repro­
cessed polystyrene pellets. Then, we 
helped demonstrate that existing prod· 
ucts can be made out of those pellets. 
Long-life products, like building insula­
tion, c~_sselte covers and letter 

~sF' s \11?' 

trays. Finally, we helped set up collect.ion 
systems at schools and fast-food restau­
rants-places where a lot of our polysty­
rene is used. 

'l'he fact is, We've OVert:OlllC 111a11y of 

lhc harriers to polyst.ynme rncycling. And 
we're even lu:gi1111i11g to prove I.hat. poly­
styrene recycling can become a viable 
busirH!SS enterprise. 

or course, they arc !>till talki11g. A11d 
we're !>I.ill- working. 

Polystyrene recycling is11't availahlc 
everywhere. Nol. yet. Bui. L>y the cud of 

rnuo, it will Lie availal>le in seven 
major metro areas: ·Bosto11, 

G' 

Chicago, Los Angeles, New York, Phila­
delphia, San Francisco and Portland, 
Oregon. Facilities are already operating in 
some or lho:m cities. 

By tm.15, it's om goal to recycle 250 
million (lOUllds or llSt~d pulysl.yrcnc annu­
ally, an amount. cq11ivale11t to ~G% or all 
polystyrene used hy the fuod service and 
packaging industries-a goal that is con­
sistent with I.he l·~nviro11-
111e11lal Protection Agency's 
tlolid Waste Hcducl.ion Plan. 

l=:] 

We k11ow we :;till 
l 1ave a lot of work to do. 

And we're commit-§'"''- umwumu• 

q===~ 
11w polystyn:111: recycling wucess used by tlw NJ'NC dmus 11111{ wim:rl.s med po/ysl!Jfflll~ illl11/11yh111111lily, reprncessctl polystyrene pellets, 

witlw11l l11u:urd ki 1"ecydi11!111'U1kcrs 11r wl1~~rse e11viru1111u:11tal i111pcu:l. 

t.cd t.o doing it. Because we've already ' 
done the hardest part. We got polystyrene 
recycling off the ground, no matter what 
I.hey were saying. 

for more information about polysty­
rene recycling in your area, write to our 
Washington olTicc: National Polystyn:11e 
Recycling Company, P.O. Box 66495, 
Washington, D.C. 20035-64U5. 

Jrifr Miking 
Rel)'di11g l t:V/k. 
7Dtkl)!. * Ncttionttl 
Polystyrene 
Rtl)'ding 
COJ r4Jt111J' 





McDonalo's Corporation • One McDonald's Plaza • Oak Brook, Illinois 60521 

FOR RELEASE: APRIL 18, 1990 

CONTACf: TERRICAPATOSTO 
McDONALD'S 
708-575-6109 
OR 
JON HOLT 
HOLT, ROSS & YULISH 
201-287-0045 

McDONALD'S TO BECOME LARGEST NEW MARKET 
FOR RECYCLED MATERIALS 

OAK BROOK, ILLINOIS -- McDonald's Corporation today announced the creation of 
"McRecycle USA", an environmental leadership program which sets an annual goal of 
purchasing $100 million worth of recycled materials for use in the construction, remodeling 
and operations of its U.S. restaurants. · 

Through this large-scale commitment to recycling and the environment, McDonald's is 
creating the largest new market for recycled materials in the United States. ~t represents the 
corporation's initial goal of having recycled products make up· at least 25% of its annual 
expenditures on materials used to build, remodel and equip its restaurants. 

Each year in the USA, approximately 375 new restaurants are built and 1000 are remodeled 
by McDonald's. The products used. in the construction and renovation of McDonald's 
restaur~ts range from building insulation and landscape timbers to table tops and waste 
containers to wallboard and roofing materials~-all of which can be made out of recycled 
materials. 

"Recycling is one of the most imp9rtant environmental steps America can take," stated Ed 
Rensi, President of McDonald's USA. "But there is an urgent need to expand the market for 
recycled materials so that individuals, communities and businesses can sustain--and even 
increase--their recycling efforts." 

- more -

rfi RECYCLED PAPER 



Rensi added, ''Through 'McRecycle USA', McDonald's is taking action to stimulate the market 
for recycled products by becoming a major buyer of recycled materials of all kinds. We 
challenge suppliers to provide us with these recycled products. We are a new $100 million a 
year market, waiting to be tapped." 

Rensi stressed that McDonald's new $100 million market for recycled products is in addition 
to the more than $60 million that the company already is spending annually on recycled paper 
products such as napkins, drink carriers, tray liners and Happy Meal containers. 

Shelby Y as trow, McDonald's Senior Vice President of Environmental Affairs, noted, 
"We're the largest user of recycled paper products in the quick service restaurant business. 
Now we're prepared to use our purchasing power to stimulate demand for a wide range of 
products made from recycled materials." 

To assist producers and suppliers of recycled products, McDonald's has established the 
McRecycle USA Registry Service. Manufacturers with recycled products to sell McDonald's 
can call toll-free at 1-800-453-1000 to register. They will receive information by mail 
regarding the program and how they can qualify to sell their products to McDonald's. 

In addition, McDonald's will open Jhe McRecycle USA Information Center this fall at the 
corporation's home office in Oak Brook, Illinois. Located along with McDonald's test 
kitchens and training centers, the McRecycle USA Information Center will be the focal point 
for all of McDonald's recycling efforts. 

Suppliers and others will be able to visit the Information Center for help with all thefr 
McDonald's recycling opportunities, specifications and information ·needs. 

Last fall, McDonald's implemented an in-store recycling program for polystyrene food 
packaging in 450 restaurants in New England. Plans are currently u~derway to expand this 
program to all 8,200 U.S. McDonald's restaurants as quickly as projected recycling facilities 
are opened. 

McDonald's is the world's leading quick service restaurant organization, serving 22 million 
people each day in more than 11,000 restaurants in 52 countries. Seventy-five percent of 
McDonald's restaurant businesses are locally owned and operated by independent 
entrepreneurs. 

### 
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McRecyclEfUSA 
McRecyc/e USA Registry Service 
For Suppliers: 1-BD0-453-1000 

Potential Recycled Products 
for McDonald's• Restaurants 

SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT 
Booster seats 
Cloth towels 
Doors and panels for grills, fryers, etc. 
Drive-thru audio system 

(head set, battery 
pack, battery case) 

Highchairs 
In-store trays* 
Interior/exterior signage 
Mop buckets* 
Mop handles 
Pallets* 
Trash can liners 
Trash receptacles* 
Utility carts 

RECYCLED PAPER PRODUCTS 
ALREADY IN USE 

Carry-out drink carriers* 
Corrugated boxes* -
Happy Meal~ cartons* 
Napkins* 
Toilet tissues* 
Tray liners* 

CONSTRUCTION & REMODELING 

Ceiling and floor tile 
Concrete curbing 
Conference room chairs 
Construction lumber 
Decorative siding 
Fencing & decking 
Interior table tops 
Insulation 
Landscape edging 
Landscape timbers* 
Menu board frame 
Office chairs and tables 
Patio blocks 
Patio tables and chairs* 
Playland equipment 

and components 
Playland surfaces* 
·Restaurant seats* 
Roofing materials 
Stepping stones 
Wallboard 
Wheel stops* 

* Already in u~e at some McDonald's r~staurants 

:-:·:·:·:;:;:·:·:·:::-:·.·.·.::·.·.::· 

McDonald's wants to use $100 Million of Recycled 
Material annually for New and Remodeled Restaurants. 
C 1990 McDonald'• CorpoNtlon 





THE OFFICIAL 

G ~8};%~~ Background 
~~~ ___ G_UI_D_E ______ ~-------------
"BUILDING MARKETS FOR RECYCLABLES" Publisher Robert Boulanger, M. Ed. 

THE OFFICIAL RECYCLED PRODUCTS GUIDE (RPC) was established 
in March, 1989. 

The Guide lists a broad range of product information under such 
classifications as paper, rubber, oil, plastics, construction materials, 
packaging, landscaping and gardening. Listings in the guide are free of 
charge to manufacturers and distributors of recyeled products who certify 
their recycled content. 

Listings include company name, address, contact, telephone, fax, type of 
company (manufacturer or distributor), minimum recycled content, special · 
remarks. All listings are cross-referenced alphabetically, geographically and 
by product type. A references section includes such information as current 
governmental procurement guidelines. 

The Official RECYCLED PRODUCTS GUIDE is published by: 
American Recycling Market Inc., 
P.O. Box 577, Ogdensburg, NY 13669 

·HOTLINE: 1-800-267-0707 (USA) (315) 471-0707 
FAX: 613/448-2268 

OVER 



RECYCLED PRODUCTS INDEX 
RPG• PRODUCT CLASSIFtCATIONS -AS LISTED IN THE "OFFICIAL• RECYCLED PRODUCTS GUIDE 

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 1990 

CONSTAUCTION MATERIAL PRODUCTS 
DRAINAGE-NITRIFICATION FIELD SYSTEMS 
DRAINAGE.PRE-FABRICATED SYSTEMS 
ORAINAGE·TROUGH & ACCESSORIES 
DRAINME-UNDERORAJH UNIT (GLASS) 
ORY FELT MATERIAL 
EXPANSION JOINT Flu.ERS 
FLY ASH-FOR CONCRETE 
FLY ASH-FOR RIM CONCRETE 
INSULATION-BL.OWING 
INSULATION-BOARD 
INSULATION-CELLULOSE 
INSULATION-CELLULOSE RBERBOARD 
INSULATION-CELLULOSE LOOSE FILL 
INSULATION-FIRE PROOFING, SPRAY-ON 
INSUUTION-MINERAL WOOL 
INSULATION.PERLITE BOARD 
INSULATION-ROCK WOOL 
INSULATION-SPRAY-ON CELLULOSE LOOSE FILL 
PIPE-CORRUGATED DRAIN (PLASTIC) 
PIPE-CULVERTS & STORM SEWERS (PLASTIC) 
PIPE-CULVERTS (PLASTIC) 
PIPE-CULVERTS (AUBBER) 
PIPE·SMOOTHWAU.. DRAIN (PLASTIC) 
SOIL EROSION UNIT (GUSS) 

PAPER PRODUCTS 
ABSORBENTS (PAPER) 
ANIMAL BEDDING (PAPER) 
COMPUTER PAPER-BLUE/GREEN BAR 
COMPUTER PAPER-CARBONLESS (NCR) 
COMPUTER PAPER-CONTINUOUS BONO 
COMPUTER PAPER-CONTINUOUS FORM BOND 
COMPUTER PAPER-FINE EDGE 
COMPUTER PAPER-FORM BOND 
COMPUTER PAPER-GREENBAR 
DRY GUM PAPER 
FIREPLACE LOGS (PAPER) 
GREETING CARDS 
NEWSPRINT 
PACKAGING-BOXES (PAPER) 
PACKAGING-CELLULOSE WADDING (PAPER) 
PACKAGING-MAIL BAGS, PAOOED 
PACKAGING-MAILING TUBES 
PACKAGING.PROTECTIVE (PAPER) 
PACKAGING-SHREDOED PAPER 
PACKAGING-WRAPPING (CHIP PAPER) 
PACKAGING-WRAPPING (DECORATIVE) 
PACKAGING-WRAPPING (KRAFT) 
PAPERBOARD 
PAPERBOARD-POSTER/SIGN 
PAPERBOARD-BRISTOUINDEX 
PAPERBOARD-CONSTRUCTION PAPER 
PAPERBOARD-INDEX GRADES 
PAPERBOARD-UNERBOARO 
PAPERBOARD-POSTER/SIGN 
PAPERBOARD-SHELLBOARD 
PAPERBOARD-TUBESTOCK 
PRINTING PAPER-ARTIFICIAL PARCHMENT 
PRINTING PAPER-BOND 
PRINTING PAPER-BOOK 
PRINTING PAPER-COATED OFFSET 
PRINTING PAPER-COPY/XEROGRAPHIC (OTHER) 
PAINTING PAPeR-COPY/XEROGRAPHIC HI SPEED 
PRINTING PAPER.COTTON FIBER 
PRINTING PAPER-COTI'ON FIBER ENVELOPES 
PRINTING PAPER-COVER STOCK . 
PRINTING PAPER-ENVELOPES (STATIONERY) 
PRINTING PAPER-EXERCISE 
PRINTING PAPER-FILM COATED 
PRINTING PAPER-INDEX 
PRINTING PAPER-LEDGER PAPER 
PRINTING PAPER-LEGAL PADS 
PRINTING PAPER-LINED PADS 
PRINTING PAPER-MAP PAPER 
PRINTING PAPER-OFFSET 
PRINTING PAPER-RAG PAPER 

- PRINTING PAPER·TEXT 
PRINTING PAPER-WRmNG (STATIONERY) 
TISSUE-FACIAL 
TISSUE-INDUSTRIAL WIPERS 
TISSUE-NAPKINS 
TISSUE-TOILET 
TISSUE-TOWELS 

PLASTIC PRODUCTS 
BAGS-GARBAGE CAN LINEA (PLASTIC) 
BAGS.PLASTIC 
BAGS-RETAIL 
BENCHES-LOCKER (PLASTIC) 
BENCHES-PARK 
BICYCLE RACKS 
BOXES-COMPARTMENT (PLASTIC) 
BOXES-HINGED BOX (PUSTIC) 
BOXES-ROUND UNHINGED (PUSTIC) 
BOXES-UNHINGED (PLASTIC) 
BUCKET (PLASTIC) 
BUILDING TRIM (PLASTIC) 
CONTAINER·ASHITRASH REFUSE 
CONTAINER-BUCKET 1-6.5 GALCAP. (PLASTIC) 
CONTAINER-BULK· 30 TO 53 CU FT CAPACITY 
CONTAINER-CURBSIDE PICK-UP (PLASTIC) 
CONTAINER-DROP OFF 
CONTAINER-FINE PAPER COLI.ECTION 
CONTAINER-NEWSPAPER COLI.ECTION 
CONTAINER-REFUSE 
CONTAINER·SEMl·AUTO REFUSE 
CONTAINER-TRASH BINS (PLASTIC) 
CONTAINER-WASTEBASKET 
CURB EDGING (PLASTIC) 
CUSTOM INDUSTRIAL MOLDINGS (PLASTIC) 
CYLINDER MOLDS (PLASTIC) 
DECKING 
DESK TOP ACCESSORIES (PLASTIC) 
DOCK FACINGS (PLASTIC) 
DOCK FENDERS (PLASTIC) 
DOCKS 
EGG CARTONS (PLASTIC) 
FENCE-ELECTRIFIED 
FENCE-POST (PLASTIC) 
FENCE-PRIVACY 
FENCE-RANCH FENCING ANO GATES 
FENCE-SAFETY (PLASTIC) 
FENCE·SNOW (PLASTIC) 
FITNESS COURSES 
FLOORING-ANIMAL (PLASTIC) 
GAME GOALSIBACKSTOPS 
GEOTEXTILES 
HANGING FILE (PLASTIC) 
ICE SCRAPER (PLASTIC) 
LANO FILL PRODUCTS-CAPS 
LANO FILL PRODUCTS-LINERS 
LAWN FURNITURE 
LIGHTING-FLUORESCENT COVERS (PLASTIC) 
WMBER (PLASTIC) 
MANHOLE STEPS (PLASTIC) 
MATS-FATIGUE (PLASTIC) 
MATS-FIRE ENGINE CAB (PLASTIC) 
MATS-TRACTION (PUSTIC) 
MATs-TRUCK BED (PLASTIC) 
PALL.ET (PLASTIC) 
PARKING BOU.ARDS (PLASTIC) 
PARKING STOPS (PLASTIC) 
PICNIC TABLES 
PLAYGROUND EQUIPMENT 
POSTS-FENCE 
POSTS-MAILBOX 
POSTS-ROAD MARKER/REFLECTOR 
POSTS-SIGN ANO SUPPORTS 
POSTs-UNOeRGROUNO UTILITY 
SAFETY BARRIERS (PLASTIC) 
SANO BOXES 
SHEET-MULTI PURPOSE FLAT 
SHEET-PET (PLASTIC) 
SHORE EROSION PROTECTION 
SHOWER OMDERS (PLASTIC) 
SPEED BUMP (PLASTIC) 
STADIUM SEATING 
SUPPORT PILINGS 
-~.PIC141C 
'1 OIL.ET PARTtTIONS (PLASTIC) 
TRACTION PAO (PLASTIC) 
TRAYS FOOD 
URINAL SCREEN (PLASTIC) 
WAU<WAYS·BOAROWALKS 
WALKWAYS-BRIDGE 
WAU.. PANELS (PLASTIC) 

LUIDSCOINGIOARDENING PRODUCTS 
COfiFOS1' 
FLOWER POTS-NURSERY 
HYDROPONEX MULCH 
HYDROSEEOING MULCH 
LANDSCAPE TIMBER 

RE-REFINED OIL PRODUCTS 
2CYCLEOIL 
AUTOMOTIVE OIL 
BASESTOCK (RE-REFINED. OIL) 
CUTTING OIL 
DIESEL LOCOMOTIVE OIL 
DIESEL OIL 
ENGINE OIL 
GEAR OIL 
HYDRAULIC OIL 
INDUSTRIAL OILS 
MIL-L·21040 (RE-REFINED OIL) 
MIL-L·2104E (RE-REFINED OIL) 
MlL-l-46152C (RE-REFINED OIL) 
TRANSMISSION OIL 

RECYCLED/FEEDSTOCK PRODUCTS 
FEEDSTOCK-ACRYLIC RESIN (PLASTIC) 
Fi:EDSTOCK-CHIPS (RUBBER) 
FEEDSTOCK-CRUMB (RUBBER) 
FEEDSTOCK-Flu.ER FIBERS (PAPER) 
FEEDSTOCK-FLAKES (PLASTIC) 
FEEDSTOCK-HOPE RESIN (PLASTIC) 
FEEDSTOCK-INDUSTRIAL FIBERS (PAPER) 
FEEDSTOCK-LOPE RESIN (PLASTIC) 
FEEDSTOCK-MOPE RESIN (PLASTIC) 
FEEDSTOCK-PET RESIN 
FEEDSTOCK-PELLETS (PLASTIC) 
FEEDSTOCK-POLYPROPYLENE RESIN 
FEEDSTOCK-REGRIND (PLASTIC) 
FEEDSTOCK-RUBBER & FABRIC STRIPS 
FEEDSTOCK-RUBBER PEELINGS 
FEEDSTOCK· TRUCK TIRE BEADS 

RUBBER PRODUCTS 
ASPHALT-CRACK SEALANT 
ASPHALT-RUBBERIZED 
ASPHALT-RUBBERIZED CHIP SEAL 
ATHLETIC SURFACING (RUBBER) 
BASES-PORTABLE (RUBBER) 
BUCKET (RUBBER) 
BUMPER DOCK (RUBBER) 
8UMPER-0-GUARD (RUBBER) 
BUMPER-DOCK (RUBBER) 
BUMPER-TRAILER (RUBBER) 
COMMERCIAL FISHING PRODUCTS (RUBBER) 
CONTAINER-CURBSIDE.PICK UP (RUBBER) 
FENDER-BARGE (RUBBER) 
FENDER-BOUY (RUBBER) 
FENOER-BUU< HEAD (RUBBER) 
FENDER-TRAWL DOOR (RUBBER) 
FENDER-TUGBOAT (RUBBER) 
FLOORING-ICE ARENA (RUBBER) 
FLOORING-STABLE (RUBBER) 
FLOORING WEIGHT ROOM (RUBBER) 
MATs.ACCENT MAT (RUBBER) 
MATS-ANTI-FATIGUE MAT (RUBBER) 
MATS-SUSTING MAT (RUBBER) 
MATs-eNTRANCE MAT (RUBBER) 
MATS-EXERCISE MAT RUBBER 
MATS-FATIGUE MAT (RUBBER) 
MATS-HOCKEY MAT (RUBBER) 
MATS-LIVESTOCK (RUBBER) 
MATs-TRACTION RUBBER} 
MATs-TRUCK BED (RUBBER) 
PAOs-BACK HOE (RUBBER) 
SPEED BUMP (RUBBER) 
TILE-FLOOR (RUBBER) 
TIRES-REMANUFACTURED 
TIRES-RETREAD TRUCK 
WHEEL CHOCK-AUTOMOTIVE (RUBBER) 
WHEEL CHOCK-AVIATION (RUBBER) 

MISCELLANEOUS PRODUCTS 
BOOKLETS-BROCHURES (EDUCATIONAL) 
GAMES/TOYS-CARD GAME (EDUCATIONAL) 
CONTAINER·BOTI'LES & JARS (GLASS) 

No portion of the conten11 of this publicalion may be r9Prif1ted or l'9Pf'O(luced without the written pennislion of American Recyding Market Inc. 
C1990 American Recycling Martcet Inc. All rights reserved 
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McDonald's Corporation • One McDonald's Plaza • OaK Brook. Illinois 60521 

RECYCLING IN THE U.S.A. 

Approximately 160 million tons of municipal solid waste, commonly called "garbage", is 
produced each year in the United States. 

By percentage of weight, this 160 million tons of waste is made up of paper ( 40% ), yard 
waste (18%), food wastes (12%), ~lass (8%), plastics (7%), steel (7%), aluminum 
(2%), and all other materials (6%) .. All q?ick service restaurant industry packaging 
accounts for only 1/4of1 % of landfill sohd waste~ 

Currently, 80% of the country's solid waste is placed in landfills, 10% is recycled and 
10% is incinerated. The EPA's 1992 goals for waste disposal are as follows: 55% for 
landfills, 25 % for recycling and 20% for incineration. 

Ten years ago, there were 18,500 landfill sites in the U.S. Today, there are 6,000. By 
the mid-1990s, about one-half of those sites are expected to be closed. 

Recycling of most materials saves energy and resources, particularly versus the 
alternative of producing products from virgin raw materials. It also eliminates items 
from entering the solid waste stream. 

Markets for recycled products must continue to expand so that lack of demand does 
not become a major constraint to local recycling programs. 

Sources: J. Winston Porter, "Municipal Solid Waste Recycling: The Big Picture" 
(U.S. Conference of Mayors Recycling Conference, March 29, 1990). 

W.L. Rathje, "RUBBISH!", The Atlantic Monthly, December 1989. 
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I am here today to provide testimony Oh behalf of Garden State 

Paper Company, headquartered in Elmwood Park, New Jersey. Garden 

State Paper is well known by recyclers here in New Jersey. In 

19 61 the world's first commercial newsprint manufactured 

exclusively from old newspapers was produced at the Garden State 

Paper mill in Garfield, New Jersey. Since the original Earth Day 

in 1970, the Garfield mill has consumed 4.5 million tons of old 

newspapers. The mill consumes . 270, 000 tons of old newspapers 

annually or about 750 tons every day. Last year alone Garden 

State Paper procured a record 182, 000 tons of old newspapers 

(I' 11 call them ONP) from within New Jersey. To put that in 

p~rspective, it would take a 172 mile long line of packer trucks, 

bumper to bumper to hold that amount of material. 

New Jersey's recycling achievements have been truly outstanding. 

DEP Commissioner Yaskin recently told recyclers attending the 

1990 New Jersey Recycling Forum Dinner in New Brunswick that the 

state's communities have achieved a r~cycling rate of 24 percent 

of the MSW. According to the New Jersey Office of Recycling 

360,000 tons of old newspapers were recovered through recycling 

programs during 1988 or over 50 percent of all newspape~s 

circulated in New Jersey were collected and reprocessed back into 

new products. While the final data is not yet available we 

beliE~e that the 1989 recnvery rate will be significantly higher. 



(2) 

Newspaper recycling has undergone major changes in recent times. 

New Jersey and other Northeastern states passed laws requiring 

the mandatory source separation of recyclables. Old newspapers, 

because of their volume and ease of collection, were one of the 

most popular materials for municipal recycling programs. The 

supply of ONP shot up at an unprecedented rate. Although the 

domestic and export demand for ONP in the Northeastern U.S. 

increased by over 17 percent during 1989, the market was soft 

most of the year. This was particularly true of newspapers mixed 

with other grades of wastepaper. 

The bumper crop of ONP recycling without commensurate growth in 

the demand market led to new legislative initiates aimed at 

stimulating ·demand. California, Connecticut and most recently 

Maryland passed legislation requiring the use of newsprint paper 

containing recycled fibers. We also saw the newspaper publishing 

industry make a serious commitment to the use of recycled 

newsprint. Publishing companies, such as Knight-Ridder Inc., 

Gannett, Times Mirror, Scripps.Howard and Dow Jones & Company as 

well as many of the smaller companies, pledged to use significant 

amounts of recycled newsprint as quickly as it could be made 

available. 
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Virgin fiber newsprint paper manufacturers received a clear 

message to prepare thernselvGs to make newsprint paper with 

recycled fiber content. Virtually every newsprint manufacturer 

in North America investigated how it miqht incorporate secondary 

fiber in its newsprint sheet. In addition to the new world-class 

recycled newsprint machine started last fall at Southeast Paper 

Manufacturing in Dublin, Georgia, Atlantic Packaging is scheduled 

to bring another new machine on line later this year in Whitby, 

Ontario, which will use 100 percent recycled fiber for its 

furnish. A number of new deinking facilities have been announced 

and are under various stages of permitting and construction. 

North American newsprint producers which .have announced such 

projects includP. Canadian Pacific Forest Products, Abitibi Price, 

Daishowa Paper, Donohue, NorPac, Newstech, and Bowater~ Each of 

these are major projects which will place substantial incremental 

demands on the U.S. ONP supply market., These changes are in 

motion and need a chance to develop without additional 

stimulation which could cause apprehension about the supply 

market's ability to support additional growth. The supply oarket 

must demonstrate that it can, in fact, reliably feed this· 

substantially larger demand. 

I would also like to comment on the current market for old 

newspapers in New Jersey. Contrary to what you may have heard 

there IS a market for old newspapers. Garden State Paper is 

willing to enter into lonq +:eI.itl purchase aqreemP.nts with New 

Jersey municipalities for loose newspapers which have not been 

comingled with other grades of waste paper. 
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The GSP deinking technology is the most advanced technology 

available for handling the variety of newspaper printing 

processes in use today. It deinks all of them well, including 

flexography. We have also made major improvements in the 

system's ability to remove contaminants found in municipally 

sourced old newspapers. The company's technical staff is 

continually working to keep Garfield on the leading edge of the 

quality issue. In fact, Garden State Paper spent $25 million for 

process improvements during the past few years. We feel that 

investment is paying off in terms of marketplace acceptance of 

our finished product. However, product quality is an ongoing 

endeavor, and we cannot c:tfford to give up the process-r~lated 

gains through relaxed raw material standards. Garden State Paper 

continues to encourage the development of clean newspapers only 

source separated programs. 

In the future it can be anticipated that other newsprint 

manufacturers will also be purchasers of clean New· Jersey 

generated ONP as thP.ir deink pulp lines become reality. 

New Jersey State Library 
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In summary the North American newsprint producing industry is 

clearly committed to increasing the use of waste paper in its 

products. Further initiati~res at this point in tirne to stimulate 

demand could be counter productive. There is a good market for 

old newspapers in New Jersey today. Garden State Paper is 

willing to sign long-term agreements for clean old newspapers. 

Municipalities that place emphasis on the high quality of the old 

newspapers they collect from residents are the ones who will be 

successful in effectively marketing their product to old 

newspaper consumers such as Garden State Paper. Thank you. 

### 
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Good Morning, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for the oppor~unity to present 

testimony on the issue of rec ye 1i ng in New Jersey. I am here today 

from Ogden Martin Systems, Inc. Ogden Martin is one of the member firms 

of the Institute of Resource Recovery. The IRR is comprised of firms 

that design, build and operate facilities to recover energy and 

materials from trash wrtile stabi1izing it and reducing its vohJme 

through contro11ed combustion. The IRR is a component of the National 

Solid Wastes Management Association fNSWMA), a trade group with over 

2,500 members of the private waste services industry. 

Five companies of the IRR do bus-i ness ; n New Jersey at twe 1 ve 

facilities in various stages of deve1opmont. The combined waste 

capacity of these twelve faci1it1es once completed wi11 be 16,330 tons 

per day, which represents about 50% of New Jersey's waste stream. The 

IRR be1 ieves an integrated approach is necessary for optimal sol id 

w~ste managemerit. This integrated approach give$ priority to tre~t~ng 

as a valuable resource those materials that would be disposed by less 

useful means. Integrated solid waste management allows localities to 

select the technologies that wi 11 best handle their· waste disposal· 

problems and that cou1d include waste reduction, recycling, combustion 

and resource ~ecovery, and 1andf111ing. 

The IRR recognizes the importance of recycling as one of the highost 

priorities of integrated waste management. It is a valuable means of 

recovering continuing vaiue from used materials, and of reducing the 

volume of waste that eventual1y reQuires disposal. New Jersey's 



mandatory source separation legislation enacted in 1987, which set a 

s~atewide goal of 25% reduction of the waste stream 1 should help New 

Jersey reco~er substantia1 va1ue from waste materials for their highest 

and bes~ reuse. Although currently the State recycles approxima~ely 

20% of its waste stream, increased eff arts in p 1 arming and mar-ket 

development should enable the State to achieve and perhaps surpass its 

goal. 

Recycling can benefit the operation of waste-to-energy facilities in 

a well-planned waste management system. Recycling encourages the 

remova1 of certa1n items from the waste stream which improves waste 

combustion. G 1 ass,· a 1 umi num, meta 1 s, batteries and yard waste, for 

example, are items that do not either contribute to effic1ent 

combustion in modern waste-to-ena'.9Y facilities, or can add to the 

burden of pollutants that must be removed by state-of-the-art pollution 

contro 1 s. Removing these 1 tems ·for rec ye 1 i ng can i ncreaso the heat 

value of a unit volume of fuel by up to 25%, while reducing ash content 

by weight by about 50% and carbon monoxide and hydrocarbon emissions 

s1gnificant1y. Remova1 of automotive batteries reduces heavy rneta1s 

emissions of lead, cadmium and mercury in the air and ash; yard waste 

removal decreases nitrogen oxide levels in emissions. 

Conv~rsely, recovery of energy can compl~ment recycling in recovering 

full value from our waste material. For economic or technical ~eaaons, 

some waste materials cannot be recycled, but do hold substantia1 va1ue 

as an energy source. And many materia1s that are recyclable, such as 



newsprint, c3nnot be recycled 1ndef inite1y. Eventually, 

,J s e f u l n es s as r .:t c 1 c 1 e d mat..; r i a 1 s a r ~ exhausted , and a t l east one 

beneficial use before ultimate disposal is in the recovery of energy. 

IRR firms are actively engaged in recyc1ing programs. In fact, 1n New 

Jersey, permits for resource recovery have not been issued without 

recycling plans playing an important role. Such plans inc1ude 

agreemen~s with materials separation facilities, curbside co11ection 

recycling programs, post-combustion materials recovery and ash reusa 

applications. 

Curbs1de p~ograms resu1t in excellent recovery of high quality 

recyclables. These programs teach consumers to both reuse and reduce 

U1e waste generated. Their individual cooperation is essential. In 

G 1 ouc.oster County, the Whee 1 abrat-or waste~to-energy facility wil 1 

complement the County's aggressive curbside recycling program. 

A materials recovery facility worhing in conjunction with the County. 

and its resource recovery facility enab1os the volume of t~e waste to 

be significantly reduced and va1uab1e recovery of resources. This wi11 

be evidenced in Monmouth County, where a recent1y awarded project to 

Westinghouse includes a materials separation facility to be constructed 

on the premises. 

I RR firms a 1 so rocover ferrous ,.,,eta 1 s f ram the residua 1 ash. Last year 1 

ugden Mart1n recovered 54,000 tons of scrap ferrous metals nationwide. 
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This. is a fairly simp1e process, as the recovery rate fer post­

combustion ferrous metals is approximately 70% to 90%. Shredding this 

ma t e r i a 1 res 1.J 1 ts i n a h i g h Qua 1 i t y met a 1 w h i ch s e 1 1 s at the 9 o i n g 

market rate ~n New Jersey of about $60 per ton. 

State-of-the-art technology currently employed by IRR members renders 

the ash rasu1ting from the waste-to-energy process into a basica11~ 

inert substance closely resembling a low strength concrete when it sets 

up in a 1andfill. This residual ash has been increasingly investigated 

far ~se in applications such as roadbed fill, aggregate for asphalt and 

. cement; and artificial reef construction. 

In summary, IRR supports integrated so 1 id waste management 1 which 

allows 1oca1 govornment to select the ~est waste management options to 

fit their needs and cou1d include waste reduction, recycling, resource 

recovery and landfilling. The rapid1y growing garbage prob1em in New 

Jersey must be dea 1 t with, and we believe this inc 1 udes a need to 

emphasize recycling. It has been our experience that waste-to-energy 

has been an effective partner.with recycling, and we seek to strengthen 

this partnership in efforts to so1ve New Jersey's waste problem. 

4 



$. NEW JERSEY STATE 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
Governmental Relations Oftice 
28 West State Street. Suite #1 ~00 
Trenton. NJ 08608 
(609) 989· 7888 

NJ STATE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

COMMENTS ON 
THE PROGRESS OF PLASTICS RECYCLING 

ASSEMBLY WASTE MANAGEMENT 
PLANNING AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE 

May 10, 1990 

Assemblyman McEnroe, members of the committee, my name is 
Clare Schulzki and I'm Associate Director of Governmental 
Relations for the State Chamber of Commerce. We welcome the 
opportunity to comment today. We believe we can help set a 
tone for the commitment of the business community. Many of 
our members have made substantial investments in plastic 
recycling technology and I'll let them detail their specific 
experiences. 

The State Chamber has long been a supporter of recycling. 
We've put it into practice in our own office. We've also 
encouraged our members to cre~te markets and opportunities 
to recycle materials which they have done and will continue. 
A good example is Union Carbide Corporation in Piscataway. 
They've launched the first full-scale multi-plastics 
recycling facility which will accept not only materials from 
industry but municipalities as well. 

We believe that· New Jersey has come a long way with 
recycling but still has further to go, specifically with 
plastics. In 1986, only a few municipalities recycled PET 
and HDPE plastic bottles. In 1989, estimat~s were made that 
municipalities recycled over 1,075 tons of PET bottles 
alone. We believe that the demand for recycled plastics 
will continue to grow and more processing facilities will 
continue to open. 

As we've done in the past, the State Chamber supports 
efforts to expand the materials required under the Mandatory 
Recycling l'.1.ct to include post-consumer plastic containers. 
We believe that it's vital to add polyethylene 
terephathalate (PET), high-density polyethylene (HDPE) and 
other plastics to the collection of recyclables because this 
will greatly reduce volume of our waste stream and the cost 
of disposing of it. 

S•tving New Jersey since 1911 



A study conducted late last year on the economic feasibility 
of adding plastics to existing curbside recycling programs 
shows benefits larger than the incremental costs of adding 
the materials to the program. In other words, it's cost 
effective to recycle plastics. The study examined five very 
different towns in New Jersey, Sayreville, Berlin Township, 
Upper Township, Trenton and Paramus who added PET and HDPE 
bottles to their curbside recycling programs. The results 
showed that each town saved money from avoiding landfill 
costs. This in turn far outweighed the costs of collecting 
the extra materials. As our waste disposal costs continue 
to rise, the cost savings of recycling plastics will also 
increase. We simply must recycle more of our waste. 

Assemblyman Albohn has sponsored legislation, A-128, which 
would require municipalities to add PET, HDPE and other 
plastic materials to their recycling program. We support 
this bill and urge its passage. 

In the past year, there have been proposals to ban certain 
types of plastics or place taxes on them because these items 
don't degrade or disappear. We don't believe that this is 
the most effective way to reduce our waste. The fact that 
they're being touted as a solution is really misleading and 
could be counterproductive to long term plastic recycling 
efforts. -

Unsightly trash on the roadside,. improperly disposed of is a 
litter problem and not just associated with plastics. Our 
members in businesses, large and small, have addressed this 
and contribute to the Clean Communities Program. It's 
people who l.i tter when they' re driving to the beach and toss 
their soda cup out the window or leave their cans behind. 
We need to continue to change people's habits and educate 
them on the benefits of recycling and how it impacts their 
lives. 

We. also supported the passage of Public Law 268 of 1989, 
which will make plastics recycling even easier by adopting 
the uniform plastic container coding program of the Society 
of the Plastics Industry. Containers will be coded with a 
number which will aid in determining the type of plastic and 
its content. 



We've enclosed a summary of the study on the costs of adding 
plastics to curbside recycling programs for your review. 

In our everyday lives we've come to rely on plastic for good 
reason, including their light weight, strength and low 
costs. We believe that recycling of plastics does and will 
continue to have a substantial cost benefit to both citizens 
and the business community. We urge the passage of A-128 to 
amend the Mandatory Recycling Act to include PET, HDPE and 
other plastics. New Jersey's a natural leader in recycl~ng 
and the measures we've outlined-can go a long way toward 
developing the necessary infrastructure to make us a leader 
in plastics recycling as well.· 

Thank you for the opportunity to speak today. 
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The New Jersey Food Council (NJFC) is a trade association 
representing retail supermarkets, convenience stores and food 
manufacturers in New Jersey. 

NJFC has been an effective partner in helping to identify 
and implement solid waste solutions. Under New Jersey's 
voluntary and mandatory recycling programs, the food 
industry recycles over 400,000 tons of corrugated cardboard 
as well as fat and bone each year. This contributes 
significantly to the amount of tonnage grants municipalities 
receive. 

In 1984, the food industry educated consumers on how to 
identify products made from recycled materials. In 1985, the 
industry supported the enactment of mandatory recycling 
legislation, and initiated the Clean Communities program. 
The food industry has served as an information vehicle for 
the state's public relations program on recycling-printing ·• 
state and local messages on grocery bags. 

In 1989, the New Jersey Food Council served on a national 
food industry task force on solid waste which resulted in 
industry .. wide support and financial initiatives for plastic 
recycling; market development for recycled materials by 
encouraging greater use in packaging; removal of toxic 
materials from labeling; universal coding of plastic 
containers. More recently, the NJFC Solid Waste Committee 
launched a consumer education program through member 
stores designed to" promote source reduction and recycling. 

• 
F.C 

ew Jersey Food Council 
0 West Lafayette Street 

Trenton, New Jersey 08608 
(609) 392-8899 
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Introduction 

New Jerseyans produce over 11 million tons of 
garbage every year. That's more than 4 pounds per 
day for each resident in the state. 

Available landfill space has reached capacity. 
Subsequently, we must go outside our state borders 
to find landfills for our garbage. 

Transporting garbage to other states has 
significantly increased the cost of disposal. It is 
also unreliable. For these reasons, alternative 
disposal methods have emerged. 

The New Jersey Department of Environmental 
Protection (NJDEP) advocates a four-pronged 
approach to managing our garbage. 

• Source Reduction 
•Recycling 
•Waste-to-Energy Resource Recovery 
• Landfilling 

The NJDEP has set a goal to recycle a minimum 
of 25% of our garbage. That goal will not be met 
unless, individuals, businesses, institutions and 
government participate. 

What is in our garbage? Franklin Associates, 
Ltd., and William Rathje, Professor of 
Anthropology at the University of Arizona, have 
excavated landfills to determine what's in them. 

What's In MSW? 

Paper & Paperboard = 35.6% 

Metals = 8. 9% 
Plastics = 7. 3% 

~ Paper/P' board 
Q Glass · 
0 Metals 
[3 Plastics 
9 Rub'r/Leather 

OTextiles 
OWood 
~ Food Wastes 
l:l Yard Wastes 
OMisc. 
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"I believe that everything in our landfills-paper 
towel, plastic sandwich bag or melon rind-is part 
of our refuse disposal problem. I also hold the firm 
conviction that we will be able to establish our 
priorities and OUT options only when we have 
realistic perceptions of what solid wastes we 
actually throw away. " 

W.L. Rathje, Ph.D. 
Professor of Anthropology 
Lhiversity of Arizona 



.. An Industry Initiative On Solid Waste .. 

SOLID WASTE: 
The New jersey Food Council Perspective 

The New Jersey Food Council has been a leader 
among industry in initiating, developing and 
implementing workable, comprehensive solid 
waste solutions. 

Food retailers and manufacturers alike are 
concerned about protecting the environment and 
about creating a safer, cleaner world for future 
generations. 

As the purchaser and supplier of food and non, 
food products to New Jersey's consumers, we 
believe the food industry has a special opportunity 
to view every product with an eye towards 
ensuring that the manufacturing process and the 
disposal process are as safe and technologically 
advanced as they can be. In addition, we believe 
we have a unique opportunity to stimulate demand 
for products and packaging that promote source 
reduction and recyclability, and to participate in 
the dynamic interplay between marketplace 
variables, consumer concerns and government 
policies. 

The New Jersey Food Council finnly supports 
NJDEP and EPA'.s integrated approach to solid 
waste management. We believe that this broad 
strategy is essential if we are to achieve the 
government policy goals of 25% 'reduction in solid 
waste by 1992. This approach is fourfold: 

Source Reduction-a state and national 
commitment to reduce the amount of material 
that enters the disposal and landfill system. 
Recycling and Reuse-an emphasis on using 
our resources as thoroughly as possible before 
they are discarded. 
Waste to En~rgy Incineration-making the 
best use of items which can be safely 
incinerated to provide us with an independent 
source of energy. 
Landfill-the last resort for materials that fall 
outside the other options. · 

"'X'e believe we have a unique opportunity· to 
stimulate demand for products and packaging that 
promote source reduction and recyclability, and to 
participate in the dynamic interplay between 
marketplace variables, consumer concerns, and 
government policies.'' 

Jerome Yaguda, President, 
Wakefem fuod Corporation 

Opportunities For Source Reduction 

The New Jersey Food Council believes that for 
Source Reduction initiatives to be most effective, 
they must be based upon a system of goals and 

•standards, and built upon a shared understanding 
by industry as to what constitutes "source 
reduction". 

To guide source reduction programs within the 
food industry, the following goals should be 
perceived: 

• Volume reduction 
•Weight reduction 
• Recyclability 
• Recycled content 
• Toxicity reduction 

However, in our pursuit of source reduction, we 
must not lose sight of the important roles of 
packaging. 

Packaging of consumer products serves many 
purposes and is an integral part of modem life. 

Packaging is needed primarily to contain and 
protect products during transportation, storage 
and display. It can prevent breakage, spoilage, 
product tampering and even theft. 

Consumer -information is another important 
function of packaging. Packaging is also designed 
for convenience-not only for the consumer, but 
also for retailers and other handlers. Packaging 
can also serve simply to enhance attractiveness for 
marketing. 

But, packaging also contributes to two principal 
solid waste management problems. The first is the 
quantity of waste generated; and, secondly, 
packaging contains materials and substances that 
effect the quality of the waste stream. 

Borh the quantity and quality impacts of 
packaging add stress to the state's overburdened 
solid waste management system. This translates 
into increased disposal costs, and widens the gap 
between the environmentally sound disposal 
capacity that is needed versus that which is 
available. 



'~A.s the purchaser and supplier of food and non­
food products to New Jersey's consumers, we 
believe that the food industry has a special 
opportunity to view every product with an eye 
towards ensuring that the manufacturing process 
anJ the disposal process are as safe and 
technologically advanced as they can be." 

James Burke, President, 
Twin County Grocers. 

Opportunities To Increase Recycling 

The New Jersey Food Council and its member 
companies have been in the forefront of recycling 
in New Jersey, by supporting New Jersey's 
Mandatory Recycling Act; recycling thousands of 
tons of corrugated, fat and bones; and by working 
with municipalities in helping them to reach their 
25% recycling rate. While New Jersey's program 
was one of the first in the nation, and is being 
duplicated by other states and countries, its 
success will depend on source reduction initiatives 
and market development. The New Jersey Food 
Council continues its commitment to recycling 
and recommends action in the following areas to 
increase these efforts: 

"The food industry has always been in the 
forefront of consumer responsiveness. Therefore, 
we intend to move forward, with thoughtful 
solutions, to the problem of solid waste disposal 
and packaging. " 

Jack Futterman, President and CEO, 
SupermaTkets GeneTal Cmparation. 

Recommendations And Action Plan 

• Support mandatory recycling of plastics. 
• Support greater use of packaging made from 

materials that can be recycled. 
• Support increased use of packaging made from 

recycled materials in order to stimulate markets. 
• Support SPI voluntary coding symbol of plastic 

containers by materials types. 
• Support recycling of new materials such as 

polystyrene, and bi-metal. 

0 
• Support federal initiatives that increase national 

recycling rates. 
• Support a reduction in the total volume of 

disposable packaging waste generated. 
• Support redesign of packaging to reduce 

materials where it is feasible. 
• Urge removal of toxic materials from packaging, 

such as cadmium, lead, etc. 
• Urge removal of toxic leads in printing of labels. 
• Support standardized definitions and uniform 
· labeling of "environmentally friendly" products. 

• Encourage the use of bulk or family size 
packages; concentrates or dehydrated products in 
smaller packages. 

• Support research and development of source 
reduction possibilities and its impact on society, 
cost effectiveness, etc. 

• Support consumer education programs that are 
designed to promote source reduction and 
recycling. However, this should not be used as a 
marketing gimmick and should not be 
undertaken until there is greater uniformity and 
understanding as to what will produce a more 
durable behavioral change in customers 
purchasing habits. 

• Educate industry executives, buyers, and 
employees as to source reduction goals, and 
provide guidelines for environmental buying 
decisions, i.e.: 

• Can it be recycled? 
• Is it made from recycled materials? 
• Does it contain toxic inks or materials? 
• Can a manufacturer back its claim of 

"biodegradable"? If so, under what 
conditions? 

• Is there a comparable product that weighs less 
and/ or contains less packaging? 

• Can it be reused? 
• Is the packaging marketable, safe, and is it 

sufficient to maintain the quality and life of 
the products? 

• What are the competing public concerns? 
(i.e., hygiene, nutrition, consumer 
information, etc.) 

• If you buy and sell this product, are you 
promoting a myth, or are the environmental 
claims based on facts? (i.e., "biodegradable") 



0 
Barriers To A Successful Solid Waste Program 

The New Jersey Food Council recogni:es the 
frustration felt by local municipal officials and the 
costs associated with solid waste disposal. How­
ever, we oppose any measure that is not part of a 
comprehensive approach and that perpetuates 
myths and misunderstandings about solid waste 
·solutions. As a result, we oppose the following 
proposals: 

• Any legislation or policy that perpetuates the 
myth of "biodegradability". 

• Mandatory deposit legislation. 
• Arbitrary bans on certain packaging materials, 

such as polystyrene and polyvinyl. 
• Taxes on plastic containers, which result in a tax 

on food and provides no meaningful solution to 
solid waste disposal. 

• State legislation that establishes standards and 
definitions of packaging which should be estab­
lished on a national level. 

"We are in a unique position to educate bur 
consumers ... to educate our 
associates . . . and to educate ourselves on this 
critical environmental issue. We look to the New 
Jersey Food Council to take the lead again in 
developing pro,active programs for all segments of 
the industry. " 

Jim Meister, President and CEO, · 
Kings Super Markets, Inc. 

"The Campbell Soup Company recognizes that 
finding environmentally safe and cost,eff ective 
ways to minimize and dispose of solid waste is a 
national and global priority. We are dedicated to 
providing the safest, most technologically 
appropriate and environmentally friendly 
packaging for all of our food products. We will 
continue to work with the New Jersey Food 
Council and all segments of the food industry to 
ensure development of comprehensive solutions to 
this critical problem. " 

Herbert M. Baum, President, 
Campbell North America 
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Note: ANPA estimate a 1992 market of 14.3 million short tons. 




